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Business Regulations) 2004, OERC (Terms and Condition of Intra-State Open
Access) Regulations 2022, Vesting Order dated 28.12.20, Carved out Balance Sheet
as on 01.01.2021 and its Order dated 26..11.2021.

Dear Sir,

The present application is being filed by TP Southern Odisha Distribution Limited (TPSODL)
before the Hon'ble Commission for approval of a) Truing up of FY 2023-24 and b) Revised
Truing up of FY 2022-23 & c) certain issues related to truing up of FY 2020-21 (3 months) & FY
2021-22 under the Electricity Act 2003, OERC (Terms and Conditions for Determinations of
Wheeling and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations 2022.

The submissions of TPSODL are enclosed herewith.

We trust our submissions are in order.
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BEFORE THE ODISHA ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION,
BIDYUT NIYAMAK BHAWAN.
PLOT No-4, CHUNOKOLI, SHAILASHREE VIHAR, BHUBANESWAR-751021

IN THE MATTER OF: Application under the Electricity Act 2003, OERC (Terms and
Conditions for Determination of Wheeling and Retail Supply Tariff)
Regulations 2022, OERC (Conduct of Business Regulations) 2004,
OERC (Terms and condition of Intra-State Open Access)
Regulations 2020, Vesting Order dated 28.12.20, Carved out Balance
Sheet as on 01.01.2021 and its Order dated 26.11.2021 and Other
Tariff related matters for a) Truing up of FY 2023-24 and b) Revised
Truing up of FY 2022-23 & c) certain issues related to truing up of
FY 2020-21 (3 months) & FY 2021-22.

And

IN THE MATTER OF: TP Southern Odisha Distribution Ltd., Corp Office, Kamapealli,
Courtpeta, Berhampur, Ganjam, Odisha - 760004.

.... Petitioner
IN THE MATTER OF: All Stake Holders

.... Respondents

AFFIDAVIT

I Soumitry Dey, aged about 47 years, s/o. Late Banshidhar Dey, working as the Head
Regulatory Affairs, do hereby solemnly affirm and state as follows:

A a) That, I am working as Head Regulatory Affairs of TPSODL, Courtpeta, Berhampur,
Dist. - Ganjam-760004. I am the authorized representative in the above matter and duly
authorized by the said applicant to make this affidavit on its behalf.
/ DIT’G)LM That, I have gone through the contentions in this submission and understood the
[1:1 >’,7’//} contents thereof.
c) That, the facts stated in the application are true to the best my knowledge and belief.

Identified by _
) ,'\\/W W\

Advocate Deponent

Verified that the contents of above affidavit are true and correct, no part it is false and nothing
material has been concealed there-from.

ﬁtﬁ, day of .. ;MZY /... 2004

aentified by R
on thiz. .. ZQM‘ W~ st Deponent

stated bLoivooo
mentiopad
the his/iar
belief
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BEFORE THE ODISHA ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION,
BIDYUT NIYAMAK BHAWAN.
PLOT No-4, CHUNOKOLI, SHAILASHREE VIHAR, BHUBANESWAR-751021

Case No: of 2024
File No TPSODL/Regulatory /2024/c2/ 7936

IN THE MATTER OF:  Application under the Electricity Act 2003, OERC (Terms and
Conditions for Determination of Wheeling and Retail Supply
Tariff) Regulations 2022, OERC (Conduct of Business
Regulations) 2004, OERC (Terms and condition of Intra-State
Open Access) Regulations 2020, Vesting Order dated 28.12.20,
Carved out Balance Sheet as on 01.01.2021 and its Order dated
26.11.2021 and Other Tariff related matters for a) Truing up of
FY 2023-24 and b) Revised Truing up of FY 2022-23 & c) certain
issues related to truing up of FY 2020-21 (3 months) & FY 2021-
22,

And

IN THE MATTER OF: TP Southern Odisha Distribution Ltd., Corporate Office,
Kamapally, Courtpeta, Berhampur, Ganjam District, Odisha

760004
«evv..... Petitioner
And
IN THE MATTER OF: All Stake Holders
..... Respondents

MOST RESPECTFULLY SHOWETH:

That, by virtue of Vesting order of Hon'ble Commission vide order in Case No-
83/2020 dated 28.12.2020 and as per section 21 of the Electricity Act’ 2003, the rights,
powers, authorities, duties and obligations under SOUTHCO Utility’s license stood
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transferred to TP Southern Odisha Distribution Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as
“TPSODL”) on the effective date that is 01.01.2021.

That, the Hon'ble Commission vide order No-OERC/Engg./1/2021/408 dated
26.03.2021, has issued the Licence Conditions applicable to TPSODL.

That, In line with Regulation 2.6.6 of the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Terms and Conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff)
Regulations,2022 (Tariff Regulations or Tariff Regulations 2022), Section 62 of the
Electricity Act 2003 and Regulation 53 of OERC (Conduct of business) Regulations,
2004, TP Southern Odisha Distribution Ltd (TPSODL) is filing the present application
before the Hon’ble Commission for approval of Truing up of expenses for FY 2023-
24, reconsideration of Truing up of expenses for FY 2022-23 and reconsideration of
certain claims (apparent error) under Truing up of expenses for FY 2020-21 (3 months)

& FY 2021-22; along with the Gaps for these years.

That, TPSODL had filed the petition for consideration of Truing up of FY 2022-23
along with issues related to truing up of FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22 on 30t November
2023. The Hon’ble Commission had passed the order for the same on 13th February
2024 (“Tariff Order for FY 2024-25").

That, thereafter, TPSODL vide its letters dated 8th April 2024 and 15th April 2024 has
submitted the request for clarification and reconsideration of certain claims in True-
up for FY2022-23 and clarification on certain issues pertaining to Truing up of FY 2020-
21 (3 months) and FY 2021-22, respectively in Tariff Order for FY 2024-25 dated 13th
February 2024.

That, the Hon’ble Commission had replied to this letter on 30th April 2024 stating that
these would take up in the ARR filing for FY 2025-26. The relevant extracts from the

letter of the Hon'ble Commission is as follows:

With reference to the shove, 1 am 1o siale that the issues ruised now I Repeet of snaing
ip of seeouns for FY J22-33 could oo he taken up due o nom-availabiliey of sufficivme
information and suppornng decuments which can be submitted during ensuing ARR & teriff

hearing far the FY 2025-26 for conaideration of she Commission
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With relerencs o the abovs, | am G stare that the Conmisgion bid considesed all the

subimisaions of the DISCOM while finalising the trumg up of accounts for FY 202021 ard

20Z1-22. Howwwen, if any relevanl informetion ¢ sspparting documents! writlen subrnissions

cauld ol be furnishas] during the peoceeding for truing ep exercise, the sanw may be sabmitusd

for consideration of the Commission durang rthe next ARR sad Tar [ hearing for s FY 262526
In view of the same, we are in this application seeking the approval of the Hon’ble
Commission for the Trued-up expenses of the TPSODL for FY 2023-24,
reconsideration of Trued-up expenses for FY 2022-23 and allow certain claims under

Trued-up expenses for FY 2020-21 (3 months) and FY 2021-22. On the basis of the
above, TPSODL prays for the following:

Prayers

TPSODL prays that the Hon’ble Commission may kindly be pleased to;

i. Approve the - /
a) Certain claims under Truing up for FY 2020-21 (3 months) & FY 2021-22
b) Revised Truing up for FY 2022-23 along with carrying cost
¢) Truing up for FY 2023-24 along with carrying cost

ii.  Grant permission for additional submission, if any required in this matter.
iii. ~ Grant any other relief as deemed fit & proper in the facts and circumstances of

the case.
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1. Introduction of TPSODL and basis of filing of present Petition

1.1. Business of TPSODL

1. That, The Tata Power South Odisha Distribution Limited (TPSODL) was
incorporated as a joint venture of The Tata Power Company (51%) and Odisha
Government (49%) on the Public-Private Partnership (PPP) model. TPSODL which
was formed after the successful completion of competitive bidding process was
given the license to distribute electricity in the southern part of Odisha comprising
districts of Ganjam, Gajapati, Boudh, Kandhamal, Rayagarda, Koraput,
Nabarangapur and Malkanagiri, which was earlier served by erstwhile Southco
Utility. The map of Odisha and the area served by TPSODL is depicted in the map

below:

JHARKHAND

Figure 1: Area of Distribution in the State of Odisha
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2. That, the core business activities of TPSODL are summarized as follows:

* Operation and maintenance of distribution network

e Expansion of distribution network

e Electricity supply and after sales services

¢ Connection of new customers to the distribution network

¢ Meter reading, billing and revenue collection

e Customer complaint resolution

* Restoration of power after interruptions

¢ General customer care including provision of information on services
¢ Customer sensitization on energy efficiency, energy losses and safety

1.2. Formation of TPSODL

3. That, Prior to commencement of distribution of electricity by TPSODL, the same
was carried out by Southern Electricity Supply Company of Odisha Limited (the
“Southco”) which was in turn incorporated on 19th November 1997 under the
Companies Act, 1956. In this regard, it is relevant to submit that pursuant to the
Odisha Electricity Reforms Act 1995 and Odisha Electricity Reforms Rules 1998, all
the assets of GRIDCO pertaining to the distribution business in the Southern Zone
of GRIDCO were transferred to Southco.

4. That, On1st April 1999, 51% (fifty one percent) shares of GRIDCO in Southco were
transferred to BSES Limited selected through competitive bidding process.
Thereafter, Southco was managed by BSES Limited and later by its successor R-
Infra Limited.

5. That, under Section 19 of the Electricity Act, 2003 (the “Act”), the Hon’ble OERC
or Hon'ble Commission revoked the license of Southco with effect from Mar 2015
and appointed CMD, GRIDCO as the administrator under Section 20(d) of Act and
vested the management and control of Southco Utility along with their assets,
interests and rights with the CMD, GRIDCO Limited. This decision was upheld by
the Honble Appellate Tribunal for Electricity (ATE) and Hon’ble Supreme Court.
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Thereafter i.e. after a gap of about 5 years, in terms of Section 20 of Electricity Act
2003, the Hon'ble Commission initiated on 14.08.2020 a transparent and
competitive bidding process for selection of an investor for sale of utility of
Southco and had issued the Request for Proposal. In response to the said RFP, two
bids were received by the bid due date. After detailed evaluation by independent
bid evaluation committee setup by Hon'ble Commission, The Tata Power
Company Limited (the “TPCL”) was recommended as the successful bidder and
the Hon'ble Commission accepted the same under Section 20(1)(a) of the Act.
Thereafter, the Hon’ble Commission vide its order dated 28th December 2020 in
Case No 83 of 2020 (“Vesting Order”) vested the utility of Southco to TPSODL in
terms of Section 21 of the Electricity Act 2003.

TPSODL commenced its operation on 1st January 2021.

That, the business of TPSODL utility is governed by the provisions of license
issued by Hon’ble Commission for distribution and retail supply of electricity in
Southern Odisha. The Hon'ble Commission under the Electricity Act 2003,
regulates the working of the entire power sector of Odisha state, including

determination of tariff chargeable to end consumers

1.3. Operation of TPSODL and its Asset Base

TPSODL'’s licensed area is spread over a geographical area of 48,751 sq. Km. and
it serves a registered live consumer base of around 21.32 lakhs. TPSODL procures
power from GRIDCO through Odisha Power Transmission Corporation Limited
(OPTCL)'s 220/132/33 kV grid substations at sub transmission voltage level of 33
kV and then distributes the power at 33 kV/11 kV/440 V/230 V depending on the

demands of the consumers.

TPSODL operations include several electrical equipment such as Power Sub-

Stations (PSS), 33 KV Lines, 11 KV lines, 415 V network and all the associated
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apparatus. The summary of the various electrical equipment operated by TPSODL
is provided in the table below:
Table 1: TPSODL Equipment Statistics (as on 30th September 2024)

ffé el Unit | City | BERHAMPUR | ASKA | BHANJANAGAR | RAYAGADA | JEYPORE | SOOI
1 No of 33/11kV No. 20 31 22 46 57 76 252
Substations
2 33/11 kV No. 48 75 59 97 111 169 559
Transformers
Transformation MVA 286 391 302 442 520 755 2,697
3 Capacity (33/11
kV)
Distribution No. 2,937 5,432 4,658 15,525 13,436 30,304 72,292
4 Transformers
(DTR)
5 DTR-Capacity MVA 360 375 274 557 562 1,107 3,235
6 33kV Line -O/H | Ckt.Km 157 407 252 969 940 1,785 4,510
7 33kV Line - Ckt. K 39 - 1 1 3 4 48
U/G
3 11kV Line-O/H | Ckt. Km | 1,025 3,476 2,932 8,821 8,891 18,316 43,460
9 11kV Line - Ckt. Km 5 - - 37 23 2 68
UG
10 LT Line -Bare Ckt. Km 67 1,091 607 513 1,151 1,275 4,703
1 LT Line -ABC Ckt. Km | 1,551 3,660 1,899 7,693 5,050 15,258 35,111

11
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1.4. Basis for filing of the present petition

- That, TPSODL has filed several petitions in the past for approval of the Hon’ble

Commission. Some of the relevant petitions for the filing of the present application,

are as follows:

a) Capex approval of FY 2021-22 and Annual Business Plan (i.e Opex) for FY
2021-22

b) ARR for FY 2022-23

¢) True-up of FY 2020-21 (3 Months), True up of FY 2021-22 and ARR for FY
2023-24

d) Capex approval of FY 2022-23

e) Capex approval for FY 2023-24

f) ARR for FY 2023-24

g) Business Plan for FY 2023-24 followed by Business Plan for the period FY
2024-25 to FY 2027-28

h) Capex approval for Berhampur City




TPS®DL

i) Capex approval of FY 2024-25 & FY 25-26
j) ARRfor FY 2024-25

12. That, The Hon’ble Commission after following the due regulatory process has

approved certain expenditure in these petitions. The Various orders passed by the

Hon’ble Commission as applicable to TPSODL are as follows:

Table 2: Various Orders of the Hon ble Commission for TPSODL

13:, Case No Date of Order Subject Matter
1 [830f 2020 | 28th December 2020 | Vesting of Southco Utility in TPSODL
2 | 080f2021 |18thSeptember 2021 | Capex Plan for FY 2021-22
3  [390f2021 |29th October 2021 Annual Business Plan for FY 2021-22
4 108 of 2021 | 24th March 2022 Tariff Order for FY 2022-23
5 13 of 2022 | 14th July 2022 Capex Plan for FY 2022-23
6 |820f2022 |24t March 2023 Tariff Order for FY 2023-24
06 of 2023 True up of FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22
12 of 2023 Business Plan for FY 2023-24
7 | 050f2023 | 19% June 2023 Capex Plan for FY 2023-24
8 | 460f2023 | 14t September 2023 | Business Plan for the period FY 2024-25
to FY 2027-28
9 | 820f2023 |15t November 2023 | Capex Scheme for improvement of
reliability in Berhampur City
10 | 104 of 2023 | 26th December 2023 | Capex Plan for FY 2024-25 & FY 25-26
11 | 119 & 120 | 13th February 2024 | Tariff Order for FY 2024-25
of 2023
True up of FY 2023, Issues related to
True ups of FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22

13. That, in addition, TPSODL has sought approval from the Hon’ble Commission for

additional requirements particularly with regards to the approval of manpower

for FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23. Further, TPSODL had sought additional O&M

expenditure as compared to the amount approved for FY 2023-24. In addition,

TPSODL also brought to the notice certain amounts that were not considered by

the Hon’ble Commission while truing up FY 2020-21 (3 Months) and FY 2021-22.

14. That, TPSODL had filed the petition for consideration of Truing up of FY 2022-23
along with issues related to truing up of FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22 on 30th

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 & Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21
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November 2023. The Hon’ble Commission had passed the order for the same on

13th February 2024 (“Tariff Order for FY 2024-25").

15. That, thereafter, TPSODL vide its letters dated 8th April 2024 and 15th April 2024
has submitted the request for Clarification and reconsideration of certain claims in
True-up for FY2022-23 and Clarification on Certain issues pertaining to Truing up
of FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22, respectively in Tariff Order for FY 2024-25 dated
13th February 2024. The Hon’ble Commission had responded to these
communications on 30th April 2024 stating that these would take up in the ARR
filing for FY 2025-26.

16. That, TPSODL is filing this application based on the above premises.

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 & Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21
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2. Issues related to Truing up of & FY2020-21 (3 months) & FY 2021-22

17. The Hon'ble Commission in the Tariff Order dated 13th February 2024 has
approved the Truing up for FY 2020-21 (3 months) and FY 2021-22 and has
stipulated following with regards to True up of FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22.

201.The Commission now finalises the truing up for FY 2020-21 and 2021-22 in this ARR
for FY 2024-25 considering all the factors and submissions. The commission hereby
directs that no further submission regarding truing up for FY 2020-21 and 2021-22
will be entertained in future.

205.The Commission hereby concludes the truing up of expenses of the DISCOMs
(TPCODL, TPSODL, TPWODL & TPNODL) for the FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22.

18. That, TPSODL vide its letters dated 15th April 2024 has submitted the request for
clarification on Certain issues pertaining to Truing up of FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-
22 in the Tariff Order for FY 2024-25.

19. That, the Hon'ble Commission vide its letter no. SECY/09-Cor-
TPCODL/2023/473 dated 30th April 2024, has clarified that “... However if any
relevant information/supporting documents/written submissions could not be
furnished during the proceedings for the truing up exercise, the same may be
submitted for consideration of the Commission during the next ARR and Tariff
hearing for FY 2025-26."

20. That, in line with the directive of the Hon’ble Commission, TPSODL is furnishing
adequate information along with justification for few items for reconsideration,

which are mainly due to error apparent.

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 & Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21 _




TPS®DL

21 Trueup FY 2020 21: Short Allowance of Power Purchase Cost ]

21. The Hon'ble Commission has approved Rs. 208.14 Cr in True up FY 2020-21 in the
Tariff Order dated 13th Feb 2024.

Table 3: Approved Cost of Power Purchase for FY 2020-21 (January 2021 to March
2021). Ref. Table 84 of Tariff Order FY 2024-25

(in Rs. Crs.)
TPSODL
AI.’vaed Jan 21 to TRSODL Audited Allowed
; in the Jan 21 to :
Expenditure March 3 in true
ARR 21 (Pro- Maxch 21 months) up
2020-21 rated) (Proposed)
Cost of Power Purchase | 855.17 213.79 200.29 198.75 208.14

Table 4: Approved Adjustment towards Power Purchase Cost for FY 2020-21, Ref.
Table 85 of Tariff Order FY 2024-25

Additional power purchase cost incurred towards | Rs.Cr. | L=(JxK/1000) | -10.92
deviation from calculated distribution loss
Amount eligible for loss or gain to be borne by | Rs.Cr. L -10.92
distribution licensee

22. While no computation for approved Power Purchase Cost of Rs. 208.14 Crs has
been provided in the Tariff Order (True up order), the Power Purchase Cost works
out to Rs. 209.67 Cr when computed based on the audited accounts after
considering the approved efficiency gains. The Table 5 below depicts the

computation and short allowance for which approval is requested.

23. The relevant extract of the OERC (Terms and Conditions for Determination of
Wheeling and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations 2022 for any over/under
achievement of AT&C loss reduction is appended as under:

3.14.4. The Distribution Licensees shall adhere to the committed ATEC loss reduction
trajectory for future years (Annexure I1I) as per the Vesting Orders. Any gains or loss
arising from over-achievement or under achievement of AT&C loss reduction vis-a-vis
the regulated AT&C loss provided for Tariff determination in Annexure-III shall be
retained by Distribution Licensee.

TN
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24. That, based on the above provision and Audited Accounts, the Power Purchase

Cost is recalculated as below.

Table 5: Revised Power Purchase Cost for FY 2020-21 for consideration

£ Amount
Sr No Particular (Rs. Cr)
1 Power Purchase Cost (Net) as per Audited Accounts  198.75
2 Add: Efficiency Gains approved by Hon'ble OERC 10.92
3=1+2 Total Revised Amount for Approval 209.67
4 Amount Approved in Tariff Order 208.14
5=3-4 Difference 1.53

25. That, the extract from the Audited Accounts is also provided below for the kind

reference of the Hon’ble Commission.

~Penod from

December 35,
23 Cost of power purchased and transnusson charges 2020 to March
31, 2021
. Xerore
e 142
78,80
042
21.9%
Tatai Cost of power puschased and transmission charges {a+b) R [ 9

Figure 2: Extracts of the Audited Accounts for Dec 25, 2020 to March 31, 2021

26. In view of the above, the Hon’ble Commission may kindly approve the short-

allowance towards Power Purchase Cost of Rs. 1.53 Crs for FY 2020-21 (3 month)

truing up.

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 & Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21
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22 True up FY 2021-22: Short Allowance of Employee Cost |

27. The Tariff Regulations, 2022 stipulates approval of Employee Cost after adjusting
for the Non-Cash Expenditure towards Terminal Benefit and including the Cost of
Outsourced Employees. The Hon’ble Commission at Para 203 of the Tariff Order
FY 2024-25 while setting the Principles for True up has also stipulated following
with regards to allowance of Employee Cost.

203. The truing up exercise has been carried based on following principle along with
principle of OERC’s Wheeling & RST Regulation, 2022.

a) The employee expenses have been termed as controllable factor in the regulation.
However, the employee expenses approved in the ARR for the first year of operation
was based on the filing of the erstwhile utilities. The Commission has therefore taken
into account following facts while approving employee expenses:

(ii1) the expenditure booked in the audited accounts.

(iv) the projection towards actuarial valuation for contribution to the trusts have been
deducted and only actual cash out go for the terminal benefits as per the vesting orders
has been considered.

(v) the cost of outsourced expenses has been included in the employee expenses in the
ARR.

28. It is pertinent to submit that, the Hon’ble Commission has been allowing ‘Out
Sourced Employee Cost’ under “Employee Cost’ in various Tariff Orders, which

was also approved similarly in Tariff Order for ARR FY 2021-22.

29. Further, it is also submitted that while Rs. 404.76 Cr was approved in ARR FY 2021-
22, additional Approval towards revised HRA & Medical Allowance for erstwhile
Employees were received vide letter Dt. 20.04.2022 and 19.02.2022. The impact of
this additional approval was Rs. 17.77 Cr for FY 2021-22. So, the total claim under
employee cost incurred was Rs. 413.19 Cr i.e. Rs 395.60 Crs + Rs 17.70 Crs against
the total approval of Rs 421.53 Crs in the Tariff Order passed in 23rd March 2023.

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 & Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21
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Table 6: Approved Employee Costs for FY 2021-22,
Ref. Table 86 of Tariff Order FY 2024-25

Approved Total Audited Allowed
Expenditure in the Proposed FY in true
ARR 2021-22 FY 2021-22 2021-22 up
Employee 404.76 42153 395.60 395.60
Costs

30. It is also worthwhile to submit that TPSODL had recruited 475 manpower till
31.03.2022 against the approval of 483 i.e. within the approved limit.

31. In view of the above, the Hon’ble Commission is requested to approve the actually

incurred employee cost of Rs. 413.19 Crs against which only Rs. 395.6 Crs was

approved in Tariff Order dated 13th Feb 2024 as depicted in table below.

Table 7: Revised Employee Cost for FY 2021-22 for consideration

(in Rs. Crs.)
Requested | Approved Additional
Sr Particul in T in True U employee
No iculars in Trueup | in True Up T
3 petition FY 2021-22
approved
1 Employee cost as per audited accounts 395.6
(Net of employee cost capitalised) '
» Employees provision expenditure 184.39
charged to Profit and loss account ’
3 Terminal benefit paid to the Trust as 136.68
per the vesting order (Cash basis) ’
= | Amount deducted towards difference 4771
3-2 | between Actuarial provision and cash )
= | Gross employee cost after above
1+4 | adjustment 24789
6 | Add: Outsourced employee cost 65.30
57_; Total gross employee cost on cash basis 413.19 395.60 17.60
N 00/52:
SE
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| 28 Pryer |

32.1In light of the above, it is humbly prayed to the Hon’ble Commission may
kindly consider the following.

1. Approve the Short Allowance of Rs. 1.53 Cr towards Power Purchase Cost
for FY 2020-21 (3 months).

2. Approve additional employee cost of Rs. 17.60 Crs for FY 2021-22.

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 & Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21
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3. Reconsideration of Truing up of FY 2022-23

34. The Hon'ble Commission in the Tariff Order dated 13th February 2024 has

approved the Truing up for FY 2022-23 and has stipulated following with regards
to the Truing up process for FY 2022-23.

202. Basing on the application for all the four DISCOMs, the truing up exercise has
been carried out by the Commission for FY 2022-23 as per the OERC’s Wheeling &
Retail Supply Tariff Regulations, 2022, which has taken into account the provisions of
vesting orders and other related developments. The Commission observed that the
actual expenses booked in the Audited accounts are higher than the approved cost for
most of components, particularly for O&M expenses. Although the OERC Wheeling
and RST Regulations, 2022 came into force in December, 2022, the relevant expenses
have been allowed on the basis of pragmatic approach. In absence of adequate
information/ data the Commission could not verify higher audited expenses in
respect of O&M.

35. That, TPSODL vide its letters dated 8t April 2024 has submitted the request for
Clarification and reconsideration of certain claims in True-up for FY2022-23 in the

Tariff Order for FY 2024-25.

36. That, the Hon'ble Commission vide its letter no. SECY /09-Cor-
TPCODL/2023/475 dated 30th April 2024, has clarified that “the issues raised now
in respect of truing up of account for FY 2022-23 could not be taken up due to non-
availability of sufficient information and supporting documents which can be
submitted during ensuing ARR and Tariff hearing for FY 2025-26 for consideration

of the Commission.”

37. The Hon'ble Commission is empowered u/s 94(1)(f) and 94(1)(g) of the Electricity
Act, 2003 to provide clarification with respect to any directions issued by it. The
relevant extracts of sections 94(1)(f) and 94(1)(g) of the Act are reproduced
hereinbelow for ease of reference:

“Section 94 of the Electricity Act, 2003-
“Section 94. (Powers of Appropriate Commission): — (1) The Appropriate
Commission shall, for the purposes of any inquiry or proceedings under this Act, have

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 & Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21
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the same powers as are vested in a civil court under the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908
in respect of the following matters, namely:

....................................

..................................

38. Further, under Regulation 76 (1) of the OERC (Conduct of Business) Regulations,
2004, the Hon’ble Commission has inherent powers to make such orders as may
be necessary for meeting the ends of justice. Regulation 76 (1) of the OERC Conduct

of Business Regulations, 2004 is reproduced hereinbelow:

“76. Saving of inherent power of the Commission:

(1) Nothing in these regulations shall be deemed to limit or otherwise affect the inherent
power of the Commission to make such orders as may be necessary for meeting the ends
of justice or to prevent the abuse of the process of the Commission.

...............................

39. Further, under Regulation 6.1 of the OERC (Terms and Conditions for
Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2022, the
Hon’ble Commission has inherent powers to make such orders as may be
necessary for meeting the ends of justice. Regulation 6.1 of the OERC Tariff

Regulations, 2022 is reproduced hereinbelow:

“6.1. Saving of Inherent Power of the Commission

6.1.1. Nothing in these Regulations shall be deemed to limit or otherwise affect the
inherent power of the Commission to make such orders as may be necessary for ends of
Justice or to prevent the abuse of the process of the Commission.

6.1.2. Nothing in these Regulations shall bar the Commission from adopting in
conformity with the provisions of the Act, a procedure, which is at variance with any
of the provisions of these Regulations, if the Commission, in view of the special
circumstances of a matter or class of matters and for reasons to be recorded in writing,
deemns it necessary or expedient for dealing with such a matter or class of matters.

6.1.3. Nothing in these Regulations shall, expressly or by implication, bar the
Commission to deal with any matter or exercise any power under the Acts for which no
Regulations have been framed, and the Commission may deal with such matters,
powers and functions in a manner it thinks fit. In case of any conflict between the
Vesting Orders, these Regulations, Bulk Supply Agreement and Bulk Power
Transmission and SLDC Agreement, the decision of the Commission shall be final and
binding on all parties.”

e
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40. Therefore, it is respectfully submitted that the gap determined in True up Order
for FY 2022-23 under RST Order for FY 2024-25 (Tariff Order for FY 2024-25) needs
to be bridged after due appreciation of the claims made by the Petitioner.

41. That, based on the above-mentioned premises, the Petitioner is furnishing the True

up for FY 2022-23 for reconsideration of the Hon’ble Commission.

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 & Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21
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Table 8: Approved TRUE UP of TPSODL for FY 2022-23,

(in Rs. Crs.)
Total Audited Total Allowed
Expenditure Approved FY Proposed in true
FY 2022-23 | 2022-23 | FY 2022-23 up

Cost of Power Purchase 1120.24 1057.8 1069.26 1062.36
Employee costs 430.79 409.9 362.56 409.9
Repair & Maintenance 90.24 67.46 242.83 112.46
Administrative and General Expenses 77.25 393.02 205.06 77.25
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 12.99 59.25 18.14 17.93
Depreciation 32.03 58.32 40.86 45.95
Interest on Working capital 32.23 9.03
Interest on consumer security deposit 12.26 18.68 18.68 13.05
Interest on long term loan 5.00 38.51 18.06 16.64
Other Borrowing cost 1.43
Efficiency Gain to be shared: 4.33
A-1/3rd to be declared as Dividend

. 1.29
/Equity
B-1/3rd to be passed on to consumer

1.29

as rebate
C-1/3rd to be kept as tariff balancing 1.29
reserve
Sub-Total 1780.80 2104.39 2012.01 1768.34
Less: Employee cost capitalised 28.37 28.37 28.37
(A)Total expenses 1752.43 2076.02 2012.01 1739.97
Income Tax 1941 16.36 16.36
Deferred Tax 6.09
Return on equity 32.00 48.65 48.69
Deferred tax credit -11.43
(B) Sub total 32.00 14.07 65.01 65.05
TOTAL(A+B) 1784.43 2090.09 2077.02 1805.01
Less Miscellaneous Receipt 35.16 123.79 53.2 66.15
Less Rebate on total Power Purchase 11.44
Cost
Net movement in Regulatory Deferral 206.09 0
balances
Provisional Surplus considered 60.00
Total Revenue Requirement 1689.27 1760.21 2012.38 1738.86
Revenue from Sale of Power 1694.00 1792.96 1814.05 1792.96
GAP(+-) 4.73 32.75 -198.33 54.10

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 & Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21
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[ 3.1, Power Purchase Cost

42. That, Hon’ble Commission had approved total input of 4390 MU for the FY 2022-
23 with sales MU of 3292.70 MU. In the FY 2022-23, the actual input has been
4188.45 MU and total sales has been 3155.64 MU. With the actual sales of 3155.64

MU with normative T&D loss of 25.00%, the normative Input for FY 22-23 is

4207.52 MU. The power purchase cost (normative) for 4207.52 MU is Rs. 1,062.15

Crs. The details have been furnished in Annexure-TU-2. The approval of Hon'ble

Commission vis-a-vis the actual and normative power purchase are detailed in the

following table.

Table 9: Power Purchase Cost for FY 22-23 (in Rs. Crs.)

Approved by Actual True up Considering
Expenditure OERC (Audited | Normative T&D loss
FY 2022-23 Accounts) 25.00%

INPUT(MU) 4390.00 4188.45 4207.52
Cost of power purchase 996.53 951.17 955.50
Transmission Cost 122.92 117.30 117.30
SLDC Cost 0.79 0.79 0.79
Less: Rebate -11.44 -11.44
Total Power purchase Cost(A) 1,120.24 1,057.82 1,062.15

Extract of Audited Financials for FY 2023-24

NOTE 27 Cost of power purchased and transmission charges

(a) Power Purchase Cost
(b) Transmission Charges
Less: Rebate

Total cost of poﬁrer purchased and transmission charges (a+b)

As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
¥ crore T crore

912.51 951.17

104.45 118.09

(9.27) (11.44)
1,007.69 1,057.82

43. While, the approved Total Power Purchase Cost was Rs. 1062.36 Crs as approved
in the Tariff Order for FY 2024-25 dated 13th February 2024; the same as per the
petition is Rs. 1062.15 Crs for the FY 2022-23. We therefore, request the

Commission to consider the normative power purchase cost of Rs. 1062.15 Crs for

the FY 2022-23.

%?\N 00/5]/
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 Bployas Coke.

44.

Honble Commission has allowed Employee cost of Rs. 402.42 Crs for the FY

22-23. The actual expenses incurred towards employee costin FY 22-23 is Rs. 440.91

Crs. The details of the same are presented in the following table-

Table 10: Employee Expenses for FY 22-23 (in Rs. Crs.)

CrAsper L il T
Audited | EXpensessought .
Particulars " for Truing Up FY
Accounts FY |- 202203 ¢
2022-23 R I
Salaries, wages and bonus 222.01 222.01
Outsource and contractual employees expenses 86.24
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 11.81 11.81
Staff welfare expenses 27.52 27.52
Terminal benefit expenses-Trust 121.69 121.69
Employees Actuarial Provision 31.53 0.00
Y U Total - - 41457 . 469.28
Less: Employee cost capitalization -28.37 -28.37
" Total £ 386.22 44091

Note: Outsource and contractual man power cost of Rs. 86.24 Crs has been grouped under
employees in the True-up Petition as per OERC Regulations whereas same was grouped
under A&G expenses (Other expenses) in Audited Financials. Kindly refer Note 28 of

Audited Financials FY23-24.
Extract of Audited Financials for FY 2023-24

NOTE 28 Employee banefits expense (Net)

Saiaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to gratuity fund (Refer Note 18)

Contribution to provident and other funds {Refer Note 18)
Staff welfare expenses

Gross emplovee benefit expenses

Less: Employee cost capitalised / transfer to CWIP

Net emplovee benefits exnense

As at As at

March 31,2024 | March 31,2023

¥ crore ¥ crore
260.90 224.27
14.17 15.84
163.33 146,96
24.11 27.52
462,51 | 414.59
(34.40) 28.37

428.11 _;iﬁ’z"
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45. The actual employee cost vis-a-vis approval of the Hon’ble Commission for the FY

Table 11: Employee Cost Approved Vs Actual for FY 22-23 (in Rs. Crs.)

Approved by
Approved by | OERC in True Difference
Particulars OERC up Order Actual sought
(Tariff Order | forming part of | (Audited) (Actual -
dtd 24.03.2022) | Tariff Order dtd Approved)
13.02.2024
A B C D=C-B
Employee Cost* 430.79 409.90 469.28 59.38
bess -Employee 2837 28.37 2837 0
cost capitalized
Net Bmployee 402.42 381.53 440.91 59.38
Cost

* Employee cost includes the outsource manpower cost

46. That, the Hon'ble Commission while clarifying on the approval for manpower
against retirement vacancies, has stipulated that the number of employees per
thousand consumers to be kept limited within 1.40, vide its letter no
OERC/RA/TPWODL-38/2021/18 dt. 17.01.2022. The relevant extract of the Order

is reproduced below:

“The Commission has now allowed filling up of retirement in view of a low percentage of
employees per one thousand consumers. The Commission further observes that the
recruitment for the ensuing year maybe undertaken to the extent so that the number of
employees per one thousand consumers shall not exceed 1.40 including replenishment

of retiring vacancies of TPWODL, TPNODL and TPSODL.

------

The Commission further directs the DISCOMS to file their separate manpower requirement
and Plan of Action for FY 22-23 keeping in view the number of employees per thousand

consumers as indicated by the Commission above. It shall be kept within 1.40.”

47. The Hon’ble Commission in the Tariff Order for FY 2022-23 dated 24.3.2022, while
allowing Employee expenses has directed under para 116 that, any expenses
beyond approval needs to be justified in the True up Petition. Para 116 is

reproduced hereinunder:
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“116. It is directed that employee cost needs to be incurred in the ARR order. ABP
Order and any other directions by the Commission in this regard. Any expenses beyond

the approval needs to be justified in the true up petition.”

48. Further, the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms & Conditions for
Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2022
(“Tariff Regulations, 2022”), specifically provides the guidelines for new

recruitment by the licensee. Relevant extract is reproduced hereinunder:

3.9.11. The employee expense for the ensuing year shall be projected considering cadre
/designation wise average existing employee cost for past year where the number of new
employees to be added and their associated expenses shall be duly approved by the Commission
after prudence check. The projection for the recruitment for a year may be restricted to 1.40
employees (including replenishment of retiring vacancies) per 1000 consumers. In case the ratio
has exceeded 1.40, the Distribution Licensee shall bring down the ratio to 1.40 within the

control period.

49.In line with the above directives of the Hon'ble Commission, the licensee is
furnishing hereunder detailed justification for the actual employee cost incurred

in FY 22-23.

[ustification for higher Employee Cost

50. It is humbly submitted that Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms &
Conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff)
Regulations, 2022 (“Tariff Regulations, 2022”), specifically provides for Employee
Expense/ Cost.

51. The Employee related expenses broadly fall into three (3) categories. Expense
related to (a) erstwhile Employees of the licensee, (b) New Employees recruited by
the Licensee post the Effective date of vesting & (c) Outsourced and Contractual

manpower.
A > \\0\
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3.2.1. No of Employees on roll of the licensee (Approved & Actual)

52. The Hon’ble Commission had initially in the order in Case No 39 of 2021 dated
29.10.2021, had approved the recruitment of 220 personnel upto the period FY
2021-22 i.e (3 month of FY 2020-21 and 12 months of FY 2021-22). The relevant

extracts from the order is as follows.

96. The Commission now allows 8% of the total proposed manpower of 2754 (1999+60+695)
to be recruited. This will include post facto approval for the 60 persons already recruited

without Commission’s approval. This would mean additional recruitment of 160 (.08X2754-
60) employees.

53. However, subsequently in the letter of the Hon’ble Commission dated 17.01.2022,
it had revised the approval of recruitment form 220 employees to 483 Employees.

The extract of the letter is as follows:

SL No, | Deseription TPWODL | TPNODL | TPSODL | TPCODL | Total
, Numbers | Numbers | Numbers | Numbers | Numbers
1 Gowt. Sanctioned Strength 6702 5839 5625 9773 27959
2 | Discom Projection of Total Requirement 4209 1266 2800 | 6654 14929
| in ABP / Veesting Order ‘ : |
3_ | Numbersas per ABP Petition | 850 636 695  1367| 3548
4 No. of Employees Approved in respective 336 27 220 532 ! 1365
| ABP Order (8% of proposed manpower) ]
For FY 2020-21 [ 532
| For ¥Y 2021-22 336 277 220
5 Depletion [Retirees + Death+Resignation] 425 411 341 688 1865
(FY 20-21, FY 21-22, FY 22-23)
including Contractual .
FY 2020-21 ] 1721 162 138 266 738
« No. | Description \ TPWODL | TPNODL | TPSODL | TPCODL | Total |
e | Numbers | Numbers | Numbers | Nambers | Numbers
FY2021-22 | 143 114 125 208 590
6 | FY2022-23 o 110 135 78 214 537
7 Now approved manpower for depletion 172 162 263 266 1328
(for TPCODL 2020-21 and for TPSODL,
TPWODL & TPNODL. for 2020-21 &
2021-22) |
8 Total manpower allowed after revision | 508 439 483 798 2693
of the ABP order. | NICLN
9 | Employee Strength as at 31.12.2021 | 2662 2510 2345 5711 13228
16 | Employee Strength as at 31.12.2021 on
revisionnow 2834 | 2672 2608 5977 14556
11 [No.of Consumers on31.122021 2211026 | 2054045 | 2374403 | 2896629 | 9536103
12 | Percentage of Employees per 1000 '
‘ consumersason 31122021 1.28 130 110 206 1.53

Figure 3: Extracts from letter dated 17th January 2022
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54. In addition, the Hon’ble Commission in its letter dated 15.10.2022 had further
approved recruitment of 528 Employees for TPSODL. The extract from this letter

is as follows:

The following table depicts the summary of the analysis and approval accorded thereol”

i gi Descriplion TPWODL | TPSODL | TPNODL | TPCODL |

No.

1 | Employee swength as on 31.3.2022 | 2629 2346 2585 | 5265
(inherited-+ CTC) -

2 | Less retirces during FY 202223 109 78 93 195

3 | Employee strength as on 31.3.2023 2520 2268 2492 5070
(without recruitments in FY 23) !

4_| No. of consumers as on 31.3.2022 223 | 2386 20.9 28.97

S | Estimated No. of consumers as on 23.15 24.81 21.75 30.07
31.3.2023 (Growih @ of 4%)

6 | Allowed employee strength as on| 324] 3473 3043 5070
31323 (1.4 employees per ‘000
consumers) .

7 |Gap to be filled through new 700 636 551 100
recruitments in FY 2023, (proposed)

8 | Original Sanctioned strength 6702 5625 5859 9773
Now allowed 8% of the sanctioned 536 450 469 Not

9 |strength Relevant
No. of retiring employees allowed 109 78 93 Not

10 ‘ Relevant

11_| Total employees allowed for FY 2022-23 645 528 551 100

Figure 4: Extracts from the Letter of the Hon'ble Commission dated 15th October
2022

55. Hence in all the total manpower approved for recruitment by TPSODL till 31st
March 2023 is 1011 (483 for FY 2021-22 and 528 for FY 2022-23).

56.1t is submitted that TPSODL has recruited/ inducted 908 Employee which are
lower than the approved number by the Hon’ble Commission. The net addition of
employees since the time of commencement of operation since 1st January 2021 is

as follows:

Table 12: Recruitment of New Manpower ll FY 2022-23

Sr | Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 22 FY 23
No (3 Months)
Opening Balance 0 128 475
2 | Addition (Net of attrition/Retirement) 128 347 433
NS Sl/d Y
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Sr | Particulars FY 2020-21 | FY22 FY 23
No (3 Months)
3 | Closing Balance 128 475 908

* Movement of Erstwhile Employee strength over the period

following table:

Table 13: Erstwhile Employee Movement till FY 2022-23

57. The Employee Strength of Erstwhile Utility over the period is as given in the

Sr No | Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 22 FY 23
(3 Months)

Executives
1 Opening Balance 389 387 378
2 Retirement/Deletion 2 9 -6
3 Closing Balance 387 378 384

Non-Executives
4 Opening Balance 1613 1583 1480
5 Retirement/Deletion 30 103 85
6 Closing Balance 1583 1480 1395

Total
7 Opening Balance 2002 1970 1858
8 Retirement/Deletion 32 112 79
9 Closing Balance 1970 1858 1779

58. That, the effective manpower per 1,000 consumer ratio works out to be 1.10 for FY
2022-23 with a consumer base of 24,24,624. It is evident that the licensee is
managing the operations within a vast geographical area with one of the lowest

employees to consumers ratio.

3.2.2. Expense related to Qutsource and Contractual emplovees

59. As explained above, the licensee is judiciously recruiting new manpower to
optimize the manpower cost and further utilize the inherited outsourced and
contractual manpower engaged in R&M, MBC and Others Administrative
Activities from the erstwhile Discom.

60. Further, it may be submitted that the erstwhile Discom has been managing the vast
geographical area, mainly with the help of a large number of outsourced and

contractual manpower. This manpower was deployed in almost all activities of
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these Discom e.g. in rural electrification, addition of new consumers, in works
related to MRT, Energy Audit, maintenance of DTRs, watch & ward and vigilance
activities.

Post takeover, the licensee re-engaged this experienced manpower in various
activities thus being able to keep the effective manpower to consumer ratio under

the approved limit.

That, the Commission has approved Rs. 70 Crs. under Outsource and Contractual
employees Cost FY 2022-23 against Rs. 165.05 Crs as estimated in its petition. The
Hon’ble Commission while approving the Outsource and Contractual employees

Cost vide the tariff Order dated 24.03.2022; had made the following observation.

Outsource and Contractual employees Cost

105. As regards engagement of manpower, DISCOMs have submitted in the ARR that since
no recruitment has been permitted by the Commission there has been drastic reduction in the
manpower. In view of the large scale electrification through rural electrification, addition of
new consumers, reorganization, and to carry out MRT, Energy Audit, maintenance of DTRs
and vigilance activities present manpower is inadequate. Consequently, in order to improve
100% coverage, reduction of distribution loss and to improve collection they have engaged
contractual personnel and outsource agencies for maintenance of existing Grid substations, sub
stations under ODSSP, watch and ward activity, vigilance activities etc. DISCOMs were
asked to submit the actual expenses on these activities during the current financial year 2021-
22. The Commission after scrutiny allows the expenses on Contractual and outsource
employees for the ensuing FY 2022-23 on the basis of the submission of DISCOMs and actual
cash outgo for the current year 2021-22.

That, TPSODL has made very elaborate effort to optimize the inherited
Outsourced and Contractual manpower post takeover, and has redeployed the
manpower across various functions and geographies. These efforts have resulted
in finding the existing Gaps for effective operation of the licensee; which in turn
helped in framing the optimized New Manpower Recruitment policy.
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64. That, based on the above, the licensee requests the Hon’ble Commission to
consider the actual Outsource and Contractual employees Cost of Rs 86.24 Crs for
truing up.

65. As can be seen from the above explanation, the number of new employees
recruited is lower than the number already approved by the Hon’ble Commission.
Further the payment to erstwhile employees is on the basis of the rules of the

Government of Odisha and also after approval by the Hon’ble Commission.

66. We therefore request the Hon’ble Commission to approve the actual Employee

Expenditure of Rs 440.91 Crs. for FY 2022-23 truing up.
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Repair & Maintenance Expenses

67. This Hon'ble Commission vide the Tariff Order dated 24.02.2022 had allowed the

Repair and Maintenance (“R&M”) Expenditure of Rs. 90.24 Crs for FY 2022-23.

68. In the ARR application for FY 22-23, outlining the requirement of a comprehensive

69.

70.

repair and maintenance plan, TPSODL proposed total R&M cost of Rs. 137.91 Crs
under the broad categories of sub-transmission & distribution line maintenance
and repair, Transformer maintenance & repair and others keeping in view the
requirement to maintain the network in optimal manner not only to address the
issues of safety and maintenance but also to reduce technical losses in order to

improve its performance on AT&C loss trajectory.

Hon’ble Commission had approved total cost of Rs. 90.24 Crs for FY 22-23, out of
which Rs. 60.24 Crs was approved by Hon’ble Commission at the rate of 5.4% of
the GFA as on 1.04.2022 in line with the OERC Tariff Determination Regulation
2014 and Rs. 30 Crs for maintenance of assets under ODSSP, IPDS, RLTAP, RGGVY
& DDUGVY schemes, which continue to be with the Govt. of Odisha.

The actual expenses towards repair and maintenance have been Rs. 189.07 Crs. in

the FY 2022-23. The details of R&M expenses incurred in FY 2022-23 are given in

the following table.
Table 14: Repair & Maintenance (R&M) Expenses of FY 2022-23
(in Rs. Crs.)
s1 *Actual Expenses
Category Description as per Audited
No
Accounts
1 STS AMC - Primary Substations & Feeders 12,51
2 Material required for Maintenance of 33 KV 1.82
Network
3 Testing/Overhauling/Reconditioning of 3.33
Transformers
4 Materials for Repairing/Service of Circuity
Breakers/CT&PT
5 | Distribution | Distribution AMC Contract 11442
6 Distribution Materials (O/H) 10.15
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s1 *Actual Expenses
No Category Description as per Audited
Accounts
7 Distribution Materials (U/G) 7.72
8 Material & Services for Distribution Transformer 13.47
Repairing
9 Others PSC 0.85
10 Admin. AMC 24.79
11 Civil 0.01
Total - A 189.07
12 | GOVT.FUND | R&M-P&M -
Total - B -
GRAND Total (A+B) 189.07
13 Less amortisation of Govt Grant shown in Misc. -
Income in audited Accounts.
14 Net Repair and Maintenance Charges shown 189.07
as per Audited Accounts for truing up

* Kindly refer previous year figures of Audited financials FY 2023-24

Extract of Audited Financials for FY 2023-24

Asg at As at
NOTES0 Othmysxpnases March 31,2024 March 31,2023
L crore € crore
Rental of land, buildings, plant and equipment, etc 2.86 213
Repair and maintenance-
-Bulldings and civil Works 0.12 0.19
-Plant and machinery . 176.21 187.36
-Furniture, vehicles, etc 0.53 1.52

71. The approval vis-a-vis actual expenses as per the audited balance sheet are detailed

in the following table.

Table 15: Approved vs Actual R&M Expenses for FY 2022-23

(in Rs. Crs.)
Approved by
Approved by OERC in True up :
Bt enditise OERC Order forming part | Actual I();fcfte;::lnc_e
P (Tariff Order of (Audited) Apptoved)
dtd.24.03.2022) | Tariff Order dtd PP
13.02.2024
A B C D=C-B
Repair and
. 90.24 112.46 189.07 76.61
Maintenance Cost

Justification for higher R&M Cost:

72. The R&M Expenditure is required to Operate and Maintain the Electrical
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towards consumption of material/consumables required from stores for
maintenance and also the expenditure towards Annual Contracts placed by
TPSODL for a) Operation of Power Substation (PSS) b) Maintenance of 33 KV /11
KV/415 V Networks, (c) Material and services of Testing/ Overhauling/

Reconditioning of Transformers etc.

The Annual Maintenance Contracts for maintenance of the power supply
infrastructure, covers both the infrastructure in the GFA /Books of TPSODL as
well as the Govt. Funded Infrastructure; the Hon'ble Commission shall appreciate
that both, the Company owned Assets as well as those financed by the
Government and transferred to the DISCOM to use and maintain, form part of the

same Distribution Network and consequently require similar maintenance.

Status of inherited Assets & previous maintenance practices

74.

75.

In this regard it is essential to state that TPSODL has taken over the assets of
erstwhile Southco Utility on “as is where is” basis. Majority of these assets are not
in good operating condition and in a large number of cases, the required safety
equipment is not in place. The interruption at 11 kV feeder level is too high with
respect to present Indian utility standards. Further, due to lack of maintenance,
failure rate of Distribution Transformer is also very high at 3.5%. The scarce
resources and lack of preventive maintenance have led to delay in response on

Safety Hazards reported by Public and employees.

It is pertinent to mention that, the entire network right from 33KV feeders to LT
consumers were previously owned and maintained only by the Junior Manager
(O&M) along with his team comprising of limited number of Lineman A/B/C,
Helper, and Jr. Technician posted in respective sections. E&MR section was
extending support to section staff for maintenance of 33/11KV primary
substations. As sufficient manpower was not available, only limited corrective

maintenance and restoration of power supply was in place.
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3.3.1. Approach adopted by TPSODL post takeover

76.

77.

To address the above issues and for proper maintenance of network, separate
AMCs have been introduced post takeover of TPSODL for all Six circles for
operation and maintenance of 33KV, 11KV & LT assets to create a culture of
preventive maintenance. The Performance Based Maintenance Contract also
includes 24X7 Breakdowns Crews for restoration of 33KV & 11KV feeders and
substation equipment. Besides, preventive maintenance activities are being
performed as per the maintenance plan and schedule prepared by TPSODL using
the SAP PM system.

The network is being inspected regularly through manual patrolling as well as
drone inspection in forest and inaccessible areas. Thermo-scanning is done for the
entire network using high power thermo scanning cameras and to identify the
defects, hotspots and attend breakdowns in quick time and perform preventive
maintenance activities to enhance system reliability by rectifying the probable

faults even before they occur.

Services included under AMC:

78.

The Annual Maintenance Contract (AMC) under TPSODL is divided into two (2)
categories:
a. 33kV Lines and 33kV/11kV PSS (periodic inspection and breakdown
maintenance)
b. 11kV and LT Network (attending Breakdowns & no current complaints,

preventive maintenance)

Manpower Deployment Status under in AMC:
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ii. Preventive Maintenance

(1) 11kV AMC (Section Level): Separate Team along with vehicle
*  Group 1: Section Area<600 Sq. Km (1 Team): - 1Supervisor+ 6LM+4H
*  Group 2: Section Area 600 Sq. Km -1700 Sq. Km (2 Teams): -
1Supervisor+6LM+4H & 1Supervisor+2LM+2H
* Group 3: Section Area>1700 Sq. Km (3 Teams): - 1Supervisor+6LM+4H,
1Supervisor+2LM+2H & 1Supervisor+2LM+2H

BA Supervisor Engineer has been posted section wise for overall coordination,

planning & execution of O&M Jobs.

* BA Safety Engineer: 1 Per Division

(2) 33kV AMC (Sub-Division & Division Level): Separate Team along with
vehicle
* 3LM+3H (1 Team) per Sub-division and 1 Supervisor per Division for
PSS & 33 kV Feeders Maintenance
(3) PSS Operation:
» PSS Operation: 4LM+3H Per PSS and 1 Supervisor Per Division
* BA Safety Engineer: 1 Per Division

3.3.2. Snapshots of activities under R&M

A. Transformer & DSS-PSS R&M

Power Transformers Repair, DTR Repairing /Replacement/
Maintenance and overhauling Augmentation/Swapping

» 553 PTRs in service in TPSODL: | = Improvement in the failure rate of transformer:
Majority of these are very old, FY22-23 is 297%. The failure rate of
having multiple issues like oil distribution transformers was 4% in FY20-21 &

leakages, low oil BDVs, OTI 3.46% in FY21-22. Major reasons for the DTR

/WTI not working, rusted failure are lightning, insulation failure, aging of
bodies, non-functional OLTCs, the transformers, Internal short circuit,
insulation failure due to aging overloading, unbalancing load of the DTs.

etc. * 2,717 Nos. of DIR repairing has been done

from April’22 to March’23.

-
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Power Transformers Repair,
Maintenance and overhauling

DTR Repairing /Replacement/
Augmentation/Swapping

= 16 PTRs have been repaired, and | =
47 PTRs have been overhauled.

Mar’23.

15,566 nos. of Lighting arrestor installed so far
to protect the transformer from Lightning, DTR
Oil leakage attended is 1,025 Nos. and

= 2,079 faulty DTR replaced from April’22 to

* Load monitoring and balancing of DTRs.

* 400 nos. of Overloaded DTR augmented from
April'22 to Mar’23.

DSS Maintenance

PSS equipment and Protection and
testing

* 58,732 Distribution Substations (DSS) and

having mostly -

oearthing system in very bad condition

oAB switches are bypassed /non-operational.

oand HG / DD fuses too are bypassed/broken.

* Focused preventive maintenance effort and

budgetary provision is essential.

Description | New | Replaced | Repaired | | * Repair activity of Battery
AD Swiich 33 976 oL Chargers is under progre
(Nos.) & Progress.
HG Fuse 264 1668 2555
(Nos.)

= 250 Nos. of 33kV/11kV PSS.

* The availability of maintenance
materials in stores is essential to
improve the equipment
downtime.

* 120 Nos. of Numerical Relays

have been installed.

B. R&M of Sub- Transmission and Distribution Lines

33kV Line

11 kV line

LT line

= 4046 CKM of 33kV
line network.
At

many  places

passing through
difficult terrain and
forest areas.

Many of these lines

* 45309 CKM 11 kV

network.

* At many places’ lines

are underrated,
uneven sized & worn-
out bare conductors

with extremely long

* 40,217 CKMs LT circuits.

* Large number of damaged
/bent/tilted poles, compromising
safety clearances and having low
sagging.

* For the transformer LT side

protection are bypassed or over-

are in poor condition - | span lengths. rated fuses have been installed, no .
AN 0055
/,‘Qf,_‘ e, O\
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33kV Line 11 kV line LT line

higher than | * The interruption at 11 | fuse box/MCCB box have been
recommended span | kV feeder level is too | installed at the site. In place of LT
length, sagging of | high with respect to | Fuse box/MCCB box, open
conductor, tilted | present Indian utility | aluminium wire wound fuses are
poles, damaged cross- standards. seen at almost every substation at

arms, worn  out | * Faults are majorly due | very low height which is highly

conductors and | to tree faults, bird | unsafe.

jumpers, old | fault, Pin insulators, | » Requirement of deteriorated LT

insulators etc. discs, poor conductor. ABC and conductors needs to be
* Requirement of | replaced.

intermediate poles to | ®* Lot of jumbling of service

avoid conductor | connections have been observed
collision and | on the poles with poor
snapping. connectivity with the LT ABC and

* Also, there are tilted | improper no. of connections

poles/ V cross arms | terminated on each phase, thus

which needs | leading to transformer load
replacement. unbalancing.
SL.
No Parameters UOM FY 22-23
1 33 kV Line - Tree Trimming CKM 3400
2 33kV Line Maintenance - Insulator Nos 1200
replacement
3 Installation of Intermediate Poles Nos 165
4 | Isolators / AB Switch Repaired Nos 478
Parameters UOM FY 22-23
5 11kV Line Maintenance (Tree CKM 12,221
Trimming, insulator replacement, V-
Cross arm replacement, etc.)
6 11 KV line Refurbishment CKM 49
7 | Replacement of Broken Pole Nos. 827
8 Erection of Intermediate Pole Nos. 3439
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9 Installation of Line AB Switch Nos. 453
10 | Replacement/Repairing of Line AB Nos. 2878
Switch
Parameters UOM FY 22-23
11 | LT Protection- LTDB - Installation Nos. 785
12 | LT Protection- Kit-Kat Fuse - Nos. 3572
Installation
13 | Extension of LT feeder ABC CKM 34
14 | Replacement of LT Poor CKM 238
Conductor/ ABC
15 | Replacement of LT Undersized CKM 64
Conductor/ ABC
16 | Replacement of Broken Pole Nos. 1230
17 | Erection of Intermediate Pole Erection Nos. 2860
18 | Cleaning of LT Pole Nos. 4406

C. Vacuum Circuit Breakers (VCB) R&M

* 2170 numbers of 33kV and 11kV VCBs (185 VCBs are either defective or in
very poor condition).
* TPSODL procures the VCB spares as well as repairs these VCBs through

service agencies.

D. HT (11kV) and LT Underground cable R&M
E. EARTHING

* Many of the old PSS have very bad earthing values and need renovation or new
pit construction as a priority. Also, 33kV line poles earthing is also not in good
condition.

* In Distribution also, the condition of the earthing is not good.

* 4,925 Nos. of New /reconditioning/ strengthening of earthing has been done
in the DSS, 11kV & LT network.

3.3.3. Historical Trend of R&M Expenditure

/S
</
3
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79. Further, as can be seen, the estimated expenditure for FY 2022-23 is higher than the

ii.

iii. ~The Norm of 5.4 % of the GFA was presumably fixed on the basis of the
expenditure carried out in the past. In our humble submission, the expenditure
on R&M as mentioned earlier was minimal and hence the norm of 5.4 % of the
GFA is clearly not adequate for carrying out satisfactory R&M expenditure. The
amount spent over in the past by erstwhile Southco Utility and by TPSODL is
as follows:

Table 16: R&M Expenditure trend over past periods
(in Rs. Crs.)
Company Pre-TPSODL/ TPSODL
FY Approved Audited
99-00 Pre-TPSODL 12.63 13.39
00-01 Pre-TPSODL 12.63 7.31
01-02 Pre-TPSODL 15.57 9.29
02-03 Pre-TPSODL 16.82 6.43
03-04 Pre-TPSODL 16.38 9.93
04-05 Pre-TPSODL 13.25 8.43
05-06 Pre-TPSODL 18.55 6.07
06-07 Pre-TPSODL 17.35 5.54
07-08 Pre-TPSODL 18.38 5.5
.'\,4{‘

approved expenditure. In this regard we would like to submit the following;

One of the reasons for inadequate reliability as well as the high technical loss is
that sufficient quantum is not spent on R&M Expenditure. It is noted that the
due to shortage of funds under these heads, the erstwhile discom had resorted
to only breakdown maintenance which takes its toll on the reliability of the
Network. Unless sufficient amounts are allowed by the State Regulatory
Commissions in this head, the Distribution licensee will be forced to limit the
scope of preventive maintenance and condition-based maintenance through
Annual Maintenance Contracts (AMC).

It is further submitted that in addition to above AMC, in house expenditure is
required to be incurred for Power Transformer repairs, DTS repairs, DSS
Maintenance, DTR Replacement, 33 KV Line repairs and Maintenance, HT Line

Maintenance, LV Line Maintenance and maintenance of other equipment.
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Company Pre-TPSODL/ TPSODL
08-09 Pre-TPSODL 19.08 7.79
09-10 Pre-TPSODL 20.73 11.59
10-11 Pre-TPSODL 26.11 13.09
11-12 Pre-TPSODL 28.47 8.28
12-13 Pre-TPSODL 28.28 8.97
13-14 Pre-TPSODL 43.53 15.02
14-15 Pre-TPSODL 39.19 12.02
15-16 Pre-TPSODL 31.93 16.82
16-17 Pre-TPSODL 33.18 9.74
17-18 Pre-TPSODL 34.91 6.74
18-19 Pre-TPSODL 39.19 6.78
19-20 Pre-TPSODL 44 4.59
20-21 Pre-TPSODL 45.96 6.2
21-22 TPSODL 88.57 90.68
22-23 TPSODL 90.24 189.07

3.3.4. R&M for Govt. Assets

80. The Hon'ble Commission had approved an expenditure of Rs 30 Crs on
Government Funded assets. It is submitted that asset base of Government Assets
is about Rs 3916 Crs. This is clearly more than 2 times the asset base of TPSODL as
on 1st April 2022. Hence the amount of Rs 30 Crs is not adequate to maintain such
large asset base. The break-up of the Government Assets being maintained by

TPSODL is as follows

Table 17: Government Asset Base maintained by TPSODL as on 1st April 2022

Name of the Scheme (in Rs. Crs.)

Integrated Power Development Scheme -IPDS 241.64
Dindayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojna -DDUGY 395.08
Dindayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojna -DDUGY 12th Plan (POWER 582,70
GRID) )
Dindayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojna -DDUGY 11th Plan (POWER 269.58
GRID) )
Dindayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojna -DDUGY 11th Plan (NTPC) 113.98
Dindayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojna -DDUGY 12th Plan (NTPC) 375.36
RGGVY 11.59
RGGVY 10th & 11th Plan (NTPC, PGCIL, NHPC) 921.77
Pradhan Mantri Sahaj Bijli har Ghar Yojna under SOUBHAGYA 191.41
SETU 14.20
Odisha Distribution System Str3916.09hening Project-ODSSP 698.87
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Name of the Scheme (in Rs. Crs.)
BGJY- OPTCL DTR 45.71
Integrated Power Development Scheme-(IPDS IT Ph-II) 54.20
Total Government Assets 3916.09
R&M on Government Assets @ 3% 117.48

81. It is submitted that the R&M Expenditure includes the expenditure towards the
consumption of materials/ consumables which are essential for the maintenance,
as well as the expenditure towards Annual Maintenance Contracts (AMCs)

performed by TPSODL for various activities.

82. Therefore, the Hon'ble Commission is requested to consider the various critical
activities carried out by the licensee for improving the quality and reliability of
power supply and for loss reduction over a vast licence area spread over 48,751
sq. kms., and allow the actual R&M expenditure amounting to Rs. 189.07 Crs for
truing up, as per the audited accounts for FY 22-23.
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&4Admm15trat1ve & GeneralExpenses

83. TPSODL was vested on 01.01.2021 vide Commission’s order in Case No. 83 of 2020
dated 28.12.2020. The commission in the vesting order had allowed TPSODL to file
a separate Annual Business Plan (ABP) for FY 2021-22 with respect to the O&M
expenses. The Commission while disposing such order in Case No.39 of 2021 dated
29.10.2021, allowed additional A&G expenses of Rs.25.05 Crs for FY 2021-22 over
the earlier approved Rs. 45.13 Crs. Therefore, the total approval for FY 2021-22 was
Rs.72.20 Crs. Hon’ble Commission in the RST Order for FY 22-23 has approved
total A&G expenses of Rs. 77.25 Crs escalating the previous year’s approval by 7%
against the proposed expense of Rs. 113.82 Crs.

84. However, the approval accorded by Hon'ble Commission in the ABP order was
with reference to the A&G expenses incurred by the erstwhile licensee.
Considering the ABP filed by TPSODL, Hon'ble Commission has allowed
additional Rs.25.05 Crs. with the following observation under para 110 of ABP

order:

“110. On the above submissions the Commission observes that the expenditure on the A&G
is a controllable expense and as per the OERC Tariff Determination Regulation additional
expenses are allowed in this head for specific measures towards reduction of AT&C losses
and improving collection efficiency. We find that the proposals mainly relate to improving
metering management and services and customer services which are vital elements in
reducing AT&C losses. The TPSODL is a new operating company and we believe that they
have planned out their activities diligently for improving the overall distribution business.
At this stage we allow the additional A&G expenses of about sixty percent of the approved
cost of Rs.45.13 crore in the ARR for FY 2021-22. The Commission now allows the total
A&G expenses of Rs.72.20 crore for FY 2021-22.

However, the petitioner is directed to produce the required justifications for such
additional expenses under the head A& G expenses incurred in the truing up petition
for FY 2021-22. The expenses under this head will accordingly be allowed after

prudence check.”
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85. The actual A&G expenses have been Rs. 96.77 Crs. in the 1st complete year of

operation that is FY 2021-22. In the second complete year of operation that is FY
22-23, the actual A&G expenses is Rs. 180.47 Crs. The details are furnished in the

following table.

Table 18: Administrative & General (A&G) Expenses for FY 2022-23

(in Rs. Crs.)
g " oondhual  f e dor
ot Description Expenges e Truing Up
Nq. e | per Audited FY 2022-23
‘ , Accounts st
1 | Rent, Rates & Taxes 213 2.13
2 | Watch & ward Expenses 4.28 4.28
3 | Communication 224 2.24
4 | Legal, Consultancy & Professional Charges 8.82 8.82
5 | Conveyance & Travelling 19.34 19.34
6 | Licence & Related Expenses 2.01 2.01
7 | Advertisement Expenses (Public Relation) 1.66 1.66
8 | Metering, billing and collection expenses 88.39 88.39
9 | Printing & Stationary 291 291
10 | Enforcement Activities L1l 5.
11 | Training 1.17 1.17
12 | Insurance 2.13 213
13 | House Keeping 8.91 8.91
14 | Facility Management Services 1.26 1.26
15 | Electricity expenses 4.28 4.28
16 | Fooding Expenses 11.93 11.93
17 | Other Expenses 13.71 13.71
18 | Outsource and contractual employees’ expenses * 86.24
Total - A 266.72 180.47
19 | Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debt 59.25 18.14
Total - B 59.25 18.14
Grand Total (A+B) 325.97 198.61
20 Less:- Provision for bad & doubtful debts shown 59.25 1814
separately |
‘21 | Administrative & General Expenses 26672 18047 |
P S
Ne Ny
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Extract of Audited Financials for FY 2023-24

As at As at

NOTE30 Other dxpenses March 31,2024 March 31,2023

¥ crore T crore

Rental of land, buildings, plant and equipment, etc 2.86 213 [

Repair and maintenance-

-Buildings and civif Works 0.12 0.19
-Plant and machinery 176.21 187.36
-Furniture, vehicles, etc 0.53 1.52
Outsource and contractual employees expenses {Refer note 30.01) 89.25 86.24
Travelling 10.95 19.57
Metering, billing and collection 73.14 88.39
Legal and profassional charges (Refer note 30.02) 9.69 L B.17]
Allowance for doubtful receivables 42.89 59.25
Telephone expenses 4.62 2.24
Fooding and Conveyance expenses 7.75 11.93
License fees 2.52 1.92
Insurance 1.32 213
Printing and stationery 219 3.01
Provision for contingendies 0.24 5.79
CSR expenditure (Refer note 30.03) 1.55 1.26
Rebate on OTS Collection 0.38 1.97
Miscellaneous expenses 31.93 31,97

Total other expensas 458.13 515.04

86. Section 57(c) of the Vesting order categorically requires DISCOM to provide
component wise expenditure with Hon’ble Commission undertaking a prudence
check of the submission before allowing them. The relevant extract of Vesting

order reproduced hereunder:

“57 (c) For the subsequent years, TPSODL shall include the estimated expense foreach
component of O&M expense in the Aggregate Revenue Requirement petition submitted to the
Commission as per the Tariff Regulations. The Commission shall undertake a prudence check
of the submission made by TPSODL before allowing the same in Aggregate Revenue
Requirement. Provided that the actual expenses allowed shall be subject to true-up as per the
Tariff Regulations.”

87. Further, the Hon'ble Commission while approving the RST Tariff for FY 2022-23
vide its order dated 24.03.2022, has made the following observations -

124. The Commission further observes that the DISCOMs shall make the expenditure in A&G
Expenses head in a prudent manner and achieve the objectives for which these expenses are
being made. The Commission will extensively check such expenses made by the DISCOMs
while allowing them in the Truing up. The higher expenses in A&G shall also reflect in the
reduction of AT&C losses and general improvement in the customer services. The Commission

will also take into account such parameters while scrutinizing A&G expenses.
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Justification for higher A&G Cost:

88. The actual expenditure of FY 2022-23 is higher than that approved by the Hon’ble

Commission in the Tariff Order due to the following.

i.  The quantum of Rs 77.25 Crs is arrived at based on the amount approved
by the Hon’ble Commission for FY 2021-22. In other words, the amount
could not be approved on the basis of data of actual expenditure of

TPSODL and was in a nature of adhoc amount.

ii. TPSODL commenced its journey on 1%t January 2021 and the first year of
operation commencing 15t April 2021 did not indicate the stabilised activity
where the MBC and other contracts were being placed by TPSODL. It is
only in FY 2022-23, the operations had stabilised and the expenditure in

this year reflects a stable level of expenditure.

iii. It is also submitted that the above A&G expenditure is required for
efficiently running of the operations, increase collection and improve
billing processes, improve billing processes and providing improved
customer services across vast geographical area with significant LT

consumer base.

iv. The comparison between the expenses of FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23
would indicate that the increase in A&G Expenditure from FY 2021-22 to
FY 2022-23 primarily on account of increase in MBC costs. The increase in
MBC Costs have resulted in increase in Collection and eventually in have
translated into improvement in AT&C which reduced from 32.51% in FY
2021-22 to 26.95% in FY 2022-23. The graphs showing the performance for

two years is given below.
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| Improvement in Billing Efficiency %
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Improvement in AT&C Loss Levels (FY 2022-23 vs FY 2021-22)

52.04%

39.25% "
- 37.80% 35.59%

29.15%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY
w——FY-22 FY-23

Figure 5: Comparison of AT&C Loss levels (FY 2022-23 vs FY 2021-22)

89. Further, the Licensee would like to inform the Hon'ble Commission that the A&G
expenses for FY 2022-23 proposed for truing up also includes Rs. 1.19 Crs. paid as
compensation to the victim/legal heir as per the directives of statutory bodies for
electrical accident/ electrocution incidents prior to the Effective Date of the Vesting
Order. Relevant extract of the Vesting Order is extracted hereinunder -

53. Treatment of past litigations

(a) The liabilities or gains arising out of litigation, suits, claims, etc. pending on, and/or
arising due to events prior to the Effective Date, shall be allowed by the Commission in
the Aggregate Revenue Requirement subject to prudence check.

(b) TPSODL shall make all diligent efforts to contest the litigation, suits, claims etc. as
if it is a party to such litigation, suits, claims etc. and satisfy the Commission in this

regard.

90. The approval vis-a-vis actual expenses as per the audited balance sheet are detailed

in the following table.
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Table 19: Approved vs Actual A&G Expenses for FY 2022-23

(in Rs. Crs.)
Approved by
Keotaeadi OERC in True
PP y up Order Difference
Expenditure OFC forming part Agtual (Actual
P (Tariff Order &P (Audited)* 2
dtd.24.03.2022) of A ppioved)
it S Tariff Order
did 13.02.2024
A B C D=C-B
AEIIEEEte 77.25 77.25 180.47 103.22
General Expenses

* Please refer previous year figures of Audited financials FY-2023-24

91. That, in this regard, it is submitted that Regulation 3.9.17 of the Tariff Regulations,
2022 provides for additional expenses in addition to the normal A&G expenses,

subject to prudence check by the Hon'ble Commission.

3.9.17. The Commission, in addition to the normal A&G expenses may allow additional
expenses, under this head for special measures to be undertaken by the distribution
licensees which are not covered under Capital Investment plan approved by the
Commission.

Provided the Commission will undertake a prudence check before allowing such

expenditure.

92. Further, it may be submitted that only in FY 2022-23, the operations had stabilised
and the expenditure in this year reflects a stable level of expenditure. In this
context, the petitioner is requesting the Hon’ble Commission to consider the A&G
expenditure proposed for FY 2022-23 as the benchmark, based on which the A&G

expenses of future years will be allowed.

93. Therefore, Hon’ble Commission is requested to consider the actual A&G

expenses incurred in FY 22-23 amounting to Rs. 180.47 Crs for truing up.
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5. Provision for Bad & Doubful Debis

94. The Hon’ble Commission had allowed Rs. 12.99 Crs towards provision for bad and
doubtful debts. As per audited accounts, provision for bad and doubtful debt is
Rs. 59.25 Crs.

95. In this regard, it is submitted that Regulation 5.8.1 of the Tariff Regulations, 2022
provides that the Bad and Doubtful debt during the control period shall be allowed

on normative basis of 1% of the total annual revenue billed for sale of electricity.

96. That, in line with the provisions 1% of total Gross sales in the FY 2022-23, Rs. 18.14

Crs has been considered towards provision of Bad and Doubtful debt.

97. For true up, Hon’ble Commission is requested to allow Rs. 18.14 Crs towards
provision of bad and doubtful debt for the FY 22-23.
Table 20: Approved vs Actual Provision for bad & doubtful debt for FY 2022-23

(in Rs. Crs.)
Approved by
OERC in True
ApporoE\l:eg by up Order Difference
Expenditure ; forming part Actual (Actual -
(Tariff Order 5 e
dtd.24.03.2022) Tariff Order
dtd 13.02.2024
A B C D=C-B
Provision of bad
and doubtful debt 12.99 17.93 18.14 0.21
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98. For FY 2022-23, Hon'ble Commission has approved Rs. 32.03 Crs towards
depreciation in the Tariff order notified on 24.3.2022. The method of calculation of

depreciation after vesting of the Utility in TPSODL has been specified under clause
43 (g) and (h) of the Vesting Order dated 28.12.2020 in case no - 83/2020. The

relevant extracts are reproduced hereunder:

“ 43 (g) The capital investments made by TPSODL shall be allowed recovery of depreciation in

line with the rates prescribed in Annexure - 3 till the time applicable regulation is notified by

the Commission. The depreciation rates specified in regulations shall prevail over the rates

specified in Annexure-3 as and when applicable regulation is notified by the Commission.

(WDepreciation on all existing assets transferred to TPSODL shall be determined based on the

existing methodology being followed by the Commission.”

99. Accordingly, for the FY 2022-23, Rs. 40.86 Crs has been considered towards

depreciation (Net off Govt. grant - consumer contribution amortization) for

truing up, which may kindly be approved by Hon’ble Commission.

Table 21: Approved vs Actual Depreciation for FY 2022-23

(Rs. in Cr)
Approved by
Approxedby OERC in True up :
OERe Order formin, Actual Diffsrence
Expenditure | (Tariff Order p:\rt of 8 ‘ (Actual -
dtd.24.)03.2022 Tariff Order dtd Approved)
13.02.2024
A B C D=C-B
Depreciation (Net
off Govt. grant -
consumer 32.03 45.95 40.86 (5.09)
contribution
amortization)
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(7. Intrest Cost on Securiy Deposit and Working Captal

100. Hon’ble Commission approved Rs.12.26 Crs towards the interest on SD
(Rs.12.26 Crs) and Interest on working capital (Nil) for the FY 2022-23 in the Tariff
Order dated 24.3.2022

101.  As per the OERC (Terms and conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff
and Retail Supply tariff) Regulations, 2022, Interest on working capital shall be

allowed as follows.

“ 3.10.1 The Distribution Licensee shall be allowed interest on the estimated level of working
capital for the Wheeling and Retail supply business for the Financial Year. The working capital
for the purpose of ARR calculation shall be computed as follows:

a.  Operation and maintenance expenses for one month; plus
b.  Maintenance spares @ twenty (20) % of average R&M expense for one month;plus
C. Power Purchase Cost for one (1) month

Working Capital requirement of the Distribution Licensees may be met through depreciation
allowed by the Commission on the assets of erstwhile DISCOMs ina manner mentioned in the
Vesting Orders and as approved by the Commission. Shortfall in meeting the working capital
requirement as mentioned above shall beallowed. The interest on the working capital shall be at
a rate equal to the SBI Base Rate or any replacement thereof by SBI from time to time (being in
effect applicable for 1 year period) as applicable as on 1tApril of the Financial Year (for which
Truing Up shall be done) plus 300 basis points or actual weighted average rate of interest
towards loan for meeting working capital requirement availed by the Distribution Licensee(s),

whichever is lower:”

102.  Accordingly, TPSODL has derived the working capital requirement and

interest there on as detailed in the following table.
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Table 22: Interest on WC and security deposits (Norm.) for FY 2022-23

(in Rs. Crs.)

Sl No. Particulars Amount

1 Operation & maintenance expenses

Employee cost 44091

Other Expenses 369.54

Total O&M 810.45

Operation & maintenance expenses Per annum 810.45

Operation & maintenance expenses Per month 67.54

2 Power purchase cost for one month 89.11

3 Maintenance of spare@20% of R&M Expenses 3.15

4 Depreciation on Legacy asset -21.86

TOTAL 137.93

Interest rate on working capital - Actual 6.58%

5 Interest on Working Capital 9.08

6 Interest on security deposits 18.68

7 Other Finance Cost 14.00

8 Total interest including interest on SD 41.75

103. Interest on security Deposit of Rs. 18.68 Crs has been considered as per actuals
in the annual audited accounts and interest on working capital Rs. 9.08 Crs

(normative) and other finance cost of Rs. 14 Crs as detailed in the above table.

104. That, Hon'ble Commission is requested to allow Rs. 41.75 Crs towards
interest on working capital and interest on SD. The details have been furnished

in Format-TU-9.
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Table 23: Approved vs Actual Interest on loan including interest on SD for FY 2022-

23
(in Rs. Crs)
Approved by
Approved by | OERC in 'I:rue up Difference
: OERC Order forming part : 3
Expenditure : Normative | (Normative -
(Tariff Order of A pravad)
dtd.24.03.2022) | Tariff Order dtd PP
13.02.2024
A B C D=C-B

Interest on loan
including 12.26 22.08 41.75 19.67
interest on SD

[38  Interest on Long Term Loan on normative basis

105.

As per clause no. 3.5.1 of Tariff Regulation, 2022, in case of fixed asset

capitalized on account of capital expenditure incurred prior to April 1, 2023, debt

equity ratio as allowed by the Commission for determination of tariff for the period
ending March 31, 2023 shall be considered.

106.

The Tariff Regulations 2022 allow 70% of the capitalisation to be funded by loan

or Debt. However, in case the loan is higher than 70% (i.e. Equity less than 30%),

then such higher loan would be considered for the purpose working out the ARR.
The extracts of the Tariff Regulations 2022 are as follows:

3.7.1. The loans arrived at in the manner indicated in these Regulations on the assets

loan:

excluded:

put to use, shall be considered as gross normative loan for calculation of interest on

Provided that interest and finance charges on capital works in progress shall be

3.7.2. The normative loan outstanding as on 1st April shall be worked out by deducting

the cumulative normative repayment as admitted by the Commission up to 31st March
of the previous year.
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Provided that the assets of erstwhile DISCOMs as on effective date in terms of the
provisions of Vesting Orders shall not be eligible for calculation of interest on loan.

3.7.3. The normative repayment for the year during the Control Period shall be deemed
to be equal to the depreciation allowed for that year.

3.7.5. The rate of interest shall be the weighted average rate of interest calculated on the
basis of the actual loan portfolio at the beginning of each year applicable to the
Distribution Licensee:

107.  The applicant has considered a Debt of 70% of Capitalisation for the new
Projects. As regards the Weighted Average Interest rate ,we have considered the
same as 7.34%, based on actual loan portfolio for FY 2022-23 and the applicable
interest to such loans.

Table 24: Interest on Long Term Loan for FY 2022-23

(in Rs. Crs.)
:].:;‘ Particulars FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23
1 | Opening Balance - Normative Loan - 98.50
2 | Add: Loan (Normative) during the year 101.58 282.52
3 Less: Repayments during the Year (Equal to 3.08 18.99
depreciation)
4 | Closing Balance 98.50 362.02
5 | Average Balance 49.25 230.26
6 | Weighted Average Rate of Interest -~ Actual 6.90% 7.34%
7 | Interest Amount 3.40 16.90
8 | Capitalisation 145.11 403.59
9 | Capitalisation Funded by:
10 | Debt (70%) 101.58 282.52
11 | Equity (30%) 43.53 121.08

108. Therefore, Hon’ble Commission is requested to consider normative interest
on Term Loan of Rs 16.90 Crs for true -up for the FY 2022-23. The details have

been furnished in Format-TU-8.

Table 25: Approved vs actual Interest on Long Term Loan for FY 2022-23

(inRs. Crs.)
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Approved by
Approved by ;
OERC OEg;:r‘ ;f)‘;“nizp Difference
Expenditure | (Tariff Order o o% Normative | (Normative -
dtd.24.03.2022) Tariff Order dtd Approved)
13.02.2024
A B C D=C-B
Interest on Long 5.00 16.64 16.90 0.26
Term Loan

Table 26: Summary of Interest cost approved and interest cost sought

(in Rs. Crs.)
Approved by
Arpeorcdiin OERC in True
S1 i prder Approval
Particulars RST Order | forming part
No. of sought
March 2022 Tariff Order
dtd 13.02.2024
1 | Interest on working capital 0.00 9.03 23.08
2 | Interest on Security Deposit 12.26 13.05 18.68
3 Interest on Term Loan (Less 5.00 16.64 16.90
interest capitalized)
Total 17.26 38.72 58.66

LB“Q;;? Retum on EE]Uity

109.
58. Return on equity:

As per the Vesting Order, the Return on Equity would be available as follows:

(a) As per the terms of the REP, the Commission shall allow return on equity, as per
the Tariff Regulations, to TPSODL on the equity capital of Rs. 200 crores (Indian
Rupee Two hundred crores) only which was the reserve price of the utility of

SOUTHCO.
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(b) Return on equity shall be allowed on the reserve price of the utility as per para 58(a)
above and also on the capital investments made by the TPSODL, as per the Tariff
Regulations.

The Tariff Regulations specify the following with regards to the Return on

Equity for any year in the Control Period.

Return on Equity as per the New Tariff Regulations
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3.6.1. Return on equity on approved reserve price (INR 300 Crore for TPCODL, INR
300 Crore for TPWODL, INR 250 Crore for TPNODL and INR 200 Crore for
TPSODL) for the utilities (TPCODL, TPWODL, TPNODL & TPSODL) of the
erstwhile Distribution utilities as on effective date in terms of the provisions of Vesting
Orders:

Return on equity shall be allowed on the approved reserve price of the utility from the
effective date of operation at the rate of 16% per annum (post tax), in Indian Rupee

terms on pro-rata basis as per Vesting Order.

3.6.2. Return on equity on the assets put to use after Effective Date up to date of
applicability of these Regulations:

Return on equity on assets put to use after Effective Date up to date of applicability of
these Regulations shall be eligible to get return as per Odisha Electricity Regulatory
Commission (Terms and Conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail

Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2014 and its amendments thereof.

3.6.3. Return on equity on the assets put to use under instant Regulations:

Return on equity on assets put to use under these Regulations shall be computed on the
paid-up equity capital determined in accordance with these Regulations and shall be

allowed at the rate of 16% per annum (post tax), in Indian Rupee terms:

Provided further that for the purpose of truing up for the Distribution Licensee, return

on equity shall be allowed from the date of commercial operation on pro-rata basis based
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on documentary evidence provided for the assets put to use during the Yyear in absence

of which the assets shall be considered to be added in the mid of the year.

111.  Based on the above, the Return on Equity for FY 2022-23 has been calculated
@16%, details are furnished in the following table.
Table 27: Return on Equity and Income Tax for FY 2022-23

(in Rs. Crs.)

SL. No Particulars FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23
1 Opening Equity 200.00 243.53
2 Normative Equity based on Assets Capitalization 43.53 121.08
3 Total (1 + 2) 243.53 364.61
RoE (on Opening Equity @ 16%) 32.00 38.97
RoE(Addition) 3.48 9.69

4 Return on Equity (RoE) 35.48 48.65
Income Tax Rate 25.17%
Income Tax Grossed up for RoE 16.36

4 Return on Equity including Income Tax 64.97

112.  That, Hon’ble Commission is requested to allow ROE of Rs. 48.65 Crs and
tax on RoE Rs. 16.36 Crs for FY 2022-23. The details have been furnished in the
in Format-TU-6 & Format-TU-1.

Table 28: Approved vs Actual Return on Equity for FY 2022-23

(in Rs. Crs.)
Approved by
OERC in True
APPOIOE‘;CCI by up Order Difference
Expenditure ; forming part | Actual (Actual -
(Lariff Order of Approved)
dtd.24.03.2022) Tariff Order
dtd 13.02.2024
A B C D=C-B
Return on equity 32.00 48.69 48.65 (0.04)
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310, Miscellaneous Receipt/ Non- Tarif Income ]

113.  The netted off miscellaneous receipt/non-tariff income for FY 2022-23 is Rs.
74.28 Crs. The detail breakup is produced in the following table as well as in
Format- TU-7.

Table 29: Miscellaneous Receipt/ Non-Tariff Income for FY 2022-23

(in Rs. Crs.)

Truing Up

SL. No. Particulars sought for

FY 2022-23
1 Recovery of Meter Rent 9.60
2 Overdrawal penalty recovered 1.03
3 Open Access Cross Subsidy Income 0.00
4 Supervision Charges 11.26
5 Miscellaneous operating Income 26.20
6 Interest Income 19.73
7 Delayed payment surcharge 13.64
8 Other Income 242
Total 83.88

114. That, Hon’ble Commission is requested to consider Rs. 83.88 Crs towards

miscellaneous income/ non-tariff income for truing-up for the FY 2022-23.

Table 30: Approved vs Actual Misc. Receipts for FY 2022-23

(in Rs. Crs)
Approved by

Approved by :

OERC Ogi(;:lf‘;;uﬁiup Difference

Expenditure (Tariff Order St oF 8 Actual (Actual -
dtd.24.)03.2022 Tariff Order dtd Approved)
13.02.2024
A B C D=C-B
Misc. income 35.16 66.15 83.88 17.73
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312 Truingup Summary for the FY20225

Table 31: Truing up of FY 2022-23

(in Rs. Crs.)
Approved by OERC in
PP y . Audited RSisenct frpm D Additional | Para/
; True up Order forming { ; previous year number Considering
Expenditure Financials FY : ) amount Table
part of 22.23 of Audited Annual Normative T&D L5 e
Tariff Order dtd 13.02.2024 Accounts FY-2023-24 loss 25.00%
A B C D E=D-A

INPUT(MU) 4207.52 4188.45 4207.52
Cost of power purchase 955.50 951.17 955.50
Transmission Cost 117.30 117.30 117.30
SLDC Cost 0.79 0.79 0.79
Less: Rebate -11.44 -11.44 -11.44
?X;ﬁl Fowerpurchase/Cost 1,062.36 1,057.82 Note-26 1,062.15
Employee Cost 381.53 386.22 Note-28 440.91* 59.38 | Table- 11
Repair & Maintenance Cost
(Net off Govt. Grant 112.46 189.07 Note-30 189.07 76.61 | Table- 15
Amortisation)
Pl Thatve S Genetal 77.25 266.72 Note-30 180.47 103.22 | Table- 19
Expenses
Ezz‘t’s‘s“’“ for bad & doubtful 17.93 59.25 Note-30 18.14 0.21 | Table- 20
Depreciation (Net off Govt.
Grant - Cons. Contbn 45.95 4674 |  Note-4 & 25.03 (b) 40.86 (5.09) | Table - 21
Amortisation)
Interest on loan including 2208 57.74 Note-29 41.75 19.67 | Table - 23
interest on SD
ETC RO S kot 16.64 0.89 Note-29 16.90 0.26 | Table-25
(normative)
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Approved by OERC in
L ) ; Audited ResesneE B 2002 Additional | Para/
; True up Order forming ! ; previous year number Considering
Expenditure Financials FY K X amount Table
part of 22.23 of Audited Annual Normative T&D songhe o
Tariff Order dtd 13.02.2024 Accounts FY-2023-24 loss 25.00%
A B C D E=D-A

Efficiency gain to be shared 3.87 3.87
Total Operation &
Maintenance and Other Cost s §-906:83 g
Return on equity 48.69 - 48.65 (0.04) | Table - 28
Income Tax 16.36 14.07 Note-31 16.36 0.00
Total Distribution Cost 742.76 1,020.70 996.99
Less Miscellaneous Receipts/ )
Nor-Tariff Income 66.15 112.20 Note-25.3 (b) & 26.01 83.88 17.73 | Table - 30
Net Distribution Cost (B) 676.61 908.49 913.11 236.50
Repayment of ASL
Aggregate Revenue 1,738.97 1,966.31 1,971.39 236.50
Requirement (i)
detualEevenucTetol 1,792.96 1,792.96 Note-25.03 () 1,792.96 0.00
discount (ii)
GAP (+/-) (i) - (i) 53.99 (173.35) (182.51) (236.50)
Expenses disallowed in last
truing-up order FY 21-22
Prov.lsmnal Surplus 0.00 0.00 53.99
considered

GAP (+/-) 54.00 (173.35) (182.51) (182.51)

Note: Outsource and contractual employee expenses of Rs.86.24 Crs grouped under employees cost in true up petition whereas same is grouped
under A&G expenses in audited FS.
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115. In view of the above, the licensee most humbly prays before Hon’ble

Commission to kindly consider the submissions made by the licensee and allow
gap/ (losses) of Rs. (182.51) Crs as the final true up for FY 2022-23 (i.e. Gap of Rs.
(236.50) Crs as shown in the table 30 above, as reduced by surplus of Rs. 53.99 Crs,
as per the earlier Tariff order dated 13.02.2024) along with carrying cost.
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4. Truing up of FY 2023-24

116. That, as per the OERC (Conduct of Business) Regulations, 2004 and the OERC

(Terms and Conditions for determination of Wheeling and Retail Supply Tariff)
Regulations, 2022; TPSODL had filed its Aggregate Revenue Requirement (ARR),
Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff (RST) Applications for FY 2023-24 on
10.01.2023, which was registered as Case no. 82 of 2022.

117.  That, TPSODL had also filed their applications for approval of Business Plan
for FY 2023-24 in compliance to OERC (Terms and Conditions for determination
of Wheeling and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2022 which were registered as
Case no. 12 of 2023, which was taken up for analogous hearing with its ARR & RST
applications for FY 2023-24 in compliance to the directions of the Commission in
their vesting orders. The Hon'ble Commission has accorded its approval for

Business Plan for FY 2023-24 on 23rd March 2023, the relevant extract is as below:

79. The Commission has reviewed the application of Business Plan of licensees and
found it appropriate to approve the ARR for FY 2023-24 (i.e. first year of the present
control period). Considering the prayers made by the licensees.

118. That, the Hon'ble Commission has Hon’ble Commission has accorded its
approval for the ARR of the Discoms for FY 2023-24 vide the Tariff Order dated
23rd March 2023.

119. That, TPSODL has requested approval for additional expenditure for FY 2023-
24 under the heads of (a) R&M expenditure, (b) A&G Expenditure vide its letter
no. TPSODL/Regulatory/2023/37/3983 dated 4t May 2023, citing deployment of
adequate manpower at FCCs and PSS as well as re-worked MBC contracts based

on the learning from 15t complete year of operation.

120. Subsequently, TPSODL has requested approval for additional O&M
expenditure for FY 2023-24 vide its letter no. TPSODL/Regulatory /2023 /46 /4940
dated 2nd June 2023; based on the reworked O&M estimate for FY 2023-24 which
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was lower than the proposed O&M figure in the ARR application submitted on

10t January 2023.

121. That, the Hon'ble Commission vide letter no. Secy/11-Corr--

TPSODL/2023/963 dated 12th July 2023, has clarified that-

This has reference to the letters cited above. In light of the request of the TPSODL,
TPCOCL and TPNODL for reconsideration of O&M expenses approved in the ARR for FY
2023-24, it may be appreciated that the ARR order for FY 2023-24 was pronounced after an

_ claborate hearing process whercin the views of all the Stakeholders and objectors placed

Jbefore the Commission were considered. Therefore, the Commission

order without adopting a review procedure.

cannot review such

The Commission therefore opines that the TPSODL, TPCOCL and TPNODL may
make their submissions with regard to any reconsideration of the approved expenses, allowed
in the ARR FY 2023-24, along with the submissions for the ARR of FY 2024-25. The

Commission may accordingly take a suitable view for any reconsideration of the approved

amounts, under these heads for FY 2023-24, while pronouncing the order for FY 2024-25.

122.  That, In line with Regulation 2.6.6 of the Odisha Electricity Regulatory

Commission (Terms and Conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and

Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations,2022 (Tariff Regulations or Tariff Regulations
2022), Section 62 of the Electricity Act 2003 and Regulation 53 of OERC (Conduct
of business) Regulations, 2004, TP Southern Odisha Distribution Ltd (TPSODL) is

filing the present application before the Hon'ble Commission for approval of

Truing up of expenses for FY 2023-24.

Table 32: Approved Annual Revenue Requirement of TPSODL for FY 2023-24,

Ref. Annexure-A of Tariff Order for FY 2023-24

(in. Rs. Crs.)
= Proposed for Approved by the

Expenditure FY 2023-24 | Commission for FY 2023-24
Cost of Power Purchase 1085.35 1,033.20
Transmission Cost 133.88 118.08
SLDC Cost 0.71 0.76
Total Power Purchase, Transmission &
SLDC Cost (A) 1,219.94 1,152.04
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Bipgditue Plr:(w)/p;(fzeeizf: ; Com;:ipsg:::l’efgrbg‘lt 2;23-24
Employee costs 639.14 526.00
Repair & Maintenance exp. 155.40 152.57
Administrative and General Expenses 137.47 112.66
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 19.86 19.91
Depreciation 62.09 52.15
Interest on loan and S.D 66.75 63.78
g),t;l Operation & Maintenance and Other 1,080.71 927.06
Less: Employee cost Capitalised 30.24 30.24
Less: Interest Capitalised - 4.00
Return on equity 54.14 39.67
Tax on ROE 20.80 -
Carrying Cost on Regulatory Asset/Liability - -
Repayment on ASL - -
Total Distribution Cost 1,125.41 932.49
illfsz.ml\glscellaneous Receipt/ Non-tariff 5557 55.80
Net Distribution Cost(B) 1,069.84 876.67
True up of Surplus/ (Losses) for FY 2021-22 - 67.86
True up of Surplus/ (Losses) for FY 2020-21 - 32.63
Provisional Surplus allowed in 2022-23 ARR - 60.00
BSP surcharge - .
Total Special Appropriation (C) - (40.49)
Total Revenue Requirement (A+B+C) 2289.78 1,988.22
Expected Revenue (Full year) 1985.81 1990.77
GAP at existing (+/-) (303.97) 2.55
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[ 4.1. Power Purchase Cost =~ = ]

123.  That, Hon’ble Commission had approved total input of 4920 MU for the FY
2023-24 with sales of 3,690.14 MU. In the FY 2023-24, the actual input has been
4345.31 MU and total sales has been 3,194.95 MU. With the actual sales of 3,194.95
MU with normative T&D loss of 25.00%, the normative Input for FY 23-24 comes
to 4259.93 MU. The normative power purchase cost for 4259.93 MU comes to Rs.
989.76 Crs. The details have been furnished in Annexure-TU-2. The approval of
Hon’ble Commission vis-a-vis the actual and normative power purchase are
detailed in the following table.

Table 33: Power Purchase Cost for FY 23-24 (in Rs. Crs.)

Approved by Actual True up Considering
Expenditure OERC (Audited | Normative T&D loss
FY 2023-24 Accounts) 25.00%

INPUT(MU) 4920.00 4345.31 4259.93
Cost of power purchase 1,033.20 912,51 894.58
Transmission Cost 118.08 103.69 103.69
SLDC Cost 0.76 0.76 0.76
Less: Rebate 0.00 -9.27 -9.27
Total Power purchase Cost(A) 1,152.04 1,007.69 989.76

Extract of Audited Financials for FY 2023-24

As at
NOTE 27 Cost of power purchased and transmission charges it 31'2:;: March 31,2023
¥ crore Ycrore
(a) Power Purchase Cost 912.51 951.17
(b) Transmission Charges 104.45 118.09
Less: Rebate (9.27) (11.44)
Total cast of power purchased and transmission charges (a+b) 1,007.69 1,057.82

124.  Therefore, for truing up, Hon'ble Commission is requested to consider the

normative power purchase cost of Rs. 989.76 Crs for the FY 2023-24.
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[’ 42 Employee Cost f

125.  Hon’ble Commission has approved Employee cost (net) of Rs. 495.76 Crs for

the FY 23-24. The actual expenses incurred towards employee cost (net) in FY 23-

24 is Rs. 474.97 Crs. The details of the same are presented in the following table-

Table 34: Employee Expenses for FY 23-24 (in Rs. Crs.)

As per Audited | Expenses Sought

Particulars Accounts for Truing Up

FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24

Salaries, wages and bonus 257.03 257.03
Outsource and contractual employees expenses 0.00 89.25
Contribution to provident and other funds 13.67 13.67
Staff welfare expenses 2411 2411
Terminal benefit expenses - Trust 125.30 125.30
Employees Actuarial Provision 4240 0.00
Total 462.51 509.36
Less - Employee cost capitalized -34.40 -34.40
Net Employee Cost 428.11 474.97

Note: Outsource and contractual employees expense of Rs. 89.25 Crs has been grouped
under employees cost in the True-up petition whereas same is grouped under A&EG

expenses in Audited Financials.

Extract of Audited Financials for FY 2023-24

NOTE 28 Empioyee benefits expense (Net)

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to gratuity fund (Refer Note 18)
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 18)
Staff welfare expenses

Gross banefit ex

Less: Employee cost capitalised / transfer to CWIP

Net emplovee benefits expense
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126.  The actual employee cost vis-a-vis approval of the Hon'ble Commission for the
FY 23-24 is given in the following table.
Table 35: Employee Cost Approved Vs Actual for FY 23-24 (in Rs Crs.)

Approved by Difference
Particulars OERC in Actual (Approved -
Tariff order Actual)
Employee Cost 526.00 509.35 16.65
Less -Employee cost capitalized 30.24 34.40 (4.16)
Net Employee Cost 495.76 474.97 20.81

127.  Further, the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms & Conditions
for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2022
(“Tariff Regulations,2022”), specifically provides the guidelines for new

recruitment by the licensee. Relevant extract is reproduced hereinunder:

3.9.11. The employee expense for the ensuing year shall be projected considering cadre
/designation wise average existing employee cost for past year where the number of new
employees to be added and their associated expenses shall be duly approved by the Commission
after prudence check. The projection for the recruitment for a year may be restricted to 1.40
employees (including replenishment of retiring vacancies) per 1000 consumers. In case the ratio
has exceeded 1.40, the Distribution Licensee shall bring down the ratio to 1.40 within the

control period.

128. The Hon'ble Commission in the Tariff Order for FY 2023-24 dated 23.03.2023,

while allowing Employee expenses has observed under para 119 that,

The Commission directs that employee cost needs to be restricted as per the ARR order, ABP

order and any other directions by the Commission in this regard.

129. In line with the above directives of the Hon’ble Commission, the licensee is
furnishing hereunder detailed justification for the actual employee cost incurred

in FY 23-24.
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Optimised Employee Cost

130.  Itis humbly submitted that Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms
& Conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff)
Regulations, 2022 (“Tariff Regulations, 2022"), specifically provides for the
Employee Expense / Cost.

131.  The Employee related expenses broadly fall into three (3) categories. Expense
related to (a) Erstwhile Employees of the licensee, (b) New Employees recruited by
the Licensee post the Effective date of vesting & (c) Outsourced and Contractual

manpower.

4.2.1. No. of Employees on roll of the licensee (Approved & Actual)

132. The Hon'ble Commission, based on the actual manpower status and
submission made, has approved the number of employees 3200 by the end of the
FY 2023-24, vide its Tariff Order dated 23rd March 2023. The extract reproduced

below.

105. The Commission after analysis for the purpose of calculation of Basic pay only considers
average no. Of employees during the current FY 2022-23 and also during the ensuing FY 2023-
24 for the inherited employees. As regards the CTC employees, similar methodology was
followed to the number of employees during the year keeping ratio of employees per 1000
consumers as 1.4. Accordingly, Commission approves following number of employees for the
DISCOM:s for FY 2023-24 only for the purpose calculation of basic pay.

Table 36: Approved Manpower for FY 2023-24, ref. table 29 of Tariff Order dtd.

23.03.2023
Employees Approved Inherited CTC | Total
No. of employees as on 01.04.2022 1858 475 | 2333
Add: Addition during 2022-23 0 496 496
Less: Retirement/Expired /Resignation during 2022-23 79 0 79
No. of employees as on 31.03.2023 1779 971 | 2750
Add: Addition during 2023-24 0 526 526
Less: Retirement/Expired/ Resignation during year 2023-24 76 0 76
Total no. of employees as on 31.03.2024 1703 1497 3200‘ @65/—&,
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It is submitted that TPSODL has recruited/inducted 1129 Employee till FY

2023-24, which are lower than the approved number by the Hon'ble Commission

i.e. 1497. The net addition of employees since the time of commencement of

operation since 1st January 2021 is as follows:

Table 37: Recruitment status of New Manpower till FY 2023-24

Sr | Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 22 FY 23 FY24
No (3 Months)
1 | Opening Balance 0 128 475 908
2 | Addition (Net of 128 347 433 221
attrition/Retirement)
3 | Closing Balance 128 475 908 1129

134. The Employee Strength of Erstwhile Utility over the period is as given in the
following table:
Table 38: Erstwhile Employee Movement till FY 2023-24
Sr No | Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 22 FY 23 Fy24
(3 Months)
Executives
1 Opening Balance 389 387 387 390
2 Retirement/Deletion 2 0 -3 7
3 Closing Balance 387 387 390 383
Non-Executives
4 Opening Balance 1613 1582 1468 1389
5 Retirement/Deletion 31 114 79 95
6 Closing Balance 1582 1468 1389 1294
Total
7 Opening Balance 2002 1969 1855 1779
8 Retirement/Deletion 33 114 76 102
9 Closing Balance 1969 1855 1779 1677
135. That, the effective manpower per 1,000 consumer ratio works out to be 1.24 for
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4.2.2. Expense related to Qutsource and Contractual employees

136.  As explained above, the licensee is judiciously recruiting new manpower to
optimize the manpower cost and further utilize the inherited outsourced and

contractual manpower from the erstwhile Discom.

137.  Further, it may be submitted that the erstwhile Discom has been managing the
vast geographical area, mainly with the help of a large number of outsourced and
contractual manpower. This manpower was deployed in almost all activities of
these Discom e.g. in rural electrification, addition of new consumers, in works
related to MRT, Energy Audit, maintenance of DTRs, watch & ward and vigilance

activities.

138.  Post takeover, the licensee re-engaged this experienced manpower in various
activities thus being able to keep the effective manpower to consumer ratio under

the approved limit.

139. That, the Commission has approved Rs. 95.00 Crs under Outsource and
Contractual employees Cost for FY 2023-24 against the estimate of Rs. 200.80 Crs
projected by the licensee. The Hon'ble Commission while approving the
Outsource and Contractual employees Cost vide the tariff Order dated 23.03.2023;

had made the following observation.

Outsource and Contractual employees Cost

109. As regards engagement of manpower, DISCOMs have submitted that as no recruitment
was permitted by the Commission, there has been drastic reduction in the manpower. In view
of the large-scale rural electrification, addition of new consumers, reorganization, MRT,
Energy Audit, maintenance of DTRs and vigilance activities etc., the present manpower was
inadequate. Consequently, in order to improve condition of supply, reduction of distribution
loss and to improve collection, DISCOMSs have engaged contractual personnel and outsource
agencies for maintenance of existing Grid substations, sub stations under ODSSP, watch and
ward activity, vigilance activities etc.

DISCOMs were asked to submit the actual expenses on these activities during the current

financial year 2022-23. The Commission after scrutiny allows the expenses on Contractual and
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outsource employees for the ensuing FY 2023-24 on the basis of the submission of DISCOMs
and actual cash outgo for the current FY 2022-23.

140. That, TPSODL has made very elaborate effort to optimize the inherited
Outsourced and Contractual manpower post takeover, and has redeployed the
manpower across various functions and geographies. These efforts have resulted
in finding the existing Gaps for effective operation of the licensee; which in turn

helped in framing the optimized New Manpower Recruitment policy.

141. That, based on the above, the licensee requests the Hon'ble Commission to
consider the actual Outsource and Contractual employees Cost of Rs 89.25 Crs for
truing up.

142.  That, TPCODL, on behalf of all Discoms, had requested revision of conveyance
allowance for the erstwhile employees in the Executive Cadre, vide its letters dated
7t August 2023. The Hon'ble Commission vide letter no. Secy/11-Corr-
/TPSODL/2023/1202 dated 17t August 2023 has clarified that “the Commission
has no objection on the revision of the proposed Conveyance Allowance in the
executive cadre of all DISCOMs in order to ensure operation efficiency and
compensate for increased fuel cost. This may also be placed by the DISCOM:s in

their respective Management Boards for approval.”

143.  As can be seen from the above explanation, the number of new employees
recruited is lower than the number already approved by the Hon’ble Commission.
Further the payment to erstwhile employees is on the basis of the rules of the
Government of Odisha and also after approval of the scheme by the Hon’ble

Commission.

144.  Further, we would like to submit that the Actual Employee Cost of Rs. 474.97
Crs, which is lower than the OERC approved Cost of Rs. 495.76 Crs. We therefore

request the Hon’ble Commission to approve the actual Employee Expenditure
of Rs 474.97 Crs for FY 2023-24 truing up.
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[ 43. Repair & Maintenance Expenses ]

145. This Hon'ble Commission vide the Tariff Order dated 23.03.2023 had allowed
the Repair and Maintenance (“R&M”) Expenditure of Rs. 152.57 Crs for FY 2023-
24.

146. In the ARR application for FY 23-24, outlining the requirement of a
comprehensive repair and maintenance plan, TPSODL had proposed total R&M
expenditure of Rs. 153.14 Crs, which was based on the level of expenditure for H1
FY 2022-23 and the contracts placed by TPSODL for proper reliability of the
network.

147.  That, The Hon’ble Commission while has made the following observations
while passing the Tariff Order for FY 2023-24 on 23rd March 2023.

130.

....... The expenses in R&EM shall also reflect in the achieving a robust and reliable
system network, lower network down time, desirable voltage profile and automation of
Substations. The Commission will also take into account such parameters while
scrutinizing R&M expenses through data verification, field visits and third-party
audit. The Commission hereby directs that the DISCOMs must limit its expenditure
within the amount approved in the ARR for the FY 2023-24.

148. Hon’ble Commission had approved total cost of Rs. 152.57 Crs towards the
R&M expense for FY 23-24, out of which Rs. 80.38 Crs. was approved by Hon'ble
Commission at the rate of 5.4% of the GFA as on 1.04.2023 in line with the OERC
Tariff Determination Regulation 2014 and 3% on Govt. Assets amounting to Rs.
72.19 Crs for maintenance of assets under ODSSP, IPDS, RLTAP, RGGVY &
DDUGVY schemes, which continue to be with the Govt. of Odisha.

149.  The actual expenses towards repair and maintenance have been Rs. 176.87 Crs
in the FY 2023-24. The details of R&M expenses incurred in FY 2023-24 are given
in the following table.

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 & Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21




TPS®DL

Table 39: Repair & Maintenance (R&M) Expenses of FY 2023-24

(in Rs. Crs.)
s1 | *Actual Expenses
N Category Description as per Audited
0
Accounts
1 STS AMC - Primary Substations & Feeders 15.53
2 Material required for Maintenance of 33 KV 2.56
Network
3 Testing/Overhauling/Reconditioning of 2.20
Transformers
4 Materials for Repairing/Service of Circuity 0.02
Breakers/CT&PT
5 | Distribution | Distribution AMC Contract 112.58
6 Distribution Materials (O/H) 8.15
7 Distribution Materials (U/G) 6.29
8 Material & Services for Distribution Transformer 6.28
Repairing
9 Others PSC 2.21
10 Admin. AMC 21.05
11 Civil 0.01
Total -A 176.87
12 | GOVT.FUND | R&M-P&M -
Total - B -
GRAND Total (A+B) 176.87
13 Less amortisation of Govt Grant shown in Misc. -
Income in audited Accounts.
14 Net Repair and Maintenance Charges shown 176.87
as per Audited Accounts for truing up
Extract of Audited Financials for FY 2023-24
NOTE 30 Othar axpenses March 31,;;;: March 31,;:;;
Rental of land, buiidings, plant and equipment, etc —%——E‘?ﬂﬁ
O adings and e Works 0.12 019
Fomiore, venos, etc Vo e

150. The approved vis-a-vis actual expenses as per the audited balance sheet are

detailed in the following table.

Table 40: Approved vs Actual R&M Expenses for FY 2023-24

(in Rs. Crs.)
J Approved by Actual Difference
EXpenditure OERC (Audited) | (Approved -Actual)
Repair and Maintenance Cost 152.57 176.87 (24.30)
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Optimised R&M Cost as compared to FY 2022-23 (actual)

151. The R&M Expenditure is required to Operate and Maintain the Electrical
Equipment used for Distribution. This expenditure includes the expenditure
towards consumption of material/consumables required from stores for
maintenance and also the expenditure towards Annual Contracts placed by
TPSODL for a) Operation of Power Substation (PSS) b) Maintenance of 33 KV/11
KV/415 V Networks, (c) Material and services of Testing/ Overhauling/

Reconditioning of Transformers etc.

152.  The Annual Maintenance Contracts for maintenance of the power supply
infrastructure, covers both the infrastructure in the GFA /Books of TPSODL as
well as the Govt. Funded Infrastructure; the Hon’ble Commission shall appreciate
that both, the Company owned Assets as well as those financed by the
Government and transferred to the DISCOM to use and maintain, form part of the

same Distribution Network and consequently require similar maintenance.

4.3.1. Approach adopted by TPSODL during 3 year of operation

153. Based on the learning from last 2 years of stabilised operation, TPSODL had
further optimised the comprehensive AMCs along with the manpower
deployment structure for all Six circles for operation and maintenance of 33KV,
11KV & LT assets to create a culture of preventive maintenance. The Performance
Based Maintenance Contract also includes 24X7 Breakdowns Crews for restoration
of 33KV & 11KV feeders and substation equipment. Besides, preventive
maintenance activities are being performed as per the maintenance plan using the

SAP PM system.

154.  The network is being inspected regularly through manual patrolling as well as
drone inspection in forest and inaccessible areas. Thermo-scanning is done for the
entire network using high power thermo scanning cameras and to identify the

defects, hotspots and attend breakdowns in quick time and perform preventive
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maintenance activities to enhance system reliability by rectifying the probable

faults even before they occur.

Services included under AMC:

155. The Annual Maintenance Contract (AMC) under TPSODL is divided into two
(2) categories:
a. 33kV Lines and 33kV/11kV PSS (periodic inspection and breakdown
maintenance)
b. 11kV and LT Network (attending Breakdowns & no current complaints,

preventive maintenance)

Manpower Deployment status under in AMC:

i. FCC wise deployment
* 3 shift operation FCC: (4LM+ 3H)
* 2 shift operation FCC: (2LM+2H)
* 1 shift operation FCC: (1LM+1H)

ii.  Preventive Maintenance
(1) 11kV AMC (Section Level): Separate Team along with vehicle
* Group 1: Section Area<600 Sq. Km (1 Team): - 1Supervisor+5LM+2H.
* Group 2: Section Area 600 Sq. Km -1700 Sq. Km (2 Teams): - 1Supervisor
SLM+2H & 1Supervisor+2LM+2H
*  Group 3: Section Area>1700 Sq. Km (3 Teams): - 1Supervisor+5LM+2H,
1Supervisor+2LM+2H & 1Supervisor+2LM+2H

BA Supervisor Engineer has been posted section wise for overall coordination,

planning & execution of O&M Jobs.

(2) 33kV AMC (Sub-Division & Division Level): Separate Team along with
vehicle
* 3LM+3H (1 Team) per Sub-division and 1 Supervisor per Division for
PSS & 33 kV Feeders Maintenance
(3) Night Breakdown teams (Sub-Division Level):
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* For attending 33kV & 11kV Breakdowns: 2LM+2H (1 Team along with

24 hrs. vehicle)
(4) PSS Operation:

* PSS Operation: 4LM+3H Per PSS and 1 Supervisor Per Division

* BA Safety Engineer: 1 Per Division

4.3.2. Snapshots of activities under R&M

A. Transformer & DSS-PSS R&M

Power Transformers Repair,

Maintenance and overhauling

DTR Repairing /Replacement/
Augmentation/Swapping

566 PTRs in service in TPSODL:
Majority of these are very old,
having multiple issues like oil
leakages, low oil BDVs, OTI
JWTI
bodies, non-functional OLTCs,

not working, rusted
insulation failure due to aging
etc.

30 PTRs have been repaired, and
74 PTRs have been overhauled.

* Improvement in the failure rate of transformer:

FY23-24 is 2.79%.
distribution transformers was 4% in FY20-21,
3.46% in FY21-22 & 2.97% in FY22-23. Major

The failure rate of

reasons for the DTR failure are lightning,
insulation failure, aging of the transformers,
internal short circuit, overloading of the
transformers.

2,642 Nos. of DTR repairing has been done
from April’23 to March’24.

11,330 nos. of Lighting arrestor installed.so far
to protect the transformer from Lightning, DTR
Oil leakage attended is 1,057 Nos. and

2,026 faulty DTR replaced from April’23 to
March’'24.

Load monitoring and balancing of DTRs.

324 nos. of Overloaded DTR augmented from
April’23 to March’24.

DSS Maintenance

PSS equipment and Protection and
testing

* 63,303 Distribution Substations (DSS) and | =

having mostly -

251 Nos. of 33kV/11kV PSS.
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oearthing system in very bad condition
oAB switches are bypassed /non-operational.

oand HG / DD fuses too are bypassed/broken.

The availability of maintenance
materials in stores is essential to

improve the equipment

* Focused preventive maintenance effort and downtime.
budgetary provision is essential. * 82 Nos. of Numerical Relays
Description | New | Replaced | Repaired have been installed.
A'i;g‘;‘;d‘ 308 | 318 5055 ||®= Repair activity of Battery
HG Fuse 401 1100 2508 Chargers is under progress.
(Nos.)
DD Fuse
(Nos.) 86 66 103

B. R&M of Sub- Transmission and Distribution Lines

33kV Line

11 kV line

LT line

= 4,241 CKM of 33kV
line network.
" At

many  places

passing through
difficult terrain and
forest areas.

" Many of these lines

are in poor condition -

higher than
recommended span
length, sagging of
conductor, tilted

poles, damaged cross-

arms, worn out
conductors and
jumpers, old

insulators etc.

* 46,985 CKM 11 kV
network.

* At many places’ lines
are underrated,
uneven sized & worn-
out bare conductors
with extremely long
span lengths.

* The interruption at 11
kV feeder level is too
high with respect to
present Indian utility
standards.

* Faults are majorly due
to tree faults, bird
fault, Pin insulators,
discs, poor conductor.

* Requirement of

intermediate poles to

avoid conductor

® 41,488 CKMs LT circuits.

* Large number of damaged
/bent/tilted poles, compromising
safety clearances and having low
sagging.

*» For the transformer LT side
protection are bypassed or over-
rated fuses have been installed, no
fuse box/MCCB box have been
installed at the site. In place of LT
Fuse box/MCCB box, open
aluminum wire wound fuses are
seen at almost every substation at
very low height which is highly
unsafe.

* Requirement of deteriorated LT
ABC and conductors needs to be
replaced.

» Lot of of

jumbling service

connections have been observed
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33kV Line 11 kV line LT line
collision and | on the poles with poor
snapping. connectivity with the LT ABC and

* Also, there are tilted | improper no. of connections

poles/ V cross arms | terminated on each phase, thus

which needs | leading to transformer load
replacement. unbalancing.
SL.
No Parameters UOM | FY24
33 kV Lines Maintenance
1 33kV Line Maintenance - (Jumper replacement, Nos. | 1380
insulator replacement etc.)
2 | 33kV Line - Patrolling & Tree Trimming CKM | 4125
3 | 33kV Line Intermediate Pole installation Nos. 85
33/11 KV PSS Maintenance
4 | Overhauling of identified Poor condition PTRs. Nos. 74
5 | Repair of PTRs. Nos. 30
6 | Installation of 33kV VCBS Nos. 110
7 | Installation of 11kV VCBs Nos. 164
8 | Overhauling of 33kV and 11kV VCBs Nos. | 169
9 | New AB Switch Installed Nos. 147
10 | New AB Switch Repaired Nos | 1421
11 | Maintenance and testing of VCBs and CRPs Nos | 2242
12 | Relay coordination Nos. 389
13 | Self-audit of Relay setting coordination in PSS Nos. 0
14 | Cross-audit of Relay setting coordination in PSS Nos. 0
15 | Numerical relay installation Nos. 82
16 Equipment testing (Thermo vision scanning & Nos. 251
Ultrasonic analysis) Activities in PSS
17 | Maintenance and testing of VCBs and CRPs Nos | 2242
11 kV Lines Maintenance
18 | Patrolling & Tree Trimming - 11kV Feeder CKM | 14501
19 | 11 KV line Refurbishment CKM 52
20 | Replacement of Broken Pole Nos. 634
21 | Erection of Intermediate Pole Nos. | 2233
22 | Installation of Line AB Switch Nos. 339
23 | Replacement/Repairing of Line AB Switch Nos. | 2949
DSS/DTR Lines Maintenance
24 | DSS Maintenance | Nos. | 9410
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25 | DTR Load monitoring Nos. | 40946
26 | DTR Repairing Nos. | 2642
27 | Load Balancing of the DT's Nos. | 4166
28 | Augmentation of DT Nos. 324
29 | 11kV AB switch (repair/replacement/new installation) | Nos. | 5681
30 | Installation, Replacement and Repairs of HG/DD Fuse. | Nos. | 4284
31 | Installation and Replacement of LA. Nos. | 11330
32 | Earthing will be added in the DSS Nos. | 1304
33 | LT Protection- LTDB - Installation Nos. 301
34 | LT Protection- Kit-Kat Fuse - Installation Nos. | 4818
LT Line Maintenance

35 | Extension of LT feeder ABC CKM 14
36 | Replacement of LT Old/Poor Conductor/ABC CKM 180
37 | Replacement of LT Undersized Conductor/ ABC CKM 27
38 | Replacement of Broken Pole Nos. 854
39 | Erection of Intermediate Pole Erection Nos. | 2520
40 | Cleaning of LT Pole Nos. | 2756

C. Vacuum Circuit Breakers (VCB) R&M
® 2270 numbers of 33kV and 11kV VCBs (154 VCBs are either defective or in
very poor condition).
= TPSODL procures the VCB spares as well as repairs these VCBs through
service agencies.
*  Overhauling of 33kV and 11kV VCBs - 169 Nos. has done from the April'23
to March’24.

D. HT (11kV) and LT Underground cable R&M

E. EARTHING
* Many of the old PSS have very bad earthing values and need renovation or new
pit construction as a priority. Also, 33kV line poles earthing is also not in good
condition.
* In Distribution also, the condition of the earthing is not good.
* 1,413 Nos. of New /reconditioning/ strengthening of earthing has been done
in the DSS, 11kV & LT network.

4.3.3. Historical Trend of R&M Expenditure

156.  Further, as can be seen, the estimated expenditure for FY 2023-24 is higher than

the approved expenditure. In this regard we would like to submit the following:
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TPSODL has been continuously reviewing and optimising the manpower
deployment as monitoring the performance-based contracts under place for the
operation and maintenance of the network spread across vast geography. As a
result of these activities, the R&M expenditure has decreased as compared to
FY 2022-23 in spite of new assets being created and put to use various capex
schemes.

It is further submitted that in addition to above AMC, in house expenditure is
required to be incurred for Power Transformer repairs, DTS repairs, DSS
Maintenance, DTR Replacement, 33 KV Line repairs and Maintenance, HT Line
Maintenance, LV Line Maintenance and maintenance of other equipment.

The Norm of 54 % of the GFA was presumably fixed on the basis of the
expenditure carried outin the past. In our humble submission, the expenditure
on R&M as mentioned earlier was minimal and hence the norm of 5.4 % of the
GFA is clearly not adequate for carrying out satisfactory R&M expenditure. The
amount spent over in the past by erstwhile Southco Utility and by TPSODL is

as follows:

Table 41: R&M Expenditure trend over past periods
(in Rs. Crs.)

Company Pre-TPSODL/ TPSODL
FY Approved Audited
99-00 Pre-TPSODL 12.63 13.39
00-01 Pre-TPSODL 12.63 7.31
01-02 Pre-TPSODL 15.57 9.29
02-03 Pre-TPSODL 16.82 6.43
03-04 Pre-TPSODL 16.38 9.93
04-05 Pre-TPSODL 13.25 8.43
05-06 Pre-TPSODL 18.55 6.07
06-07 Pre-TPSODL 17.35 5.54
07-08 Pre-TPSODL 18.38 55
08-09 Pre-TPSODL 19.08 7.79
09-10 Pre-TPSODL 20.73 11.59
10-11 Pre-TPSODL 26.11 13.09
11-12 Pre-TPSODL 28.47 8.28
12-13 Pre-TPSODL 28.28 8.97
13-14 Pre-TPSODL 4353 15.02
14-15 Pre-TPSODL 39.19 12.02 SEIN
(o &
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Company Pre-TPSODL/ TPSODL
15-16 Pre-TPSODL 31.93 16.82
16-17 Pre-TPSODL 33.18 9.74
17-18 Pre-TPSODL 34.91 6.74
18-19 Pre-TPSODL 39.19 6.78
19-20 Pre-TPSODL 44 4.59
20-21 Pre-TPSODL 45.96 6.2
21-22 TPSODL 88.57 90.68
22-23 TPSODL 90.24 189.07
23-24 TPSODL 152.57 176.87

4.3.4. R&M of Govt. Assets

157.  The Hon’ble Commission had approved an expenditure of Rs 72.19 Crs on

Government Funded assets. It is submitted that asset base of Government Assets

is about Rs 3916.09 Crs. Hence the amount of Rs 72.19 Crs is not adequate to

maintain such large asset base. The break-up of the Government Assets being

maintained by TPSODL is as follows

Table 42: Government Asset Base maintained by TPSODL as on 1st April 2023

(in Rs. Crs.)

Name of the Scheme

Amount

Integrated Power Development Scheme -IPDS

241.64

Dindayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojna -DDUGY

395.08

GRID)

Dindayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojna -DDUGY 12th Plan (POWER

582.70

GRID)

Dindayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojna -DDUGY 11th Plan (POWER

269.58

Dindayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojna -DDUGY 11th Plan (NTPC)

113.98

Dindayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojna -DDUGY 12th Plan (NTPC)

375.36

RGGVY

11.59

RGGVY 10th & 11th Plan (NTPC, PGCIL, NHPC)

921.77

Pradhan Mantri Sahaj Bijli har Ghar Yojna under SOUBHAGYA

191.41

SETU

14.20

Odisha Distribution System Strengthening Project-ODSSP

698.87

BGJY- OPTCL DTR

45.71

Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS IT Ph-II)

54.20

Total Government Assets

3916.09

R&M to be provided @ 3% p.a.

117.48
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158.  Itis submitted that the R&M Expenditure includes the expenditure towards the
consumption of materials/ consumables which are essential for the maintenance,
as well as the expenditure towards Annual Maintenance Contracts (AMCs)
performed by TPSODL for various activities.

159. Therefore, the Hon’ble Commission is requested to consider the various critical
activities carried out by the licensee for improving the quality and reliability of
power supply over a vast licence area spread over 48,751 sq. kms while optimising
the maintenance cost as compared to the previous year. Hence, the Hon’ble
Commission is requested to allow the actual R&M expenditure (Net off Govt.
Grant amortisation) amounting to Rs. 176.87 Crs for truing up, as per the audited

accounts for FY 23-24.

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 & Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21




TPS®DL

-

160. Hon'ble Commission in the Tariff Order for FY 23-24 has approved total A&G
expenses of Rs. 112.66 Crs escalating the previous year’s approval by 7% along
with additional expense of Rs 30 Crs. The licensee had proposed a total expense of

Rs. 137.47 Crs for FY 2023-24 under Normal A&G and Additional A&G of Rs. 70.89

Crs and Rs. 66.58 Crs respectively.

161.

The actual A&G expenses have been Rs. 149.14 Crs in the 34 complete year of

operation that is FY 23-24 Crs. The details are furnished in the following table.

Table 43: Administrative & General (A&G) Expenses for FY 2023-24

(in Rs. Crs.)
e T
& Description | Expensesas |y ing up
No. .| per Audited - FY.2023-24
o Accounts | U T T
1 | Rent, Rates & Taxes 2.86 2.86
2 | Watch & ward Expenses 4.00 4.00
3 | Communication 4.62 4.62
4 | Legal, Consultancy & Professional Charges 10.24 10.24
5 | Conveyance & Travelling 10.78 10.78
6 | Licence & Related Expenses 2.60 2.60
7 | Advertisement Expenses (Public Relation) 3.66 3.66
8 | Metering, billing and collection expenses 78.13 78.13
9 | Printing & Stationary 217 217
10 | Enforcement Activities 8.35 8.35
11 | Training 0.68 0.68
12 | Insurance 1.32 1.32
13 | House Keeping 7.05 7.05
14 | Facility Management Services 1.55 1.55
15 | Electricity expenses 4.44 4.44
16 | Other Expenses 6.69 6.69
17 | Outsource and contractual employees’ expenses * 89.25 -
Total - A 266.72 149.14
18 | Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debt 42.89 17.89
Total - B 42.89 17.89
Grand Total (A+B) 309.61 167.03
19 Less:- Provision for bad & doubtful debts shown 4289 17.89
separately
20 | Administrative & General Expenses 266.72 149.14
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* Please note Outsource and contractual employees expenses of Rs.89.25 Crs grouped

under employees cost in true up petition whereas same is grouped under A&G expenses in
audited FS.

Extract of Audited Financials for FY 2023-24

As at As at

NOTE'S0 Gcheranpenses March 31,2024 March 31,2023

[o ¥ crore
Rental of land, buildings, plant and equipment, etc [ 2.85 | 2.13

Repair and maintenance-

-Buildings and civif Works 0.12 0.19
-Plant and machinery 176.21 187.36
-Furniture, vehicles, etc 0.53 1.52
Outsource and contractual employees expenses (Refer note 30.01) 89.25 86.24
Travelling 10.95 19.57
Metering, billing and collection 73.14 88.39
Legal and profassional charges {Refer note 30.02) 9.69 8.17
Allowance for doubtful receivables 59.25
Telephone expenses 482 2.24
Fooding and Conveyance expenses ; ;2 1{.33
Ingurance 132 213
Printing and stationery 2.19 3.01
Provision for contingendies 0.24 5.79
CSR expenditure (Refer note 30.03) 1.55 1.26
Rebate on OTS Collection 0.38 1.97
Miscellaneous expenses 31.93 31.97
Total other expenses 458.13 515.04

162.  Section 57(c) of the Vesting order categorically requires DISCOM to provide
component wise expenditure with Hon'ble Commission undertaking a prudence

check of the submission before allowing them. The relevant extract of Vesting

order reproduced hereunder:

“57 (c) For the subsequent years, TPSODL shall include the estimated expense foreach
component of O&M expense in the Aggregate Revenue Requirement petition submitted to the
Commission as per the Tariff Regulations. The Commission shall undertake a prudence check
of the submission made by TPSODL before allowing the same in Aggregate Revenue

Requirement. Provided that the actual expenses allowed shall be subject to true-up as per the
Tariff Regulations.”

163.  Further, the Hon'ble Commission while approving the RST Tariff for FY 2023-
24 vide its order dated 23.03.2023, has made the following observations -

123. .......

The Commission has also taken into cognizance of the expenditure during current FY
2022-23 and found that additional expenses are required to meet the committed
obligations. The Commission has therefore allowed additional expenses which must be
utilised for the purpose envisaged in the Tariff Regulations, 2022. However, the
Commission will check prudently such expenses made by the DISCOMs while
allowing them in the Truing up. The higher expenses in A&G shall also reflect
in the reduction of AT&C losses and general improvement in the customer
services. The Commission will also take into account such parameters while
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scrutinizing A&G expenses through data verification, field visits by the Commission
and third-party audit. The Commission hereby directs that the DISCOMs must limit
its expenditure within the amount approved in ARR for the FY 2023-24.

Optimised A& G Cost as compared to FY 2022-23 (actual)

164. While the actual expenditure of FY 2023-24 is higher than that approved by the
Hon’ble Commission in the Tariff Order for FY 2023-24, due to the following.

i.  The quantum of Rs. 82.66 Crs is arrived at based on the amount approved

by the Hon’ble Commission for FY 2022-23 under Normal A&G expenses.

ii.  Further, the Commission had only approved Rs. 30 Crs as Additional A&G
expense, while the licensee has requested for Rs 66.58 Crs based on existing
MBC contracts in place for enabling wider customer service and effective
Meter reading, Billing & Collection initiatives. The estimates were more
practical in nature as the operation was stabilized after 2 (two) complete

year of operation.

iii. It is also submitted that the above A&G expenditure is required for
efficiently running of the operations, increase collection and improve
billing processes, improve billing processes and providing improved
customer services across vast geographical area with significant LT

consumer base.

iv. The comparison between the expenses of FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24
would indicate that the A&G Expenditure has decreased from FY 2022-23
to FY 2023-24 primarily on account of optimization of MBC contracts. In
addition to this substantial reduction in actual A&G expense, the
coordinated efforts have resulted in increase in Collection and eventually
in have translated into improvement in AT&C which reduced from
26.95% in FY 2022-23 to 25.95% in FY 2023-24. The graphs showing the

performance for two years is given below.
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Improvement in Collection Efficiency %
131%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY

—=TY-23 ——=FY-24

Improvement in AT&C Loss Level %

#85%

36:3%%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 FY
e [Y-23 T Y-24

Figure 6: Comparison of AT&C Loss levels (FY 2023-24 vs FY 2022-23)
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165. Further, the Licensee would like to inform the Hon’ble Commission that the
A&G expenses for FY 2023-24 proposed for truing up also includes Rs. 1.35 Crs
paid as compensation to the victim/legal heir as per the directives of statutory
bodies for electrical accident/ electrocution incidents prior to the Effective Date of
the Vesting Order. Relevant extract of the Vesting Order is extracted hereinunder-

53. Treatment of past litigations

(a) The liabilities or gains arising out of litigation, suits, claims, etc. pending on, and/or
arising due to events prior to the Effective Date, shall be allowed by the Commission in
the Aggregate Revenue Requirement subject to prudence check.

(b) TPSODL shall make all diligent efforts to contest the litigation, suits, claims etc. as
if it is a party to such litigation, suits, claims etc. and satisfy the Commission in this

regard.

166. The approval vis-a-vis actual expenses as per the audited balance sheet are
detailed in the following table.
Table 44: Approved vs Actual A&G Expenses for FY 2023-24

(in Rs. Crs.)
A Approved by Actual Difference
Expenditure OERC (Audited)* | (Approved -Actual)
Administrative & General 112.66 149.14 (36.48)
Expenses

*Please refer para 165 and table no. 43 above

167. That, in this regard, it is submitted that Regulation 3.9.17 of the Tariff
Regulations, 2022 provides for additional expenses in addition to the normal A&G

expenses, subject to prudence check by the Hon’ble Commission.

3.9.17. The Commission, in addition to the normal A&G expenses may allow additional
expenses, under this head for special measures to be undertaken by the distribution
licensees which are not covered under Capital Investment plan approved by the

Commission.
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Provided the Commission will undertake a prudence check before allowing such

expenditure.

168.  Further, it may be submitted that in FY 2023-24, the operations had already
been stabilised and the expenditure in this year reflects a stable level of
expenditure. In continuation to our earlier application, we would like to request
the Hon’ble Commission to treat the actual A&G expenses for FY 2022-23 as the
benchmark, based on which the A&G expenses of future years will be allowed.

169. Therefore, Hon’ble Commission is requested to consider the actual A&G

expenses incurred in FY 23-24 amounting to Rs. 149.14 Crs for truing up.
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[_4'.;‘5’ Prowslon for Bad &DoubtfulDebts | J

170. The Hon’ble Commission had allowed Rs. 19.91 Crs towards provision for bad
and doubtful debts. As per audited accounts, provision for bad and doubtful debt
is Rs. 42.89 Crs.

171.  In this regard, it is submitted that Regulation 5.8.1 of the Tariff Regulations,
2022 provides that the Bad and Doubtful debt during the control period shall be
allowed on normative basis of 1% of the total annual revenue billed for sale of

electricity.

172.  That, in line with the provisions 1% of total revenue billed in the FY 2023-24,
Rs. 17.89 Crs has been considered towards provision of Bad and Doubtful debt.

173.  For true up, Hon’ble Commission is requested to allow Rs. 17.89 Crs towards

provision of bad and doubtful debt for the FY 23-24.

(46 Capitalization

Progress of Capital Expenditure approved by the Hon’ble Commission:

174.  TPSODL had filed its proposal for approval of the Capital Expenditure for FY
2021-22 (registered as Case No- 08/2021). The Hon'ble Commission in its order
dated 18.09.2021 in the said matter approved Capex of Rs. 184.65 Crs (excluding
Gridco asset - equity in kind, employee cost and interest expenses capitalized) for

FY 2021-22.
175. The Hon’ble Commission vide order dated 14.07.2022 in the matter of Case

13/2022 has approved Capex of Rs. 294.82 Crs (excluding Gridco asset - equity in
kind, employee cost and interest expenses capitalized) for FY 2022-23.
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176. The Hon’ble Commission vide order dated 19.06.2023 in the matter of Case -
05/2023 has approved Capex of Rs. 338.33 Crs (excluding Gridco asset - equity in
kind, employee cost and interest expenses capitalized) for FY 2023-24. Further, a
supplementary Capex of Rs 69.05 Crs (excluding Gridco asset - equity in kind,
employee cost and interest expenses capitalized) was approved by the Hon'ble

Commission Vide Order dated 15.11.2023 in the matter of Case 82/2023

177. The Status of Capital Expenditure and Capitalization against the Capex
approved for FY 2021-22, FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 as on 31.03.2024 is provided

below:
Table 45: Accumulated approved Capex as on 31.03.2024
(in Rs. Crs.)
Financial Capex | Cumulative | Capitalization done Cumulative
Year Approved Capex in respective year Capitalization
inclusive of previous
year spill over capex
2021-22 184.65 184.65 183.89 183.89
2022-23 294.82 479.45 294.89 478.78
2023-24 338.33 766.26
200324 69.05 886.93 287.49
Total 886.93 766.26

Note: The above amount is excluding Staff Cost, IDC and GRIDCO contribution

Total Capitalization for the period FY 2023-24
178. TPSODL has executed Capital Expenditure and capitalized under four

following heads:

e C(Capital Expénditure approved by the Hon’ble Commission
» Capital Expenditure under Government Funded Schemes
e Capital Expenditure against Consumer Contribution

¢ Investment in Meters which has not been considered for the purpose of
working out the ARR/ True up

In addition, to the above, Gridco as a part of its subscription towards equity, makes

contribution in kind (instead of Cash). The same is explained in the section below:
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Additional Capitalization on account of GRIDCO’s Equity Contribution in kind

179.  The capital expenditure incurred by TPSODL capex Schemes is required to be
financed in the ratio of 70 % (Debt) and 30% (Equity) other than depreciation on
existing assets (as mentioned below). Since TPSODL has the shareholding of Tata
Power (51%) and GRIDCO (49%), in order to maintain 49% stake in the company,
GRIDCO is required to contribute 49% of such equity. In this matter, relevant
extract of the approved Share Holder's Agreement (SHA) is mentioned below.

2.1 The amount of issued and paid up capital of OPERATING COMPANY may be
varied from time to time as may be determined by the Board of Directors or the
Shareholders of OPERATING COMPANY, provided that any issue of new shares shall
be offered to GRIDCO and TPCL in a manner so as to ensure that GRIDCO and TPCL
shall, at all times, hold 49% and 51% respectively of the issued, subscribed and paid up
equity share capital of OPERATING COMPANY. The consideration paid by
GRIDCO for subscription of equity shall be in cash, kind or any other form, as decided
by GRIDCO and should be in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. In case consideration paid by GRIDCO is in any form other than cash, it should
be of such nature that it is allowed by the Commission to be included in the fixed asset
base for consideration in ARR. Such consideration may include the assets held in the
books of the GoO which are being used by Southco utility and which shall continue to
be used by the OPERATING COMPANY

However instead of contributing such equity, GRIDCO has preferred to contribute
such equity in kind (distribution asset).

180. Govt. Distribution Assets worth Rs. 23.49 Crs in FY 2021-22, Rs. 59.29 Crs in FY
2022-23 and Rs. 69.58 Crs in FY 2023-24 transferred by Gridco in lieu of its equity
contribution. These assets have been capitalized in books of accounts of TPSODL

in the year of transfer.
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Total Capitalization for FY 2023-24

181.  Total Capitalization for FY 2023-24 as booked in the accounts is as given below.
However, for the purpose of true up we have considered Capitalization that has
been funded by TPSODL only for the purpose of claiming Depreciation, RoE and
Interest on Loan.

Table 46: Total Capitalization for FY 2023-24 as per Audited Financials

Sr. No Asset Description Amount
(in Rs. Crs.)

1 Buildings 71.50
2 Furniture & Fixture 1.52
3 Vehicle 1.19
4 IT Equipment’s & Software 63.14
5 Other Equipment- Other than computer 26.93
6 Network Assets 270.11
7 Network Assets - Consumer funded and govt schemes 18.90
8 Meters 71.70
Total 524.98

Capitalization as per Audited Financial Statement of FY 2023-24
182.  Note 4.02 and 4.03 of the Audited Financial Statements for FY 2023-24 may be
referred to for the total Capitalization done by TPSODL in FY 2023-24. The linkage

to the audited accounts and relevant extract is as provided below.

Table 47: Summary of Capitalization for FY 2023-24 with linkage to Audited
Financial Statements of FY 2023-24

Amount Reference/ Linkage to
Sr. No Particulars (in Rs. Crs.) Audited Financial
Statement FY 2023-24
1 GFA Addition- Property, Plant & 461.99 | Note 4.02 ‘Property
Equipment ’ Plant & Equipment’
2 GFA Addition - Intangible Assets 63.14 | Note 4.03 ‘Intangible
Assets’
3=1+2 | Total GFA Addition/ Capitalization 525.13
for FY 2023-24
4 Less - Decapitalization 0.14
5=4-3 | Net Addition 524.98
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Figure 7: Summary of Capitalization for FY 2023-24 with linkage to Audited
Financial Statements of FY 2023-24

TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

4.02 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) (Contd.)
a. Property, plant and equipment

¥ crore|
Description Buildings Plant and equipment | Motor vehicles | Furniture Office Meter Total

including transmission and Equipments
lines and cable Fixtures
network

Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2023 — _ 83.49 _997.47| 3.33 10.91 _70.48 51.90| 1217.58|
idditions 71.50 280.01] 1.4 1.52 27.02| 7170 461,99
Disposals/Adjustment - - (0.05) - (0.09) [ (0.14)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 154.99 1,286.48 4.52 12,43 97.41 123.60 L679.-1_3]
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
|Balance as at April 1, 2023 1.69 80.15 0.29/ 0.63 9.00| 5.88! 97.64]
Depreciation expense 3.51 51.54 0.37 0.74 11.17 18.14 85.47
|Disposals/Adjustment - - (0.01) - (0.02) (0.03)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5.20 131.69' 0.65 1.37 20.15 24.02 183.08!
Net carrying amount I
Balance as at March 31, 2024 149.79 1,154.79 3.87 11.06( 77.26) 99.58| 1,496.35

b. Intangible assets

¥ crore
Description Software
Cost
As at April 01, 2023 77.98
|Additions 63.14
Disposals B
Balance as at March 31, 2024 141.12

Total Capitalization Claimed for True up purpose

183.  The Total Capitalization considered for the purpose of True up of FY 2023-24
is Rs 434.37 Crs and the details are as provided below.

Table 48: Total Capitalization for True up of FY 2023-24

(in Rs. Crs.)
Total Capitalization as T?tal Cflpltahzatlon
Sr. 1 . claimed in True up FY
Particular booked in Accounts for
No 2023-24 for ROE, Interest
FY 2023-24
on Loan etc. purpose
1 Against TPSODL Own 434.37 434.37
Capex
2 Against TPSODL’s Capex 71.70
Schemes (Meters)
3 Assets against Govt 1.86
Schemes/ Grants
4 Assets against Consumer 17.04
Contribution
Total 524.98 434.37
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[47 Depreciation }

184. For FY 2023-24, Hon’ble Commission has approved Rs. 52.15 Crs towards
depreciation in the Tariff order notified on 23.3.2023. The method of calculation of
depreciation after vesting of the Utility in TPSODL has been specified under clause
43 (g) and (h) of the Vesting Order dated 28.12.2020 in case no -83/2020. The
relevant extracts are reproduced hereunder:

“ 43 (g) The capital investments made by TPSODL shall be allowed recovery of depreciation in
line with the rates prescribed in Annexure — 3 till the time applicable regulation is notified by

the Commission. The depreciation rates specified in regulations shall prevail over the rates

specified in Annexure-3 as and when applicable regulation is notified by the Commission.

(h)Depreciation on all existing assets transferred to TPSODL shall be determined based on the
existing methodology being followed by the Commission.”

185.  Accordingly, for the FY 2023-24, Rs. 82.08 Crs has been considered towards
depreciation (Net off Govt. grant - consumer contribution amortization) for

truing up, which may kindly be approved by Hon’ble Commission.

[ 48 Interest Cost on Security Depositand Working Capital |

186. Hon’ble Commission has allowed interest cost including the interest on SD to

the tune of Rs. 59.78 Crs for the FY 2023-24 in the Tariff Order dated 23.03.2023.

187.  As per the OERC (Terms and conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff
and Retail Supply tariff) Regulations, 2022, Interest on working capital shall be

allowed as follows.

“ 3.10.1 The Distribution Licensee shall be allowed interest on the estimated level of working
capital for the Wheeling and Retail supply business for the Financial Year. The working capital
for the purpose of ARR calculation shall be computed as follows:

d. Operation and maintenance expenses for one month; plus
e.  Maintenance spares @ twenty (20) % of average R&EM expense for one month;plus
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Working Capital requirement of the Distribution Licensees may be met through depreciation

allowed by the Commission on the assets of erstwhile DISCOMs ina manner mentioned in the

Vesting Orders and as approved by the Commission. Shortfall in meeting the working capital

requirement as mentioned above shall beallowed. The interest on the working capital shall be at

a rate equal to the SBI Base Rate or any replacement thereof by SBI from time to time (being in

effect applicable for 1 year period) as applicable as on 1stApril of the Financial Year (for which

Truing Up shall be done) plus 300 basis points or actual weighted average rate of interest

towards loan for meeting working capital requirement availed by the Distribution Licensee(s),

whichever is lower:”

188.  Accordingly, TPSODL has derived the working capital requirement and

interest thereon as detailed in the following table.

Table 49:Interest on Working Capital and security deposits FY 2023-24

(in Rs. Crs.)
Sl No. Particulars Normative

1 Operation & maintenance expenses

Employee cost 474.97

Other Expenses 326.01

Total O&M 800.98

Operation & maintenance expenses Per annum 800.98

Operation & maintenance expenses Per month 66.75

2 Power purchase cost for one month 84.75

3 Maintenance of spare@20% of R&M Expenses 2.95

4 Depreciation on Legacy asset -22.25

TOTAL 132.20

Interest rate on working capital - Actual 7.91%

5 Interest on Working Capital 10.46

6 Interest on security deposits 21.14

7 Other Finance Cost 14.31

8 Total interest including interest on SD 4591
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189.  Interest on security Deposit of Rs. 21.14 Crs has been considered as per actuals
in the annual audited accounts and interest on working capital Rs. 10.46 Crs

(normative) and other finance cost of Rs. 14.31 Crs as detailed in the above table.

190. That, Hon'ble Commission is requested to allow Rs. 45.91 Crs towards
interest on working capital and interest on SD. The details have been furnished

in the in Format-TU-9.

49 Interest on Long Term Loan on normative basis

191. As per clause no. 3.5.1 of Tariff Regulation, 2022, in case of fixed asset
capitalized on account of capital expenditure incurred prior to April 1, 2023, debt
equity ratio as allowed by the Commission for determination of tariff for the period

ending March 31,2023 shall be considered.

192.  The Tariff Regulations 2022 allow 70% of the capitalisation to be funded by loan
or Debt. However, in case the loan is higher than 70% (i.e. Equity less than 30%),
then such higher loan would be considered for the purpose working out the ARR.
The extracts of the Tariff Regulations 2022 are as follows:

3.7.1. The loans arrived at in the manner indicated in these Regulations on the assets
put to use, shall be considered as gross normative loan for calculation of interest on
loan:

Provided that interest and finance charges on capital works in progress shall be
excluded:

3.7.2. The normative loan outstanding as on 1st April shall be worked out by deducting
the cumulative normative repayment as admitted by the Commission up to 31st March
of the previous year.

Provided that the assets of erstwhile DISCOMSs as on effective date in terms of the
provisions of Vesting Orders shall not be eligible for calculation of interest on loan.

3.7.3. The normative repayment for the year during the Control Period shall be deemed
to be equal to the depreciation allowed for that year.
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3.7.5. The rate of interest shall be the weighted average rate of interest calculated on the
basis of the actual loan portfolio at the beginning of each year applicable to the
Distribution Licensee:

193. The applicant has considered a Debt of 70% of Capitalisation for the new
Projects. As regards the Weighted Average Interest rate, we have considered the
same as 8.44%, based on actual loan portfolio for FY 2023-24 and the applicable
interest to such loans.

Table 50: Interest on Long Term Loan FY 2023-24

(in Rs. Crs.)

13:;' Particulars FY 2022-23 | FY 2023-24
1 | Opening Balance 98.50 362.02
2 | Add: Loan (Normative) during the year 282.52 304.06
3 Less: Repayments during the Year (Equal to 18.99 59.79

depreciation)
4 | Closing Balance 362.02 606.30
5 | Average Balance 230.26 484.16
6 | Weighted Average Rate of Interest - Actual 7.34% 8.44%
7 | Interest Amount 16.90 40.88
8 | Capitalisation 403.59 434.37
9 | Capitalization Funded by:

10 | Debt (70%) 282.52 304.06
11 | Equity (30%) 121.08 130.31

194. Therefore, Hon’ble Commission is requested to consider normative interest
on Term Loan of Rs 40.88 Crs for true ~up for the FY 2023-24. The details have
been furnished in the in Format-TU-8.

Table 51 Summary of Total Interest cost approved and interest cost sought

(in Rs. Crs.)

S1 No. Particulars Approved iRl Approval sought
Order March 2023

1 Interest on working capital 13.66 24.77

2 Interest on Security Deposit 21.78 21.14

Interest on Term Loan (Less 24.34 40.88

’ interest capitalized)

Total 59.78
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| 410 RewmonEquity

195.

196.

As per the Vesting Order, the Return on Equity would be available as follows:
58. Return on equity:

(a) As per the terms of the RFP, the Commission shall allow return on equity, as per
the Tariff Regulations, to TPSODL on the equity capital of Rs. 200 crores (Indian
Rupee Two hundred crores) only which was the reserve price of the utility of
SOUTHCO.

(b) Return on equity shall be allowed on the reserve price of the utility as per para 58(a)

above and also on the capital investments made by the TPSODL, as per the Tariff
Regulations.

The Tariff Regulations specify the following with regards to the Return on

Equity for any year in the Control Period.

Return on Equity as per the New Tariff Regulations

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 8 Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21 100,

3.6.1. Return on equity on approved reserve price (INR 300 Crore for TPCODL, INR
300 Crore for TPWODL, INR 250 Crore for TPNODL and INR 200 Crore for
TPSODL) for the utilities (TPCODL, TPWODL, TPNODL & TPSODL) of the
erstwhile Distribution utilities as on effective date in terms of the provisions of Vesting
Orders:

Return on equity shall be allowed on the approved reserve price of the utility from the
effective date of operation at the rate of 16% per annum (post tax), in Indian Rupee

terms on pro-rata basis as per Vesting Order.

3.6.2. Return on equity on the assets put to use after Effective Date up to date of
applicability of these Regulations:

Return on equity on assets put to use after Effective Date up to date of applicability of
these Regulations shall be eligible to get return as per Odisha Electricity Regulatory
Commission (Terms and Conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail
Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2014 and its amendments thereof.
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3.6.3. Return on equity on the assets put to use under instant Regulations:

Return on equity on assets put to use under these Regulations shall be computed on the

paid-up equity capital determined in accordance with these Regulations and shall be

allowed at the rate of 16% per annum (post tax), in Indian Rupee terms:

Provided further that for the purpose of truing up for the Distribution Licensee, return

on equity shall be allowed from the date of commercial operation on pro-rata basis based

on documentary evidence provided for the assets put to use during the year in absence

of which the assets shall be considered to be added in the mid of the year.

197.

@16%, details are furnished in the following table.

Table 52: Return on Equity and Income Tax for FY 2023-24

Based on the above, the Return on Equity for FY 2023-24 has been calculated

(in Rs. Crs.)

SI1. No Particulars FY 2022-23 | FY 2023-24
1 Opening Equity 243.53 364.61
2 Normative Equity based on Assets Capitalization 121.08 130.31
3 Total (1 + 2) 364.61 494.92
RoE on Opening Equity @ 16% 38.97 58.34

RoE (Addition) 9.69 10.42

4 Return on Equity (RoE) 48.65 68.76
Income Tax - Rate 25.17% 25.17%

5 Income Tax Grossed up for RoE 16.36 23.13
6 Return on Equity including Income Tax 65.01 91.89

198.

That, Hon’ble Commission is requested to allow RoE of Rs. 68.76 Crs and tax

on RoE of Rs. 23.13 Crs for FY 2023-24. The details have been furnished in the in
Format-TU-6 & Format-TU-1.
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[ 411 Miscellaneous Receipt/ Non-Tariff Income

]

199.

breakup is produced in the following table as well as in Format- TU-7.

Table 53: Miscellaneous Receipt/ Non-Tariff Income for FY 2023-24

The netted off miscellaneous receipt for FY 2023-24 is Rs. 86.34 Crs. The detail

(in Rs. Crs.)
Truing Up
S1. No. Particulars Sought

FY 2023-24
1 Recovery of Meter Rent (IPDS & DDUGY) 8.60
2 Overdrawal penalty recovered 4.00
3 Open Access Cross Subsidy Income 0.00
4 Supervision Charges 14.67
5 Miscellaneous operating Income 17.91
6 Interest Income 29.10
7 Delayed payment surcharge 10.44
8 Other Income 1.62
Total 86.34

200.

That, Hon’ble Commission is requested to consider Rs. 86.34 Crs towards

miscellaneous income/ non-tariff income for truing up for the FY 2023-24.

[ 412 Truing up Summary for the FY 202324 ]
Table 54: Truing up of FY 2023-24
(in Rs. Crs.)
Reference Trueup | Reference
Approval Actual from Sought Para/
- by OERC bt Audited | Considering | Table
Expenditure (Audited ‘ :
for FY Actonnty) Annual Normative
23-24 Accounts T&D loss
FY-23-24 25.00%
INPUT(MU) 4920.00 4345.31 4259.93
Cost of power purchase 1,033.20 912.51 894.58
Transmission Cost 118.08 103.69 103.69
SLDC Cost 0.76 0.76 0.76 | Table 33
Less: Rebate -9.27 -9.27
Tumal Bawverpurchdss 1,152.04 | 1,007.69 | Note-26 989.76
Cost (A)
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Reference True up Reference
Approval Actasl from Sought Para/
. by OERC : Audited | Considering | Table
Brpenditns for FY i‘:‘:i::z:) Annual Normative
23-24 Accounts T&D loss
FY-23-24 25.00%

Employee Cost (Net) 495.76 42811 | Note-28 474.97 | Table 34
Repair & Maintenance
Cost (Net off Govt. Grant 152.57 176.87 | Note-30 176.87

- Table 40
Amortisation)
Administrative & General | 17566 | 23838 | Note-30 149.14 | Table 44
Expenses
Provision for bad &
doubtful debts 19.91 42.89 | Note-30 17.89 | Para 173
Depreciation (Net off :
Govt. Grant - Cons. 5215 %16 | Do 8208| , o,
Contbn Amortisation) 03 (b) ?
AEeIest on o including 59.78 69.79 | Note-29 45.91
interest on SD
Interest on Term Loan 3228 | Note-29 40.88 Table 51
(normative)
Total Operation &
Maintenance and Other 892.83 1,084.48 987.74
Cost
Return on equity 39.67 - 68.76

Table 52
Income Tax 13.86 | Note-31 23.13 oo
Total Distribution Cost 932.50 1,098.34 1,079.63
Less Miscellaneous
" " Note-25.3

Receipts / Non-Tariff 55.82 115.93 (b) & 26.01 86.34 Table 53
Income
Net Distribution Cost (B) 876.68 982.41 993.29
Repayment of ASL - B =
Aggregate Revenue 202872 | 1,990.10 1,983.05
Requirement
Actual Revenue net of 199077 | 1,759.02 | NOte-2>03 1,759.02
discount (@)
GAP (+/-) (37.95) (231.08) (224.02)
Expenses disallowed in
last truing -up order FY 100.49
21-22
Prov3s1onal Surplus 60.00
considered
GAP (+/-) 2.54 (231.08) (224.02)

Note: Outsource and contractual employees expenses of Rs.89.25 Crs grouped under
employees cost in true up petition whereas same is grouped under A&G expenses in

audited FS

True Up FY 2023-24, Rev. True Up FY 2022-23 & Issues of FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21
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201. In view of the above, the licensee most humbly prays before Hon’ble
Commission to kindly consider the submissions made by the licensee and true

up the actual expenses incurred for FY 2023-24 along with carrying cost.
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5. Annexures

Annexure-1: Formats (TU1 to TU 9) - FY 22-23 True up
Annexure-2: Formats (TU1 to TU 9) - FY 23- 24 True up
Annexure-3: Audited Financials of FY 2023-24
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Format-TU-1

Truing -Up for the FY 2022-23 (Rs. Crs)

., Sy Reference from - ABR ey
R 8 revious year. | - Trueup - st
Approvalby | . oo previos year. . | - PR 7 B e
o Actuat (Audited | numberof. .- Considering . . T 6 iy
Eemne OERCIOrEY.| Accounts) | Audited Annual | Normative T8D “iRameny "
‘ : ' Accounts FY- loss 25.00%.
s il P 2023-24
INPUT(MU) 4390.00 4188.45 4207.52
Cost of power purchase 996.53 951.17 955.50
Transmission Cost 122.92 117.30 117.30
SLDC Cost 0.79 0.79 0.79
Less : Rebate -11.44 -11.44
Total Power purchase Cost(A) 1,120.24 1,057.82 Note-26 1,062.15
Outsource and contractual man power
cost of Rs.86.24 crores grouped under
Employee Cost 402.42 386.22 Note-28 440.91 |employees cost in true up petition
whereas same is grouped under A&G
expenses in audited FS.
Repair &Maintenance Cost ( Net off Govt.
Grant Amortisation) 90.24 189.07 Note-30 189.07
Administrative & General Expenses 77.25 266.72 Note-30 180.47
Provision for bad & doubtful debts 12.99 59.25 Note-30 18.14
Depreciation( Net off Govt. Grant - Cons,
Contbn Amortisation) 32.03 46.74 | Note-4 & 25.03 (b) 40.86
Interest on loan including interest on SD 17.26 57.74 Note-29 41.75
Interest on Term Loan (normative) 0.89 Note-29 16.90
zzt:tl Operation &Maintenance and Other 632.19 1,006.63 928.11
Return on equity 32.00 - 48.65
Income Tax 14.07 Note-31 16.36
Total Distribution Cost 664.19 1,020.70 993.13
Less Miscellaneous Receipts 35.16 11220 | Now253 ) & 83.88
Net Distribution Cost(B) 629.03 908.49 909.25
Repayment of ASL
Total Revenue Reguirement 1,749.27 1,966.31 1,971.39
Actual Revenue net of discount 1.694.0Q 1,792.96 Note-25.03 (a) 1,792.96
SURPLUS/(GAP) -55.27 -472.35 -178.43
Expenses disallowed in last truing -up
order FY 21-22
Provisional Surplus considered 60.00
Disallowed A&G Cost
Disallowed Interest on Term Loan -
|SURPLUS/HGAP) 473 -173.35 | (178.43)




Normative Power Purchase Computation -FY 2022-23

Format- TU-2

Months Units Sold Collection T&D Losses (I:z :‘;:t';‘i’t:) Actual Input gz::al B3R Bg:rg:;ttive 'Tra:s(::::;iﬁr;? Tng%lbmte_r ('ghc::;le?;g: T:::?cig:: :
(In MU) Efficiency (In MU) Units (nRs.Crs) | “(InRs. Crs) Charges ) e p?wer (Rs Crs) . | Cost.. |
B il S sl L (Re.Crs) s L Cre) L e
Apr 99% 25.00% - 380.09 86.28 0.00] 1051 - 0.07 10.58
May 99% 25.00% - 397.27 90.18 0.00 10.98 . 0.07 11.05
June 891.30 99% 25.00% 1,188.41 391.35 88.66 269.60 10.85 - 0.07 280.51
July 275.41 99% 25.00% 367.21 367.06 8332 83.36 1018 - 0.07 93.60
Aug 281.85 99% 25.00% 375.79 37255 84.43 85.17 10.33 - 007 95.56
Sep 271.05 99% 25.00% 361.39 357.53 81.16 82.04 9.90 - 0.07 92.00
Oct 257.10 99% 25.00% 342.80 338.94 76.94 77.82 937 - 0.07 87.25
Nov 23417 99% 25.00% 312.22 317.89 72.16 70.87 8.77 - 0.07 79.71
Dec 254.27 99% 25.00% 339.03 320.88 72.84 76.96 912 : 0.07 86.14
Jan 218.67 99% 25.00% 291.56 325.78 73.05 66.18 8.99 : 0.07 75.24
Feb 201.97 99% 25.00% 269.30 264.54 72.45 73.53 851 s 0.07 82.10
Mar 269.86 99% 25.00% 359.81 354.57 68.79 69.98 9.79 - 0.07 79.84
Total - 3,155.64 4207.52]  4188.45 951.17 '955.50 117.30 0.00 0.79 1,073.59
\S\Q‘E\"\N 008 6_/;\\
< g\
3\ 5




Format-TU-3

Employee Expenses FY 2022-23

Particulars Em"""""_%?f,",?"“’[‘ |tP-cTC *(Rs. Crs) e 5;':;‘ 3822“’2'37&'{;"1?‘
e . Gl o1 R g bl S 202223 T
Salaries , wages and bonus 152.61 69.40 222.01 222.01
Outsource and contractual employees expenses 86.24
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 8.25 3.56 11.81 11.81
Staff welfare expenses 24.50 3.02 27.52 27.52
Terminal benefit expenses-Trust 116.79 4.91 121.69 121.69
Employees Actuarial Provision 31.53 0.00
Total 414.57 469.28
Less: Employee cost capitalization -28.37 -28.37
Total 386.22 440.91

* Kindly refer previous year figures of Audited financials FY-2023-24




Format -TU-4

Repair & Maintenance Expenses FY 2022-23

iy ¥ o - * e 5
SiNo | Cotegory:. | Description Fog gl B
PRl = ST Accounts e
1 AMC - Primary Substations & Feeders 12.51 12.51
2 Material required for Maintenance of 33 KV Network 1.82 1.82
3 STS Testing/Overhauling/Reconditioning of Transformers 3.33 3.33
4 Materials for Repairing/Service of Circuity Braeakers/CT&PT
5 Distribution AMC Contract 114.42 114.42
6 o Distribution Materials (O/H) 10.15 10.15
Distribution
7 Distribution Materials (U/G) 7.72 7.72
8 Material & Services for Distribution Transformer Repairing 13.47 13.47
9 PSC 0.85 0.85
10 Others Admin. AMC 24.79 24.79
11 Civil 0.01 0.01
Total -A 189.07 189.07
12 |GOVT.FUND  [R&M-P&M - -
Total -B - -
GRAND Total (A+B) 189.07 189.07
13 Less amortisation of Govt Grant shown in Misc income in B _
audlted Accounts
kLT e e L

* Kindly refer previous year figures of Audited financials FY-2023-24




Format-TU-5

Administrative & General (A&G) Expenses

* Actual Expenses

A&G for Truing Up

Do | Bescrption - (Rs.Crjasper |  FY2022.23
Audited Accounts | . - -
1 Rent, Rates & Taxes 213 213
2 |Watch & ward Expenses 4.28 4.28
3 |Communication 224 224
4  |Legal, Consultancy & Professional Charges 8.82 8.82
5 |Conveyance & Travelling 19.34 19.34
6 |Licence & Related Expenses 2.01 2.01
7  |Advertisement Expenses ( Public Relation) 1.66 1.66
8 |Metering,billing and collection expenses 88.39 88.39
9  |Printing & Stationary 2.9 2.91
10 |Enforcement Activities 5.31 5.31
11 |Safety & Ethics & -
12 |Training 1.17 117
13 |Insurance 213 213
14 |House Keeping 8.91 8.91
15 |Covid/Employee Welfare Expenses - -
16 [Facility Management Services 1.26 1.26
17  |Electricity expenses 4.28 4.28
18 |Fooding Expenses 11.93 11.93
19 |Other Expenses 13.71 13.71
20 |Outsource and contractual employees expenses 86.24
Total - A 266.72 180.47
21  |Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debt 59.25 18.14
Total - B 59.25 18.14
Grand Total (A+B) 325.97 198.61
22 |Less:- Provision for bad & doubtful debts shown separately 59.25 18.14
23 Administratwe & Q’enefal Expenses 266.72 180.47

* Kindly refer previous year figures of Audited financials FY-2023-24




Return on Equity (ROE) In Rs. Cr.

Format -TU-6

Sl. No Particulars FY 2020-21 (3 months) FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23
1 |opening Equity 200.00 200.00 24353
B R -
3 |[Total (1+2) 200.00 243,53 364.61
RoE ( Opening ) 8.00 32.00 38.97
RoE ( Addition) ) - 3.48 9.69
4 [Total RoE ~ 8.00 35.48 48.65




Format-TU-7
Misc Income as per Audited Accounts

Sk No. Particulars ~ Accounts | .T,"F‘{"_'?@c‘!,? . Remarks © .
? " (InRs.Crs): .| {InRs. Crs) s i 5
. S AU EY 2022:-28
1 |Amortisation of consumer contribution 9.87 9.87Netted off against Depreciation
2 |Amortisation of Govt Grants in capital nature 1.70 1.70|Netted off against Depreciation
3 |Amortisation of Consumer contribution- Meter 0.00 0.00
4 |Recovery of Meter Rent 21.36 9.60 :Secr)]r:swer IFDS FEPYGTmeiee
5 |Overdrawal penalty recovered 1.03 1.03
6 |Incentives on arrear Collection 16.63 - |Vesting Order
7 |Open Access Cross Subsidy Income 0.00 0.00
8 [Supervision Charges 11.26 11.26
9 |Miscellaneous operating Income 26.20 26.20
10 |Interest Income 19.66 19.73|Soubhagya Interest of Rs.0.07
11 |Delayed payament surcharge 13.64 13.64
12 [Other Income 2.42 2.42
Total- Other Operating & other income 123.78 95.46
Less
13 |Amortisation of consumer contribution 9.87 9.87|Netted off against Depreciation
14 |Amortisation of Govt Grants in capital nature 1.70 1.70|Netted off against Depreciation
15 |Amortisation of Consumer contribution- Meter 0.00 0.00
16 |Total 1158 1158 Netted off against amortisation of
Govt Grants
‘Net balance as per audited accounts for Truing up 112.20 83.88

* Kindly refer previous year figures of Audited financials FY-2023-24




Normative Interest on Term Loan (In Rs. Cr.)

Format-TU-8

FY 2020-21 (3

Bl TR monew) | PR | Fvama

1 |Opening Balance - - 98.50
2 |Loan (Normative) during the year - 101.58 282.52
3 Repayments during the Year(Equal to Depreciation) 3.08 18.99
4  [Closing Balance - 98.50 362.02
5 |Average Balance - 49.25 230.26
6 [Rate of Interest 6.90% 6.90% 7.34%
7 |Interest Amount - 3.40 16.90
8 |Capitalisation - 145.11 403.59
9 [Total Capex - 145.11 403.59
10 |Funded by : -

11 [Debt (70%) - 101.58 282.52
12 [Equity (30%) - 43.53 121.08




Format- TU-9

Calculation of Interest on Working Capital (Normative) and Security Deposits (Actual) FY 2022-23 (Rs. Crs. )

Th" e I B [ el Approvalby
.~ SL No. " Particulars * . - " | Normative .. | OERC for FY shyatitsudited)
i - a = i Iz | Al 5 Al - Parameters . .
3T o L o Wl 22-23 TR e T s el
1 Operation & maintenance expenses
Employee cost 440.91 402.42 440.91
Other Expenses 369.54 167.49 369.54
Total O&M 810.45 569.91 810.45
Operation & maintenance expenses Per annum 810.45 810.45
Operation & maintenance expenses Per month 67.54 67.54
2 Power purchase cost for one month 89.11 89.11
3 Maintenance of spare@20% of R&M Expenses 3.15 3.15
4 Depreciation on Legacy asset -21.86 -21.86
TOTAL 137.93 137.93
Interest rate on working capital 6.58% _
§  |Gross Interest on Working Capital 9.08 : i 39.06)
6 Interest on security deposits 18.68| i ' .18.68| ‘ 3 =y
= Y ey ‘ g o C07 i - | mtereston Opening Short term barrowing
: e = ot transforred as per carved out . - .~ 7T . U
7  [OtherFinance Cost™ ordor:158,90@7.91% of Ra. 12 67 orore
e g Ly e ; « [and other finance chargss of Rs. 1.43 crore
8 Total interest including interest on SD




ANNEXURE 2




Format-TU-1

Truing -Up for the FY 2023-24 (Rs. Crs

S Trueup

o ek SR Approval by Mualf{Atjditéd Rafe_renge from - L g dering.
Expenditure OERC for FY |. oo Lo | - Audited Annual ) T T E
o 2 2324 | Ae0OUNS) 1 ccounts FY-23.24 | Normative T&D
L ] ! A SR b - gt r”;.,_,lvoss( 25.00% . °
INPUT(MU) 4920.00 4345.31 4259.93
Cost of power purchase 1,033.20 912.51 894.58
Transmission Cost 118.08 103.69 103.69
SLDC Cost 0.76 0.76 0.76
Less : Rebate -9.27 -9.27
Total Power purchase Cost(A) 1,152.04 1,007.69 Note-26 989.76
Outsource and contractual man power cost of
g Rs.89.25 crores grouped under employees cost in true
Employee Cost 495,76 428.11 Note-28 474.97 up petition whereas same is grouped under A&G
expenses in audited FS.
Repair &Maintenance Cost ( Net off Govt.
Grant Amortisation) 162.57 176.87 Note-30 176.87
Administrative & General Expenses 112.66 238.38 Note-30 149.14
Provision for bad & doubtful debts 19.91 42.89 Note-30 17.89
Depreciation( Net off Govt. Grant - Cons.
Contbn Amortisation) 52.15 96.16 | Note-4 & 25.03 (b) 82.08
Interest on loan including interest on SD 59.78 69.79 Note-29 45.91
Interest on Term Loan 32.28 Note-29 40.88
'(I;zt;l Operation &Maintenance and Other 292,83 1,084.48 987,74
Return on equity 39.67 - 68.76
Income Tax 13.86 Note-31 23.13
Total Distribution Cost 932.50 1,098.34 1,079.63
: . Note-25.3 (b) &

Less Miscellaneous Receipts 55.82 115.93 26.01 86.35
Net Distribution Cost(B) 876.68 982.41 993.28
Repayment of ASL
Total Revenue Requirement 2,028.72 1,990.10 1,983.04
Actual Revenqg net of discount 1,990.77 1,759.02 Note-25.03 (a) i 1',759.02
ISURPLUS/(GAP) -37.95 | ~231.08 | - -224.03
True up of Surplus/(Losses) for FY 2021- 100.49
22 and FY-2020-21 '
Provisional Surplus considered 60.00
Disallowed A&G Cost
Disallowedjnterest on Term Loan
SURPLUS/(GAP) 254 -231.08 (224.03)




Normative Power Purchase Computation -FY 2023-24

Format- TU-2

o | unitesold | coliestion | .. | inputunits "A;tuill;léét.: § g R e o | Normative 'rra:;c;::;im WE;%;‘,, Actusl SLDG | TDTONST
g - {InMU) Efficiency -‘.T&D Lovaces A‘".“’""'“"’,’x “ - Units | AmOpRC AL PORLER: 0 A Charges | power (Rs. | Charges (Rs.
SRR e | | P e | e B st ARV TR R B
Apr 286.04 99% 25.00% 381.39 376.89 80.09 8.92 . T 006
May 304.78 99% 25.00% 406.38 402.00 84.42 85.34 951 - 0.06
June 293.27 99% 25.00% 391.03 391.02 82.11 8212 931 - 0.06
July 286.44 99% 25.00% 381.92 376.49 79.06 80.20 9.36 - 0.06
Aug 278.37 99% 25.00% 37147 390.05 8191 77.95 9.17 - 0.06
Sep 281.81 99% 25.00% 375.75 361.62 75.94 78.91 861 B 0.06
Oct 276.93 99% 25.00% 369.23 372.31 7818 77.54 8.86 - 0.06
Nov 242.93 99% 25.00% 323.90 328.84 69.06 68.02 783 - 0.06
Dec 19712 99% 25.00% 262.83 305.71 64.20 55.19 7.29 ) 0.06
Jan 206.31 99% 25.00% 275.07 317.68 66.71 57.77 761 - 0.06
Feb 227.81 99% 25.00% 303.75 331.20 69.54 63.78 7.88 - 0.06
Mar 313.13 99% 25.00% 21751 391.50 82.21 87.68 0.32 ) 0.06
Total 13,1945 4259.93 '4345.31 912.51] . 894.58 103.69| 0.00 0.76




Format-TU-3

Employee Expenses FY 2023-24

iv Part:culars ; : 3 Ersmmlec?st;my (Rs' ‘_ TP-GTC Rs Crs) A:ciiru:;d;:;d | ssp:;::;;g:(’:lnig
TR B P . 4 ik gy 2023-24 -~ Cr)- 7oy
Salaries , wages and bonus 160.08 96.95 257.03 257.03
Outsource and contractual employees expenses 89.25
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 8.55 5.12 13.67 13.67
Staff welfare expenses 20.05 4.06 2411 2411
Terminal benefit expenses- Trust 117.79 7.51 125.30 125.30
Employees Actuarial Provision 4240 0.00
Total 306.47 138 46250 50035
Less: Employee cost capitalization -34.40 -34.40
: Total men k 47497




Repair & Maintenance Expenses FY 2023-24

Format -TU-4

Actual Expenses . (Rs.

S - ‘_g&@’w‘ ; {.béscﬁpﬁoh - Crj s pér Aldied 7. R&M for T_Fili;g Up FY 3023.
P e B B e L Accounts FY 2023-24 -
1 AMC - Primary Substations & Feeders 15.53 15.53
2 Material required for Maintenance of 33 KV Network 2.56 2.56
3 STS Testing/Overhauling/Reconditioning of Transformers 2.20 2.20
4 Materials for Repairing/Service of Circuity Braeakers/CT&PT 0.02 0.02
5 Distribution AMC Contract 112.58 112.58
6 o Distribution Materials (O/H) 8.15 8.15
Distribution
7 Distribution Materials (U/G) 6.29 6.29
8 Material & Services for Distribution Transformer Repairing 6.28 6.28
9 PSC 2.21 221
10 Others Admin. AMC 21.05 21.05
11 Civil 0.01 0.01
Total -A 176.87 176.87
12 GOVT.FUND |R&M-P&M -
Total -B -
GRAND Total (A+B) 176.87 176.87
13 Les_s amortisation of Govt Grant shown in Misc Income in } _
audited Accounts.
14 Net Repair and maintenance Charges shown as per: 176.87

Audited Accounts for truingup -

_176.87|




Administrative & General (A&G) Expenses

Format-TU-5

Actual Expenses

A&G fbr Truin.g‘Up

BNoi Rescription AéRd;;g'Z::oTr:ts FY 2023-24
FY 2023-24
1 Rent, Rates & Taxes 2.86 2.86
2  |Watch & ward Expenses 4.00 4.00
3 Communication 4.62 4.62
4 Legal, Consultancy & Professional Charges 10.24 10.24
5 Conveyance & Travelling 10.78 10.78
6 Licence & Related Expenses 2.60 2.60
7  |Advertisement Expenses ( Public Relation) 3.66 3.66
8 Metering,billing and collection expenses 78.13 78.13
9  |Printing & Stationary 217 217
10 |Enforcement Activities 8.35 8.35
11 |Safety & Ethics - -
12 |Training 0.68 0.68
13 [Insurance 1.32 1.32
14 |House Keeping 7.05 7.05
15 |Covid/Employee Welfare Expenses . -
16 |Facility Management Services 1.55 1.55
17  |Electricity expenses 4.44 4.44
18 |Fooding Expenses - =
19 |Other Expenses 6.69 6.69
20 |Outsource and contractual employees expenses 89.25 -
Total - A 238.39 149.14
21 |Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debt 42.89 17.89
Total -B 42.89 17.89
Grand Total (A+B) 281.27 167.03
22 I;:;:-.a tPerlc;vision for bad & doubtful debts shown 42.89 17.89
iz Administrative & General Expenses 238.39 149.14




Return on Equity (ROE) In Rs. Cr.

Format -TU-6

SI.No Particulars FY 2020-21 (3 months) FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24
1 Opening Equity 200.00 200.00 243,53 364.61
2 g‘;’e"t"‘:g"a‘;ﬁi”z‘;‘;igised on i 4353 121.08 130.31
3 |Total (1+2) 200.00 243,53 364.61 494.92
RoE ( Opening ) 8.00 32.00 38.97 58.34
RoE ( Addition) ) - 3.48 9.69 10.42
4  |Total RoE 8.00 35.48 48.65 68.76




Format-TU-7

Misc Income as per Audited Accounts

L As per Audited | NTIfor
et Pl T .~ Accounts ' | Truing Up.
S1. No. TRMEA, ‘ (nRs.Crs) | (InRs.Crs) Remetks
e okt - FY2023-24° | FY 2023-24
1__|Amortisation of consumer contribution 10.62 10.62 |Netted off against Depreciation
2 |Amortisation of Govt Grants in capital nature 1.22 1.22 |Netted off against Depreciation
3 N
4 |Recovery of Meter Rent 31.60 8.60 ?;r;sﬂer IPDS & DDUGY meter
5 _|Overdrawal penalty recovered 4.00 4.00
6 |Incentives on arrear Collection 6.58 - [Vesting Order
7 |Open Access Cross Subsidy Income 0.00 0.00
8  |Supervision Charges 14.67 14.67
9 |Miscellaneous operating Income 17.91 17.91
10 |Interest Income 29.10 29.10
11 |Delayed payament surcharge 10.44 10.44
12 |Other Income 1.62 1.62
Total- Other Operating & other income 131.83 98.19
Less
13 |Amortisation of consumer contribution 10.62 10.62|Netted off against Depreciation
14 |Amortisation of Govt Grants in capital nature 1.22 1.22|Netted off against Depreciation
f Consumer ¢ tio ~ 4,06| 0.00
16 |Total 15.90 11.85 Netted off against amortisation of
Govt Grants
Net balance as per audited accounts for Truing up 115.93 86.35




Normative Interest on Term Loan (In Rs. Cr.)

Format-TU-8

$1. No. [Particulars -F Yr:%i“t;f:) @ | Trv2o2122 | Fyzoza2s FY 202324

1 Opening Balance - - 98.50 362.02
2 |Loan (Normative) during the year - 101.58 282.52 304.06
3 [Repayments during the Year(Equal to Depreciation) 0 3.08 18.99 59.79
4  [Closing Balance - 98.50 362.02 606.30
5  |Average Balance - 49.25 230.26 484.16
6 Rate of Interest 6.90% 6.90% 7.34% 8.44%
7 [Interest Amount - 3.40 16.90 40.88
10 |Capitalisation - 145.11 403.59 434.37
11 |Total Capex - 145.11 403.59 434.37
12 |Funded by : -

13 |Debt (70%) - 101.58 282.52 304.06
14 |Equity (30%) - 43.53 121.08 130.31




Calculation of Interest on Working Capital (Normative) and Security Deposits (Actual) FY 2023-24  (Rs. Crs. )

g A e s . .ol Approvalby |, o oo -
SI. No. :.* Particulars Normative :glgc .forF\!;‘ ~ ActPual (Andtiad)
j o R proe | arameters
% P o * 2324 2 P
1 Operation & maintenance expenses
Employee cost 474.97 495.76 474.97
Other Expenses - 326.01 265.23 326.01
Total O&M 800.98 760.99 800.98
Operation & maintenance expenses Per annum 800.98 800.98
Operation & maintenance expenses Per month 66.75 66.75
2 Power purchase cost for one month 84.75 84.75
3 Maintenance of spare@20% of R&M Expenses 2.95 2.95
4 Depreciation on Legacy asset -22.25 -22.25
TOTAL 132.20 132.20
Interest rate on working capital 7.91%
5. |Gross Interest on Working Capital =~ 10.46 48.65( - %,
- 6. |Interest on security deposits 21.14 21.14
‘ o TR, ¥ i Irterast on Opening Short term b&n}éwing ¥
7. |OtherFinance Cost o143 174505087 o1% of R 1257 arore
; ‘ : ; L and other fiance charges of Rs. 1.74 crore
8. . |Total interest including interest on SD 45.91 71.53
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SRBC&COLLP A. K. Sabat & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
22, Camac Street, 3™ Floor Sahid Nagar

Block ‘B’, Kolkata — 700 016 Bhubaneswar ~ 751 007
India

Tel - +91 33 6134 4000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of TP Southern Odisha Distribution Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TP Southern Odisha Distribution
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.




.| available, outcome of the Company’s

| acquired this business w.e.f. January

allowance on trade receivables using judgement relating to collection considering

its best estimate considering various business environment in which the Company

factors such as segregation between operates and rights available with the Company

government and non-government | to recover amount due from customers for
| consumers, security deposit | estimating the amount of ECL allowance.

SRBC&COLLP A. K. Sabat & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
22, Camac Street, 3" Floor Sahid Nagar

Block ‘B’, Kolkata — 700 016 Bhubaneswar - 751 007
India

Tel - +91 33 6134 4000

matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial statements.

’K‘ey‘ ‘audlt matter I How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(a) Expected credit Ioss on. trade recelvables :as descnbed in.Note 10 of the financial
statements) '
|

The Company has outstanding gross | Our audit procedures included the following:
trade receivables of Rs 605.53 crore | ¢«  Optained an understanding of the Company’s

‘as at March 31, 2024, including process and tested internal controls associated
overdue / aged receivables. with the management's assessment of

, determining ECL allowance for trade
The Company supplies electricity to | receivables.

various types of customers including
individual customers with wide
ranging characteristics in the
Southern Odisha. There exists
inherent exposure to credit risk for
these customers. The Company has

| « Obtained an understanding of the management
plan and steps being taken to collect all
receivables including overdue / aged
receivables.

¢ Evaluated management’s assessment of
recoverability of the outstanding receivables
including recoverability of overdue/ aged
receivables through inquiry with management, |
and analysis of recent collection trends in
respect of receivables particularly aged
receivables.

1, 2021 and limited past experiences |
are available to estimate credit loss.
allowance.

The Company has recognised
Expected Credit- Loss (ECL)|® Evaluated management’s assumption and

* Evaluated management’s continuous

assessment of the assumptions used in the |
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Key audlt matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

recent payment behaviour as weII as

the fact that electricity is an essential

commodity and regulations require
-consumers to clear old dues to get
 continuous electricity etc.

Based on the above mechanism and
using its best estimate, the Company
has accounted ECL provision of Rs

date.

 The appropriateness of the provision
 for expected credit loss is subjective
due to the high degree of judgment
applied by management. Due to the
significance of trade receivables and
.the related estimation uncertainty this

122.22 crore as on the balance sheet |

is considered to be a key audit matter. |

credit loss provision computation. These
considerations include whether - there are
regular receipts from the customers and the |
Company’s past collection history.

Verified mathematical accuracy of provision
computation based on credit loss estimation
model used and other factors considered by the |
management.

Assessed the disclosures
statements.
Obtained
representation.

in the financial |

necessary .. management

f‘" Bemg regulated distribution business,
| tariff of the Company is determined
|' by the regulator on cost plus return on
equity basis wherein the cost is |
subject to prudential norms. The |
Company invoices its customers on |

the basis of pre-approved tariff which
is subject to true up.

The Company recognizes revenue at
the amount invoiced to customers
based on pre-approved tariff rates. As
the Company is entitled to a fixed
return on equity and applicable

the revenue recognized and
-entitlement as per the regulation is
) recognized as regulatory
ﬁm‘as\setslhabnmes The Company has |
Z(g'(“ kata ‘g}“
\ S J

'S | as descrlbed in Note 33 of the fmanc:al statements[

Our audit procedures included the following:

incentives, the difference between |

Obtained an understanding of the Company’s |
process and tested internal controls associated
with the estimation and recoverability of such
regulatory deferral balances.

Read the tariff regulations and tariff orders and
evaluated relevant clauses to understand
management’s assessment on allowability of
various income and expenses and consequent
recognition/ measurement of regulatory deferral
account balances.

Discussed with the management to understand

their assessment on each qualitative and
quantitative factor and reviewed consistency of

the management’'s explanation with the
underlying  documentation, rules, and
regulations. '




SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

22, Camac Street, 3" Floor
Block ‘B’, Kolkata — 700 016
India

Tel - +91 33 6134 4000

A. K. Sabat & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Sahid Nagar
Bhubaneswar - 751 007

| Key audit matter

622.42 crore as at March 31, 2024.

norms.

1 Judgements are made in determining

of tariff regulations. Further, in the
| true-up order, the regulator has
| observed that certain expenses
.booked in the audited accounts are
“higher than the approved costs and
disallowed certain expenses. The
regulator has also stated
| currently expenses have been
“allowed on the basis of pragmatic
| approach. The Company is taking

management to claim allowance for
disallowed expenses and has treated
these expenses as recoverable/
pass-through to the customer through
subsequent regulatory orders.

Considering judgements involved in
estimating various elements of true
up order and resulting regulatory
deferral account balance, we have
determined this to be a key audit
|_matter.

recognized regulatory assets of Rs

Accruals are determined based on |
tariff regulations and past tariff orders .
| and are subject to verification and
| approval by the regulators. Further
the costs incurred are subject to
prudential checks and prescribed |

| the accruals including ‘interpretation |

that |

steps considered appropriate by the |,

g How our audlt addressed the key audlt matter

Assessed management’s evaluation and true
up review petition and correspondences filed
with regulators for the likely outcome in respect
of material disallowances made by the
regulators.

Assessed impact, if any, recognized by the
Company in respect of tariff orders received.

Re-calculated workings obtained from the
management to check arithmetical accuracy of |
the calculations. :
Assessed disclosures made by the Company in.
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 114
“Regulatory Deferral Accounts.”

Obtained
representation.

hecessary management

Other Information

~ The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as-a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
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auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
- - planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the
matters stated in the paragraph (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
S Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Mar2e Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
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)

(9)

(h)

disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under
Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024
has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note 35 to the financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. (@) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

c)  Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

A No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has
used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares
except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data when
using certain access rights, as described in note 46 to the financial
statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the
accounting softwares.

ForSRBC & COLLP For A. K. Sabat & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 ICAI Firm registration number: 321012E
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per Shivam Chowdhary o e Per Bl R, Mohanty ,_* l Bhubanesw /
Partner (-No) Partner

1]
\> 2
Membership Number: 057266 od Ac Ao
UDIN: 24067077BKFSEW8052 UDIN: 24057266BKGPYZ 1334
Place of Signature: Bhubaneswar ; Place of Signature: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 19, 2024 hn Date: April 19, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date

Re: TP Southern Odisha Distribution Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we state that:

N @

(b)

(©

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets.

All property, plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the
management during the year but there is a regular programme of verification of
all the property, plant and equipment over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. In accordance with the planned programme, a portion of the
property, plant and equipment was verified during the year. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not hold any land in its name. As regard the buildings,
thereon, the Company retains operational rights over the buildings used for the
purpose of carrying out distribution business under a license granted by the
Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission. Thus, verification of title deeds is not
applicable for such buildings.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory during the
year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and the coverage
and the procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate.
Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not
noticed on such physical verification.
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(b) As disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from
banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.
Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial
statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such
banks are in agreement with the unaudited books of accounts of the Company.
The Company does not have sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.
five crores in aggregate from financial institutions during the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company.

(iii) (@) During the year, the Company has provided unsecured loans to its employees as

follows:
R ‘ (Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particutars S — .| Loans
‘Aggregate amount provided during the year |
- __Employees - 18.37

Balancing outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect above
cases (post-acquisition of business)
Employees - ; 2.59

During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee and provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any party other than as mentioned above.

(b) During the year, the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances
in the nature of loans are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Further, during
the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loan to firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other party.

The Company has granted loans during the year to employees where the
schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated and the repayment of
receipts are regular.

There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are
overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

() The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security given by the Company post-
acquisition of business in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the service of distribution of
electricity, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records
have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination
of the same.

(@) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable
to it though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable. During the year, the Company did not have any
undisputed dues towards sales-tax, service tax, duty of excise, duty of customs
and value added tax.

(b) The dues of services tax have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are
as follows:
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T N - Period to whici:n o
Amount Forum where
Name of the . the amount . .
Nature of dues (Rsin | dispute is
statute Srdres) relates endin
I | (S | (Financial Year) | P 9
The Finance | Service tax 16.33 | FY 2014-15 to FY | CESTAT, Kolkata
Act, 1994 ‘ 2017-18"

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income tax, sales-tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(vii)  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (@) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

() The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

() (@) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public
e offer / further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to
ﬁl& N report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
o C
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(b)

@

(b)

(©)

(a

(b)

(c)

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under
audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT
— 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit
procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii}(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report,
for the period-under audit have been considered by us.
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(xv)

(xvi)

{xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the
Group has five CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India and two
CiCs which are not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year as well as in the
immediately preceding financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has.come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within

-~ a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company

as and when they fall due.
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(xx) (@) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies
Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135
of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 30.3 to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required
to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section
(6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 30.3
to the financial statements.

(xxi) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP For A. K. Sabat & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 ICAI Firm registration number: 321012E

L. ChordH

per Shivam Chowdhary
Partner
Membership Number: 067077

Per B. R. Mohanty
Partner
Membership Number: 057266
UDIN: 24067077BKFSEW8052 UDIN: 24057266BKGPYZ1334
Place of Signature: Bhubaneswar e Place of Signature: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 19, 2024 " Date: April 19, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of TP
Southern Odisha Distribution Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued
by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating
= gffectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

dncial statem nﬁfég sing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
/ < q A
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evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
“of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

iR In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls

p {bf’g & C ith reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
; P\BArﬁ
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Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
22, Camac Street, 3™ Floor Sahid Nagar
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India

Tel - +91 33 6134 4000

financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

ForSRBC & COLLP For A. K. Sabat & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 ICAIl Firm registration number: 321012E
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Place of Signature: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 19, 2024
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

S Fey: - ot
Particulars Notes March 31,2024 March 31,2023
- I - - ¥ crore ¥ crore
ASSETS -
(A) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 1,496.35 1,119.95
{b) Capital work in progress 5 379.57 129.62
(c) Intangible asséts 4 106.33 69.78
{d) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets [ 32.04 25.97
(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 7 72.95 54.07
(f) Non-current tax assets (net) 3.20 2.99
(g) Other non-current assets 8 20,21 14.77
Total non-cusrent assets (A) 2,111.05 1,417.15
(B) Cuitent assets
() Inventories 9 53.87 45.22
{b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 483.31 509.50
(i) Unbilled revenue 155.50 130.03
(iii) Cash and cash equivalants 11 140.77 174.00
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii} above 11 1,075.88 849.46
(v) Other financial assets 12 44.11 42,31
(c) Other current assets 13 i 9.75 11.21
Total current assets (B) ' *1,963.19 1,761.73
(C) Total assets before latory deferral (A+B) 4,074.24 3,178.88
(D) Regulatory deferral account- Assets 33 622.42 298.04
(E) Total assets (C+D) ... ... 4,696.66 . 3,476.92
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{A) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 14 510.94 368.94
(b) Other equity 15 160.77 124.20
Total equity (A) = 67171 493.14
Liabilities
{B) Non-current liabilitles
(2) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 492.13 210.60
(il) Other financial liabilities 17 128.16 75.90
{b) Provisions 18 382.87 262.52
() Other non-current liabilities 19 = 1,212,19 - o 769,34
Totatl non-cutrent liabilities (B) : 2,215.35 ' 1,318.36
(C) Current liabilities
{@) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 589.25 647,91
(i1} Trade payables 21
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 45,01 33.26
and small enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 153.41 74.60
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 22 851.33 759.22
{b) Other current liabilities 23 137.18 111.94
(c) Pravisions 18 33.42 30.56
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 24 - 7.93
Total current liabilities (C) '1,809.60 - 1,665.42

{D) Total liabilities (B+C) B 4,024,995 2,983.78
(E) Total equity and liabilities (A+D) ;

476.92 -

As per our report of even date

For S RB C & COLLP For A.K. Sabat & Ca. For and on behaf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants TP Southern Odisha Distribution Limited
ICAI FRN: 324982E/ E3000) ' L
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TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN : U401090R2020PLC035195
Kamapalli,Courtpeta,Berhampur,Ganjam,Odisha-760004
Website:www.tpsouthernodisha.com; Email:tpsodl@tpsouthernodisha.com

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

- Year ended Year enaed'
I
it Notes March 31,2024 March 31,2023
e S 1
I. Revenue from operations 25 1,828.73 1,853.12
II. Other income 26 " 62,12 ... .B3.63.
II1. Total income (I+II) 1,890.85 1,916.75
IV. Expenses
Cost of power purchased and transmission charges 27 1,007.69 1,057.82
Employee benefits expense (net) 28 428.11 386.22
Finance costs 29 102.07 58.62
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4 112.06 58.32
Other expenses 30 458.13 515.04
Total expenses (IV) 2,108.06: ..2,076.02
V. g.:s(sl)l II:eI:,o)re movement in regulatory deferral balance and (217.21) (159.27)
Add: Movement in regulatory deferral balances (net) 33 267.44 217.52
Add/(Less): Deferred tax recoverable/(payable) 33 0,20 . (11.43)
: “267.64 ~206.00
VI. Profit before tax 50.43 46.82
VIL. Tax expense
(1) Current tax 31 12.36 19.41
(2) Current tax in respect of earlier year 31 1.30 6.09
(3) Deferred tax {credit)/expense 31 0.20 (11.43)
VIIL. Profit for the period (VI-VII) e 36.57. . ) .. 32,75 .
IX. Other comprehensive income
1tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (net) 32 ; TP S — -
Total other comprehensive income - D -
X. Total comprehensive income for the period (VIII+IX) S . 36.57 " 32,75
XI. Earnings per equity share (face value of ¥ 10/~ each)
Earnings per equity share {excluding regulatory income (net)}
Basic and Diluted (in ¥) (4.43) (4.89)
Earnings per equity share {including regufatory income (net)}
Basic and Diiuted (in %) 0.99 1.32

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: 324982E/ E300003
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Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: 321012E

For and on behalf of the Board of
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TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

CIN : U401090R2020PLC035195

Kamapalli,Courtpeta,Berhampur,Ganjam,Odisha-760004
Website: www.tpsouthernodisha.com; Email:tpsodl@tpsouthernodisha.com

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars No. of Shares “Amount
. S _(% crore)

Balance as at April 1, 2023 36,89,40,000 . iy 94
Issued during the year i 14,20,00,000 | 142.00
|Balanc 38 t March 31; 2024 [ [ ; 51, DQ‘LMJ“DOO“» ; -510.94
Particulars No. of Shares Amount

e AR crore).
‘|Balance as at April 1, 2022 24,79,40,000 . 247.94
Issued during the year 12,10,00,000 121.00
Balance as at March 31,.2023 36,89,40,000 368.94 |
B. Other Equity _ _ S— - —
Particulars Retained Earnings TolB) e

! - T crore € crore |
'|Balance as at April 1, 2023 124.20 124.20
Profit for the year 36.57) 36.57
|Other comprehensive income for the year = .
Total comprehensive income 36.57 36.57
[Balance as at March 31,2024 16077 160.77)
particulars Retained Earnings Total

A — ... ¥ crore . ¥ crore __|
Balance as at April 1, 2022 91.45 91.45
Profit for the year 32.75 32.75
Other comprehensive income for the year - P
Total Comprehensive Income 32.75 32.75
Balance as at March 31, 2023 124.20 124.20|

..The accompan ing notes forms an inte ral part of the financi | statements

As per our report of even date
For SRB C & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: 324982E/ E300003
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 21, 2024

Accoumnting Policy

Cash Flows frosn operating activities are reported uslng the imilrect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and item of income or expenses ing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, Investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated and presented sepa'ately The Company considers all highly liquid investments that are readily-convartible to known amounts of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value to be cash aquivalents,

gi\lvw&pm

) Year ended
|Partiedtars o __March 31,2024,
I A Cash Flow from operating activities RN RS
Profit befare tax 50.43
Ad;usmmumn to recancila profit and loss to net cash provided by operating activities
P and lan 112.06°; 58.32:
Praovision for contingencies 0.24 5.79:
‘Amortisation of Consumer Contribution & Grant for capital work (15.50) (11,58
Finance costs {net of capitalisation) 102,07 58.62
Interest income on term deposits (29.10) {19.65)
Income from delayed payment charges (10.44) (13.64)
Loss on disposal / writa off of property, plant and equipment # 0.06 0.00°
Allowanices far doubtful receivables 42.89 59.28
Operating profit bafore working capital changes 252.31 183.93
for (i J in 0 dsgets:
Inventories ) (8.66) {16.91),
Trade receivables (16.70) (153.68)
Other finandial assets - current 135 18.7¢
Other financial assets ~ non current (1.20) (1.49);
Unbilied revenue (25.47) (8.92)
Other current assets 146 | (1.19)
Regulatory deferral account- Assets -[267.64) 206.09)
Movamant in operating assets i (369,50)
nents for (decrease) in 3 e :
Trade payables . 90.56 (80.53)
Cther financial liabilities - current (15.60) D.69
Cther finandial liabilities - non current 52.26- 48,91 ¢
Other current Habilities 24,44 99.08 |
Provisions - current 2.62 i
Provisions ~non current 44.54 .
I 108,
Cash Flow generated from/{usad in) operations 134.27
Income tax paid (Net of refund received, . {21.80)
_ " Net cash flow generated froriv/ {used) In operatiniy activities* “(A) . L1247
B. Cash flow from investing activities 3
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment .04 0.08
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment and Intanglible assets {including capital work in
progress, capital advances and net of capital craditors) (648.58) (429,95)
Delayed payment charges recaived 10.44 13.64
Interest income on fixed deposits. 25.95 ¢ 15.12 |
Dzoosls made ith banks mt consmered s cash and cash equivalents (3,313.87) (1,378.57)
R a5 cash and cash equivalents . 308258 i
st cash flow used in investing activities - i o {843.44)
€. Cash flow from financing activities ¥
Proceeds from issuance of eguity shares. 72.42. ] ;
Financé costs patd (80.12) ;
Proceeds from subsldles towards cost of capital assel:s 496.07
Refund of Ct (44.78) i
Prm:eedslhdlus‘m!mlkefuuﬂ of Security deposit from electricity consumers(net) 51.08:
Interest pald on Security Deposit from Consumer (19.79)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 2,542.28
Repayments of short-term barrowinas (net) (2,623.84) ¢
Proceeds from long-term borrowing 322,28
| Reayment of lonti-te:m.borrowinis {17.861"
%@ﬂwﬂ (G - [097.74
.| D. Not (docrense) /incrense in cash and cash’ aguivalents (A+B+C) (33.23) (3.05)|
!. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 174.00 177.05 |
d and cash @ lvalunn at the end of tha yéa 27
H Issue of right shares ﬂ:r amsldemlon other than qash,,. ... .. 5
1 # 0.00 represents amount below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company
2 *Net cash flow from aperatmg activities includes an amount of 21.55 crore (March 31, 2023: ¥ 1.26 cmre) towards Curpnrnta social rvspmslbllkv.
i Asat]’
! euh and cash equivalents include: March :a,znzs March 31,2023
VL " z -
(@) 5 With banks - in CUrTent accounts T R PR TR T 44;68° TR
b) Cheques on hand 6.09 12,32¢
) Cash on hand 9.45 13.16
i |(d) Deposit having original ‘maturity of less than 3 months 80:55 66..
L__Total cash and ::sh 140,77 I}

The ac:

As peér our r!port of even rlm:e

ForSRBC&COLLP For A.K. Sabat & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
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TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 1

Corporate Information

TP Southern Odisha Distribution Limited (TPSODL or the Company) is a public limited company, domiciled and incorporated in India and
is engaged in the business of distribution of electricity in Southern Odisha. The Company has been incorporated on December 25, 2020
under the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended). Pursuant to Vesting Order issued by the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission
(*OERC') dated December 28, 2020, the Company acquired the business of distributing power in Southern Odisha (*business’) from
SOUTHCO Utility with effect from January 1, 2021 (Vesting Date). Accordingly, the Company is a licensee to carry out the function of
distribution and retail supply of electricity covering the distribution circles of Southern state of Odisha for a period of 25 years effective
from January 1, 2021, which also marked the commencement of commercial operations for the Company.

The registered office of the Company is located at Kamapalli, Courtpeta, Berhampur -760 004, Ganjam, Odisha.

The Company is subsidiary of The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) which holds 51% equity shares and balance 49% equity shares
are held by GRIDCO Ltd.

NOTE 2
Material accounting policies
2.01 Stat t of li

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified under the
Companles (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as
amended from time to time). The Company also applies requirement of Division II to Schedule HI of the Companies Act 2013,
while presenting financlal statements. During the year, certain amendments to Ind AS have become applicable and been
adopted by the Company. However, their applications did not have any material impact on financial position and financial
performance of the Company.

2.02 Basis of preparation and presentation

{a) Carrying amount of security deposits as per the general ledger is lower by ¥0.61 crore as compared to balance as per
consumer ledger .

- certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments):

- mployee benefit exp (refer note 18 for accounting policy)
The financial statements are presented in ¥ and all values are rounded to the nearest crore (¥'00,00,000), except when
otherwise indicated. The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a
golng concern.

NOTE 3
Other material ting

critical estims and jud

Accounting policies are set out along with respective explanatory notes where it specifically relates to such transactions or
balances. Other significant accounting policies are set out below:

3.01  Foreign currencies .
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (¥), which is the functional currency of the Company.
Transactions and balances -
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional currency spot rates at the transactton first
qualifies for recognition. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities aré translated at the exchange rate
prevailing on the Balance Sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.02 Current versus ‘non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classlfication. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

- expécted to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
- held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.
All other assets are classifled as non-current.
A liabllity is current when:

- it Is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
- itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
The COrnpany classifies all other Nabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STA'I'EMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 .

3.03

3.04

3.04.1

3.04.2

3.04.3

3.04.4

3.04.5

3.04.6

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Except for trade receivables, financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Trade receivables are
measured at the transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financlial liabilities measured
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest
income or éxpense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of asséts within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place,

All recognised financlal assets are subsequently measured In their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value through profit
or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income, deépending o the classification of the financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost )
A *financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
(i) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and

(ii) contractual terms of the assét give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financlal assets at FVTPL are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Fi ial ignated at fair value through other prek ive § (FVTOCI)(debt intruments)

A financial asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if both the following criteria are met:

(a) the objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,

and

(b) the asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

I i t of fi ial asset

The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at

amortised cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset not designated as at

FVTPL.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial assét that result from transactions that are

within the scope of Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, the Company always measures the loss allowance at

an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses using the simplified approach permitted under Ind AS 109 "Financial

Instruments”.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a

practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision

matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors

and the economic environment.

Der ition of i jal asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financlal asset or part of a Comparty of similar financial assets) is primarily

derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred Its rights to receive cash flows fram an asset or has entered into a pass-thraugh
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are

measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Offsetting of financial asset
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet If there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously,




TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND.FOR THE.YEAR ENDED. MARCH 31, 2024

3.05

3.05.1

3.05.2

3.05.3

3.05.4

3.06

Financial liabilities and equity instruments”

Initial r ition and t

Financial liabllities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loan and
borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, ret of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial labilities include trade and other payables, lcans and borrowings inciuding bank overdrafts, security
deposit from electricity consumers, consumer contributions for work under progress, capital creditors etc.

quent
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit orioss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/
losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more lnfonﬁation refer note 16 & 20.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Der ition of fi ial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new Hability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Fair value measurement

Fair-value is the price that would be received o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability .in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability Is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A falr value' measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s abllity to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avallable to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

-Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement Is
unobservable
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TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES . FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED.MARCH 31, 2024

"For #isgets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether

transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and other assets/ liabilities acquired as part
of business combination.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Lease accounting

At Inception of contract, the Company assesses whéther the Contract is or contains a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if
the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. At
inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative standalone price.

As a Lessee

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of iease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received and estimate of costs to dismantle. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and-the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Lease {iabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities méasured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company generally uses its
incremiental borrowing rate at the lease commencement “date if the discount. rate ‘implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. '

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. The carrying amount is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a
change in index or rate. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases. It also applies the lease of low-valué
assets recognition exemption that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised, and
the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution Is authorised
when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it Is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an
asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Busi binati and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
interests In the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are expensed in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services
are received, with the exception of the costs of issuing debt or equity securities that are recognised in accordance with Ind AS
32 and Ind AS 109.

At the acquisition date, the identiflable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair
values. For this purpose, the liabllities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are
measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not
probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated
below:

- Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

- Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a
result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

-:When the Company acquires a busi , it the fi ial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquirse.
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3.11

3.12

" “Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred over the net

identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, If the fair value of the net assets acquired s in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the
liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the
reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred,
then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of
bargain purchase, the Company recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost léss any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or mare frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other asseéts of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of ‘each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
as well as other assets, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill Is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The
measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In. the application of the Company's accounting. policies, the Management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlylng assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revislons to accounting estimates are recogniseéd
In the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calciation for each affected line item in
the financlal statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
Estimates related to accrual of requlatory deferrals and revenue recognition (refer note 33 and 25)
Estimation of expected credit loss (refer note 10)
Estimation of defined benefit obligation (refer note 18)
Estimations used for determination of tax expenses and tax balances (refer note 31}
Judgement to estimate the amount of provision required or to determine required disclosure related to litigation and
claiins against the Company - (refer note 35)
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.
New and amended standards

di t in Schedule III to C ies Act 2013:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31
March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023, The
Company applied for the first-time these amendments.

nbHawNn=

(1)Ckfinition of Accounting Estimates ~ Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the
correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company'’s financial statements,

(ii)dsclosure of Accounting Palicies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement

for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material® accounting policies
and adding guidance on how éntities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disciosures.
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NOTE 4 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and Intangible assets:

4.01 Accounting Policy :

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes purchase price (net of trade discount and rebates) and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to Its working
condition for its Intended use and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Ind AS 23. Capital
work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impalrment loss, if any. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific usefu! lives, Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacernent if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation on regulated assets

Depreciation commences when an asset Is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment in respect of electricity business of the Company covered under Part B of
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, has been provided on the straight line method at the rates specified in vesting order
and tariff regulation notified by reguiatory commission.In tariff regulation, 2022 notified in December, 2022 which shall remain
in force for control period FY 2023-24 to FY 2027-28, the regulatory commission has changed useful life of certain assets and
has provided that depreciation shall be provided as per rates notified in these regulations for first 15 years and remaining
depreciable value after a period of 15 years shall be spread over the balance useful life of the asséts.

Rate of depreciation of the property,plant and equipméent as prescribed by the Regulator is as follows:

Type of asset | Rate (Assets Rate (New assets acquired
| transferred on | post acquisition)
PR . acquisition) | .
; . 1.80% . 3.34%
o ambw [ aere
0.00% 5.28% to 15%

~9,50% T e33%
4,55% il - 6.:33%
12.86% 9,50%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with thé
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
Based on the Vesting Order/ Tariff Regulations, the residual value of the assets is considered at 10% of the Original Cost.

Depreciation on Non-regulated assets
Depreciation is recognised on the cost of assets less their tesidual valués (Nil) over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-tine method.

| t - T . . .
Type of asset Rate (New assets acquired
i post acquisition)
Others k . ; s 1 .00%
Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses if any. Amortisation Is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as
below. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting perlod, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Estimated usefui fives of the Intangible assets is as foliows:. .

Type of Intangible Asset ' 'Rate (New assets acquired

post acquisition)
Softwares ... .30.00%
Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment's or intangible assets is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrvina amount of the asset and is recoanised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of Property, plant and equip and Intangible assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there Is an indication that an asset may be impalred. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an indlvidual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverabie amount, the asset is considered impaired and Is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value In use, the estimated future post tax cash flows are discounted to their present value using a appropriate
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for
each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.
Impalrment losses of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.




4.02 ‘Property, plant-and equipment
a. Property, plant and equipment
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E ' g.crore.

Description Buildings ‘| Plant and equipment :| Motar vehicles | Furniture 7 Office Mater Total
including transmission | 17 and Equipments .
lines and cable " Fixtures
H | _network |
Cost — . =
Balance as at April 1, 2023 997.47' 3.33 10.91 70.48| 51.90, 1217.58
Additions 289.01 . 1.24 1.52 27.02 71.70] 461,99
Disposals/Adjustment ] :#(0,08)]: . - ’10.09] = - (0.14/
lﬂalmcg as at March 31, 2024 B 1,286.48/ ... 4.52] 12,43 123.60| !,'679.45'
Accumulated depreciation and impairment i il : i . 1 e
Balance as at April 1, 2023 ; 80.15 0.29 0.63 5.88 97.64
Depreciation expense 51.54 .‘ 0.3 L 18.14 85.47
= {0.013: . (0.

Dispesals/Adjustment - g
iBalance as at h 31, 2024 131.¢ 0.65]"
INnt carrying amount ) R A
|Balance as at 24 1.154.79" 3.87.
o i s e B = - T crore. .
Description ~ Buildings ‘| Plant and | Motor vehicles |-Furniture Office Meter " Total|"
_lincluding transmission and Equipments
lines and cable Fixtures ;
| network d
|cost j N B ; ] ([
|Balance as at April 01, 2022 26.94 727.76 1.00:: 5.78
/|Additions 56.55): 269.71; 2.39 £.13
Disposals/Adjustment - A1l T A -:(0.08) i
‘{Balance as at March 31, 2023 - B3.49 997.47. 3.33) 10.91
Accumulated depreciation and impairment i 1
Balance as at April 01, 2022 442.32 0.19 0.13
35.83 mooiﬂ) 0.50]
as at March 31,2023 80,15 0,29 .0.63
23 917.32[ - . 3.04 10.28]

b. Intangible assets

As at
|Adaone™ 01

Accumulated amor

As at April 01, 2023
Amortisation expense
Disposals

Bal Mar

31, 2024

et carrying amount
lance as a 2024
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Cost "
|Balance as at April 01, 2022 34.82

Additions 43.16]

Disposals i - -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 77 DEI

Accumulated amortisation and mpaarment

‘|Balanceas at April 02, 2022 0.80

Amortisation expense 7.40

Disposals a

Balance as at March 31, 2023 § 8.20

Net carrying amount I

{Balance as at March 31, 2023 3 S : 69.78
Nate : 0.00 represents amount below the rounding off norm by the Company
4,03 Depreclamon and amortisation charged to St of Profit&loss = . .. ¥ crore
- Particulars Yearended ] " Year ended
Mardl 31,2024 March 31,2023

Deprmamn on Property, plant and equlpmem: 50 91l

Add: Amgmgatioﬂ of intagglble gsggj;s

Total " oo 5832

4.04 The Cornpany does not own any land in ls name. As per terms of the Vestmg Order, fands has been given on lease to the Company for a consideration of Z1 per year, till the expiry of power
distribution license. The Company has retained operational rights over these lands used for the purpose of catrying out distribution business under the license granted by OERC. Beneficial
ownership of immovable properties constructed over the above Iands have been transferred to the Company with effect from acquisition date. As per terms of the Vasting Order, title for the
said immovable properties continues to be in the name of ration and C

4.05 The Property, nlant and equipments include assets created out of gcvemment grants. As per the terms of the Vesting Order and the Carve Out Order, these assets have been transferred to
the Company. H , the corresp g grant liability has not been transferred. The Vesting Order and the Carve Out Order also provides that depreciation charged on these assets will not
be allowed for deterrninatlon of tariff. The Company has charged depreciation on these assets:as per the ac policy foll d by the Company for other assets not created out of
grants. As per the Vesting Order and the Carve Out Order, the Company is required to utilise any amount realised through depreciation toward meetlng certain opening labilities transferred
("additional serviceabie liabillties™). If thera are any shortages in reallsation to méet these additional serviceable liabilities, then the OERC will allow such shortfall through Aggregate Revenue
Requireament ("ARR’) adjustment, i
Considering the above, the management has determined that lower dep liowed in ARR to the above requirements will not have any adverse impact on financial position and
financlal performance of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31 2024,

4.06 In accordance with the physical verification policy by the C ¥y, an party has carried out physical verification in respect of a portion of PPE belonging to the
Company. Based on reports issued by the independent party and the reconcillation prep. by the there are no material shortages which have been identified during the
process of physical verification of PPE.

4.07 Refer note 16 & 20 for charge created against borrowing

4.08 Considering the provisions of the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission Distribution (Conditions of Supply) Code, 2018, the management believes that it has legal right and ownership
over the property, plant and equipment (PPE) which were directly funded by the consumers and are being used to supply electricity to the consumers. Accordingly, during the year, the

has capitali PPE am ing to  51.87 crore (March 31, 2023: Nil) and rec ised the corr ding labllity under the head consumer contribution. Depreciation on PPE as well
as amortisation of ¥ 14.69 crore (March 31, 2023: ¥ 9.88 crore) are being recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, having no net impact on profit or loss of the Company.
The management believes that the accounting pted by the Company reflects e of the ar and is also in compliance with the applicable requirements. Based on physical
verification policy adopted by the Company, physical verification of these assets is being carried out along with other assets of the Company.

4.08 Refer note 44 for assets created with Government Fund and used by the Company.
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NOTE 5 Capital work in progress (CWIP)
5.01 Accounting Policy

TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

5.02 cwip Movement

‘ Balance as at April 1, 2023

“Iproject in progress includes setting up substatmns, installatlons of transformers and cable networks at vanous locations in southern part of Odisha. CWIP
indudes closing capital inventory of  170.27 crore as at March 31,2024 (March 31,2023 : ¥ 92.73 crore).

5.03 Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Scheédule*

Projects in progress

Government funded Projects 7.26 - - -
Proje il Gended - = - -
To == i Zael E -

Post acqulslﬂon of business, there are nc projects with costs overrun or exoeedlng the planned timelines for completion as on March 31,2023.

. - 2 crore
Particulars “Total |
CWIP agjeing Schedule as at March 31, 2024 : 1 R !

Projects Stock 143.20 17.72 3.12 5.98 170.02

Capex-Government Funded 172.14 1.08 1.60 - 174.82

Capex-Consumer Funded 7.34 0.32 c - 7.66

Capex-Meter 6.53 6.26 b - 12.79

Ca%-own . 12.54 1.84 0.30 = . 14.68

Total 341.75] 27220 ~5102 "598| - . .379.97

|cWIP ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2023 ] |
Projects in progress 7.71 - 92.73

'|Capex-Government Funded - - 2.85
Capex-Consumer Funded - - 0.69
Capex-Meter E Ei 15.65

|Cabiex-Own_ - 17.70

. Total .. B B 7.71 . - 129.62|
* cwip ageing schedule has been prepared from the date of acquisn:mn of business by the Company
5.04 Refer note 16 & 20 for charge created against borrowings
5.05 CWIP Completion Schedule whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as at March 31,2024 :-
|Capital Work in Progress it s it : T°MEML; e
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xEar FEar
Ma) 24 March 31,202
; 2 crore ¥ crore |
NOTE 6 Other financial assets - non current S o
{Unsecured and considered good, at amortised cost)
(a) Deposits with banks -earmarked balances* 18.16 13.29
(b) Other receivable # s e 1388 :
Total other financial assets - non current PSR- Y X T2 == 97
*Earmarked balances against Consumer Securlty deposits and Earnest money deposit.
# Other receivable includes deposits with various authorities , receivable from contractors, etc.
As at As at
31,2024 - Mar: 2!
NOTE 7 Deferred tax assets B T crore _.2crore
Deferred tax asset (Refer Note 31.02) R 72,95 -.54.07.
Total deferred tax asset . L72.98 ... .. 5807
As at . Asat
M I e arch 1,20
NOTE 8 Other non-current assets N SRR =T T L X crg,,;;
(Unsecured and considered good) o
(a) Capital advances 20,21 . 14.77
Total Other non-current assets . 20.21 14.77
NOTE 9 Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

92.01

Accountina policy

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value {(NRV). Cost of inventory includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Costs of inventories are determined on moving weighted average basis.

NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the salg, unservicable/damaged
stores and spares are identified and written down based on technical evaluation,

Note Where due date of payment is not available date of transaction has been considered

As at As at
March 3 4 March 3, :
F CraLe. . i . rrore
Stores and spares : 53,87 .
Totatl inventories. ‘ iﬁmg. 87 i ﬁ
9.02 Refer note 16.& 20 for charge created against borrowings ) \
As at As at
NOTE 10 Trade receivables-current {(at amortised cost) s . March 31,2024 March 31,2023
p Tcrore Eorore
Unsecured. considered qood (Refer note no. 41.02) 363.59. 435.37
Significant increase in the credit risk = e PRI o 18548
605.53 588.83
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (expected credit loss) (122.22) (79.33)
Total trade receivables e 483.31 50 -
10.01 The Company holds security deposits from consumers amounting to ¥ 366.26 crore (March 31,2023: ¥ 315.19 crore)
10.02 Refer note 16 & 20 for charge created against borrowings
10.03 Trade receivables inciude amount of ¥ 241.94 crore (March 31, 2023: ¥ 153.46 crore) net of security deposit from consumers who are inactive/permanently disconnected, temporarily
disconnected and/ or were non-paying/low-paying for one year or more as at March 31, 2024 and/or disputed.
The Company has acquired power distribution business of SOUTHCO Utility w.e.f. January 01, 2021. The beli that collection data related to pre-acquisition year is not
relevant to assess expected credit loss (ECL) on receivables in the post: i year. In this scenario, the Company has recognised Expected Credit Loss {ECL) allowance
on trade receivables using its best estimate considering among other aspects factors such as segregation between government and non-government consumers, security deposit
available, outcome of the Company's &ffort to reach consumers, their most recent payment bnhavlour as well as the fact that electricity is an essential commodity and regulations will
require consumers to clear old dues to get cantinuous electricity.
Post-acquisition of power distribution business from the SOUTHCO Utility, the Cy ¥'s i d has been to reduce ATRC losses, reduce provisional billing and improve
collection through better reach to consumers as well as other measures. In the process, the Company had initially faced several challenges including more than one Covid waves,
Cyclones and delays in appointment/ warking of metering, billing.and collection (MBC) agencies for reasons beyond control of the Company. The Company successfully dealt with these
challenges. It is continuously working toward reducing provisional billing and improving overall collection efficiency: by ing payment beh of cons 5. As at 31 March 2024,
the Company has outstanding receivables amountmg to ¥ 605.53 crore and has accumulated ECL allowance of ¥ 122.22 crores against trade rec bles. The is confid
it will be able to collect most of the g receivables as it i its reach to the consumers and also considering that electricity is an essential ity for all ¢
Accordingly, the management believes the above ECL allowance reflects best estimate and is appropriate as per Ind AS 109 - "Financial Instruments®.
10.04 Trade les ageing sche as at March 31, 2024
i Outstandin ¥ ment * a
Particulars i Not due Lss umn 6 Months | 6 Months - 1 Year 1-2 ’(ears | 2-3Years '|'~More than 3 Years |’ Total -
(i) Undisputed trade recelvables i B e i
a} Considered good % 66.00 | 25.78 2198 23.06 |, 226.77 363.5%
b} Significant increase in credit risk * 24.89 39.21 103,10 38.01 36.73 | 241.94
—Toml N - | comel a0l a2s0el 107l  263sel  60ssa |
Note: Where due date of payment Is not available date of transaction has been considered
Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 312023 e . . e : i i L CTOTE.
Particulars " Notdue " 1-2 Years | “More than 3 Years Total
(O] puted trade r L -
a) Considered good - 119.30 111.49 63.88 140.70 - | 435.37
b) Significant increase in credit risk - - - 30.66 122.80 - 153.46
|Lii) Disputed trade receivables = C . it S B = =
" Total e _ 1193671 " 11149 Sase | 50 = 588.83 |

* The ageing has been prapared after adjusting the collections in accordance with the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission Distribution (Conditions of Supply) Code, 2019,
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The 1t has formulated a r anism for receiving and addressing customers complaints including those related to billing and receivabl ding. The has

10.05
identified disputed receivables basis the inforration avaitable with the Company.
10.05 t in the for | trade ivabl As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
i .Zcrore i B SIONE
Balance at the beginning of the year o 79.33 - 20.08
Add: Expected credit loss for the year (Refer note 30) 42.89 59.25
Balance at the end of the year : : 122,32 - 79.33
10.07 The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the large customer are either industrial/corporate or government entitles and remaining customer base is large and widely
dispersed, The Company also holds security deposits from consumers.
NOTE 11 Cash and bank balances
Accounting policy
11.01 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks, cash / cheques on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents include balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.
For the ourpose of the Statement of Cash Flows. cash and cash eauivalents comorise of cash at bank. cash / cheaues on hand and short-term deposits, as defined above.
Asat As at
M 2024 March 31,202
g crore F crorg
11.02 Cash and cash equivalents (At amortised cost)
{a) Batances with banks - on currant accounts 44,68 82.17
(b Deposit having original maturity of less than 3 months 80.55 66.35
(¢) Cheques on hand 6.09 12.32
(d) Cash on hand 945 . 13.16
Total cash and cash equivalents S 180.77 st 2300
Asat  Asat
: March 31,2024 March 31,2023
11.03 Other balances with banks (At amortised cost} . i
(a) Deposits with banks with original maturity more than 3 months ugto 12 months - Earmarked balances* 1,002.86 780.03
(b) Balances with banks - Earmarked balances* . 65.62 62.24
(c) Deposits with banks ALY ! ) 719
Total other balances with banks 1,075.88 849.46
* Earmarked balances against consumer security deposits, consumer contribution for work under progress and short term borrowings.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank depasit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the company, and earn interast at the respective short-term deposlt rates.
The Company has pledged a part of its short term deposits to fulfill collateral requirements. Refer note 16 & 20 for futher details.
11.04 Changes In liabilitiés arising from financing activities and non-cash financing activity:-
— - Ap— .v = ~Cash Non-cash | ’
Particutar As at April 1, 2023 | & aws | ‘Gutflaws | Adjustments’| As at March 31, 2024
- . — i 2 = NelProceeds | Payment i ;
|Consumer Contribution/Government Grant........ ... i 496,07 _444.78) 115.90) 1,250.55
|Share Capltal , i __ 7242\ - '69. ) 510.94
Proceeds of Security deposit from electricity consumers {net) | 51,08 En 366,27
‘ ent borrowlnias {including current T 32228 (17.86) . 532,88
|Current borrowings B a - 2,542.28 (2,623.84) . - 54848
Cash Inflows cashy i Non-cash : i
Particular As at April 1, 2022 |— Pk Quiflows | pdjustments | As at March 31, 2023
L v ] © NetProceeds | Payment * |
ner. € DUt A, ot Grant i __505. i 382,35 | (0.85) 855.16
al : 5 i 247.94]" RN 3 4 ) s S e 368.94 1 :
- T a3 : 87 | . P oo 31539 1
19114 | eyl . .. -1 . 20845
191580 I 1,585.96]} v . 630.04-
1 --.1,400.40 11 . 2,539.17 /| (1,589.49) 4773l 2,397.80 -
*Includes non-cash transactions like amortisation of consumer deposit wark/grant, interest payable on govt.grants, issue of right shares for consideration other than cash etc,
As at As at
NOTE 12 Other financial assets w . ... Margl 24 - __Marc 023,
{Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated, at amortised cost) i i SL QTR i SIOLE.
{(a) Interest accrued but not due on deposits 11.82 8.67
(b) Governrent grant receivable 27.13 . 27.13
(c) Other receivables (including advance given to employee etc.) { Refer note no. 37) : 3 % | x :6.51
Total other financial assets = SRR 15 v e, v 13 9
As at As at
o March 31,2024 __March 31,2023
NOTE 13 Other current assets o = T croce. o Terore.
{Unsecured and considered qood)
{8) Prepaid expenses 4.48 3.99
(b) Advance to supplier 1.90 1.74
{c) Other assets (including Medical advance, puja advance etc.) ( Refer note na, 37) 3.37 5,59_‘

Fotal other current assets [ - TR § 1 W
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As at As at

NOTE 14 Share Capital

e oo March 31,2024 March 31,2023
No. of Shares 2 crore . _No. of Shares Ecrore.
Authorised -
Equity Shares of € 10/- each with voting rights
At the beainnina of the vear 1.00.00.00.000 1.000.60 1.00.00.00.000 1.000.00
Add: Incréase during the year - - ey o . - :, i s
Outstanding at the end of the year —-1.00,00.00,000 1.000.00 1.00,00.00.000 1.000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of ¥ 10/~ each fully paid up with voting rights 51.09.40,000 510.94 36.89,4D,000 368.94
Total issued, subscribed and patd-up share capital : ..31,00,40.000 iz 10,94 25:89,40,000 . 36894
a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
As at As at
TNo.ofshares % crore No. of T e crer
Eauity shares
At the beginning of the year 36.89.40.000 368.94 24.79,40,000 247.94
Issued during the year ek 4,20.00.000 142,00 12,30.00000 121,00
Outstanding at the end of the year . 51,09,40,000 . 510.94-. .36,89,40,000 .368.94
b, Rights, preference and restricti d to shares i ing restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the of

Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 210 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. The share holders are
entitled to dividend declared on proportionate basis. The dividend proposed by Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the exsisting Annual General
Meeting. On fiquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to réceive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferentiai amounts in
proportion to their sharehoiding. :

€. Detaiis of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company :

Asat Asat
March 31,2024 = March 31,203

TN f Shares % Holdina - - No. of Shares % Holding

Equity shares of 2 10 each fully paid

Name of the Shareholder
The Tata Power Company Ltd (the Holding company) 26.05.79,400 51.00 18,81,59,400 51.00
GRIDCO Limited 25.03,60.600 49.00 18.07.80.600 4900
Total 51,09,40,000 100.00 .- 36.89|40|ﬂ70' 2 -.--100,00
d. Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received In cash
The Company allotted 15,23,60,600 equity shares (including 6,95,80,000 equity shares allotted during the year) till March 31,2024 {March 31, 2023 : 8,27,80,600 (including
5,92,90,000 equity shares allotted during the year)} as fully paid for considerations received in form of distribution assets, pursuant to shareholder's agreement and the
Goverment of Odisha notifications. The value of distribution assets have been determined bv an independent valuer.
e tding of pt H
qulty shares of ¥ 10 each fully pald
of sh ing of p ‘as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:
" No. of Shares : Change No. of Shares %% of % Changé
Promoter As at April 1, 2023  During the year As at March 31, 2024 Total Shares During the year
A. The Tata Power Company Ltd 77 18.81,59,400 0 7,24,20,000 7 26,05,79.,400 51.00% ) 0.00%
B.  GRIDCO ltd e 18.07,80,600 6,95,80,000...... 25.03.60.600 4900% o oo o 0.00%
Total 26,80,40000 _ 13,20,00,000 5$1,09.40.000 100% . P
Di e of of pr as at March 31, 292; is as follows: ) ) B
No of Shares Change No of Shares % of ) % Change
Promoter As at April 1,:2022 - During the year - As at March.31, 2023 Total Shares-.. .During the year
A. The Tata Power Company Ltd i i 12,64.45:400" " 7~ 7 6.,17,10.000 18.81.59.400 51.00% 0.00%
B.  GRIDCO Ltd . ..12,14,90,600, 5,92,90,000 _18.07,80,600 49.00% 0.00%
Total 24,79,40,000 1000 RTR 100% e =
NOTE 15 Other equity As at As at
March 3 March 31,202
T crore T crore
15.01 Retained Earnings
Balance at beqinning of vear 124.20 91.45
Add : Profit for the year 36.57 32.75
Add : Other comprehensive income W 5 - <
Balance as at the end of the vear e AOOTT 124,20
Total retained earnings i 2O 7. —129:20
15.02 Nature and purpose of reserves:

Retained Earninas
Retzined earnings are the profits/(loss) that the company has earned / incurred til date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholdars.
Retained earnings include re-measurernent loss/{gain) on defined benefit plans , net of taxes that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and foss.
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: ~Asa s a
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
) ¥ crore " ¥ crore
NOTE 16 Non-current borrowings
(at amortised cost)
16.01 Secured
(A} Term Loans from Banks
(a) Union Bank of India 340.03 134.18
(b) IDBI Bank Limited o - 19286 - 94.28
- . 532.89 ... 228.46
Less Current maturities of long-term debt o 2:40-.76) o (17.86):
Total non-current borrowings ) 492.13 - ~210.60

16.02 The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable. The Company has utilized the loan for the sanctioned purpose.

16.03 Term Loans (other than meter capex loan) from Union Bank of India and IDBI Bank Limited are repayable over 56 equal quarterly
instalments and repayment has started from March 23 and December 23 respectively.

16.04 Term Loans (meter capex loan) from Union Bank of India amounting to Rs. 42.5 Cr and Rs. 75 Cr are repayable over 20 and 28 equal
quarterly instalments respectively.

16.05 The rate of interest for term loans is in the range of 8.33% to 8.56%(March 31, 2023: 8.25%).

16.06 All the above term loans from Union Bank of India and IDBI Bank Limited contain certain debt covenants relating to limitation on
indebtedness, total debt to EBIDTA, interest coverage ratio, FACR and debt service coverage ratio. The Company has satisfied all the
debt covenants prescribed in the terms of bank loan.

16.07 Term Loan from Union Bank of India (other than meter capex loan) is Secured against first pari passu charge on entire movable and

immovable fixed assets of the Company, both present-and future; excluding meters and assets-transferred from Southco Utility vide
vesting order of OERC.
Term Loan from IDBI is secured against first parl passu charge on entire movable fixed asset of the Company, both present and
future, excluding meters and assets transferred to the company from Southco Utility vide vesting order or any other securities offered
to the existing term lenders and second pari passu charge on all current assets (other than restricted as per the vesting order which
includes consumer security deposit and govt deposits received in the form of grant, subsidy, relief fund etc.) both present and future
with other term lenders of the Company.

16.08 Meter capex Term Loan from Union Bank of India is Secured against first charge on meters both present and future, excluding meters
transferred from Southco Utility vide vesting order of OERC,

As at As at
—..March 31,2024 March 31,2023
NOTE 17 Other financial liabilities - non current o Borore . ... .. Rcrore
(at amortised cost)
(a) Retention money payable 128.05 75.50
(b) Security deposits/ Earnest money deposit from supplier _0.11 0.40
Total other financial liabilities - non current Il J_LZ_&;G . el 390

NOTE 18 Provisions’

18.01

Accounting policy

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the Company will be required to settie.the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settie the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions with charge to the statement of profit
and loss. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations will exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract
i n,

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the benefit. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received on or before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received on or before the balance sheet date,
then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will tead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.




18.02

TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements,
comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on pian assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements;
and

- Net interest expense or income.

-current.empl:

A hiability is recognised for current benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the
period in which the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service. Liabilities recognised in respect of current employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

The cost of providing other long-term employee benefits, incuding earned leave, sick leave and other benefits, is determined using
the projected unit credit method. The related expenses including remeasurement gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

The Company operates a scheme for Compensated absences wherein the employee is entitled to avail leave benefits as per the policy
of the Company. The leave benefits are linked to the salary of the employee and the employee is entitled to either avail paid leave or
encash unutilised Ieave either during employment or on retirement. The liability for compensated absences is provided on the basis of
an actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary at the reporting period end. The Company treats accumulated leave expected
to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Remeasurements/ Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Pre acauisition liabilities of emplovee ansferred om erstwhile SOUTHCO -
The terms of the Vesting Order as modified by the Carve Out Order provide that for entire liabilities toward pension, gratuity and
compensated absences of employees retried before the acquisition date and acquisition date liabilities of continuing employees on the
acquisition date, the Company's responsibility is limited only to remitting fixed amount requested by the respective Trusts and the
same will be allowed to be recovered from consumers for disbursal to the beneficiaries covered under the Trusts. The Company has
recognized amount payable to the Trusts for the current year for onward payment of the said liabilities are charged as an expense as
they fall due.

Post-acquisition date liabilities of employees who were in service employees on the acquisition date are accounted for either as

defined benefit plan or other long term employee benefit basis nature of the benefit.

Defined contribution plans

Erstwhile SOUTHCO Utility Employees

Provident Fund Plan

The Company's contributions toward provident fund of the eligible employees is deposited under the Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The provident fund is operated by the regional provident fund commissioner. Under the scheme,
the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
Company does not have any further obligation under the plan.

Other than erstwhile SOUTHCO Utility Employees

(i) Provident Fund Plan

The Company makes contributions toward Provident Fund of qualifying employees which is a defined contribution plan. The
Company's contribution to the Employees Provident Fund is deposited under the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952 which is recognized by the Income Tax Authorities and operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner.
Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The Company does not have any further obligation under the plan.

(ii) Employee State Insurance :-

The Company makes Employee State Insurance ('ESI') scheme contributions to defined contribution plans for eligible employees.
Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The
contributions as specified are paid to the Employee State Insurance Corporation ('ESIC') set under the ESI Act 1948. The Company is
generally liable for annual contributions. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liabitity. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

N “{iii} The Company has recognised a total of ¥ 11.81 crore (March 31, 2023 is ¥ 14.12 crore) as contribution towards the defined
< contribution plan in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

KO
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18.03 Defined Benefits plans

Erstwhile SOUTHCO Utility Employees

i) Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is primarily governed by the Odisha Civil Services (Pension) Rules
1992, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The level of benefits provided
depends on the member's length of service and salary at the retirement date. The gratuity plan is partly funded plan. The fund has
the form of a trust and is governed by Trustees appointed by the Company. The Trustees are responsible for the administration of the
plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy in accordance with the regulations. The funds are deployed in recognized
insurer managed funds in India.

ii) Pension

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan. The pension plan is primarily governed by the Odisha Civil Services (Pension) Rules
1992, Employees who had joined SOUTHCO Utility on or before 31st December 2004 are eligible for pension. The level of benefits
provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at the retirement date. The pension plan is partly funded plan. The
fund has the form of a trust and is governed by Trustees appointed by the Company. The Trustees are responsible for the
administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy in accordance with the regulations. The funds are
deployed in recognized insurer managed funds in India.

Terms of the vesting order as modified by the Carve Out order provide that for entire liabilities toward pension, gratuity and leave
encashment of employees retried before the acquisition date and acquisition date liabilities of continuing employees on the acquisition
date, the Company's responsibility is limited only to remitting fixed amount requested by the respective Trusts and the same will be
allowed to be recovered from consumers for disbursal to the beneficiaries covered under the Trusts. Based on specific clarifications
provided in the carve out and the vesting order, the Company has recognized amount payable to the Trusts for the current year for
onward payment of the said liabilities in the statement of profit and loss as they fall due.

Pbst~acquisition date liabilities of employees who were in service employees on the acquisition date are accounted for either as
defined benefit plan or other long term employee benefit basis nature of the benefit.

Other than Erstwhile SOUTHCO Utility Employvees

i) Gratuity

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employee. The benefit payable is calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972. The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable to employees on
retirement or on termination of employment. The gratuity benefits payable to the employees are based on the employee's service and
last drawn salary at the time of leaving. The employees do not contribute towards this plan and the full cost of providing these
benefits are met by the Company. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting.

ii) Pension
The Company has a defined benefit pension plan granting a pre-determined sum as pension after completing vesting period.

iii) Post Employment Medical Benefit

The Company provides certain post-employment health care benefits to superannuated employees at some of its locations. In terms
of the plan, the retired employees can avail free medical check-up and medicines at companies' facilities. The benefit is treated as
defined benefit plan.

iv) Ex-Gratia Death Benefits

The Company has a defined benefit plan granting ex-gratia payment in case of death during service. The benefit consists of a pre-
determined lump sum amount along with a sum determined based on last drawn basic salary per month and the length of service.

v) Retirement Gift
The Company has a defined benefit plan granting a pre-determined sum as retirement gift on superannuation of an employee.

As at As at
March 31,2024 . . March 31,2023

Provision -Non Current

(a) Compensated absences 52.24 39.29
(b) Defined benefit plans 326.07 221.36
{c) Other employee benefits ST 1.87
Total non-current provision . i 382.88 o 262,52
Asat ‘As at
(o
Z crore o £ crore
Provision -Current - e

(a) Compensated absences 3.29 3.55
(b) Defined benefit plans 14.83 11.77
(c) Other employee benefits .. .0.23 0.20
Total current provision for employee benefit-( A) : . .18.35 L ~15.52
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Other Provisions

Provision for contingencies-(B)* . ... .15.07 ) 15.04 .
Total current provisions- (A+B) b ... 3342 .. . ... 30.56.
ntingencies. m TR : Z crore.
As at April 01, 2022 ‘ T i i 9,71 .
Additions 6.12
Utilized . 0.79)]
As at March 31, 2023 =——— _15.04
Additions 2.49
|Utilized . {2.46)
As at March 31, 2024 . - = ..15.07"

* It includes provision for claim and compensation
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18.04 Pre-acauisition liabilities of emplovees transferred from erstwhilé SOUTHCO Utility:

The Company has acquired the electricity distribution business of SOUTHCO Utility with effect from January 1, 2021. As a part of Business
transfer, ali the employees of the undertaking were transferred to the Company effective January 1, 2021, on a continuity of service
conditions. Previously retired employees as well as continuing employees of SOUTHCO Ukillty transferred to the Company are entitled to

pension and/or gratulty plan which are managed by separate trusts who are

of pension and gratuity to the

For th
beneficiaries. Liabilities of these trusts determined on an actuarial basis exceed assets avaﬂable with them. Based on terms of the Vesting
Order as modified by the Carve Out Order, these labilitles.are treated in two parts.
Liabliitles for past employees and acquisition date liabilitiés of existing employees

The Vesting Order as modified by the Carve Out Order states mat for entire liablilities toward pension, gratuity and leave encashment of past
and 1 is limited only to remitting fixed amount

date of existing ploy

play

, the & s

by the r Trusts and r by it from

s as a part of ARR far disbursal to the beneficiarles covered under the

Trusts. Given below are details of Trusts' total accrued liabilities in respect of these of ligations not transferred to the Company at this stage.

Given below are details of Trusts’ totat accrued liabllities in respect of these benefits not transferred to the Company:

March 31,2024 X T crore
Pension| Gratuity| Companeated
1273.891 80.28 S 94,28
Total liability of past employees 840.71 -
Acquisition date liabilities of existing employees 156.52: 30,23 |- --59.54
March 31,2023 _ T crore
o e 1 Compensated
Particulars Pension|: Gm_qln_l . ahisancad
-~ 1186.78 za68 - 87.42
company i
Total liability of past employees 841.54 b -
Acquisition date liabilities of existing employees 168.45 | 33.79 64.72
[Total 100958 33 £4.72

ohligation not transférred to the Company and have been

in th

respect of obligation transferred to the Company arnd have been remgnlsed in ltability:

As per the Vsting and Carved out order, total amouit bﬁtd / payabls Ss given below for the current year towards the liabilltiés in respect of
of profit and loss and towards liabllities in

March 31,2024 . . ' . i o e o . ¥orore
= ‘ N 1
Particulars 1 Pension| - absences
J :\:::nt paid/ payable toward Ilabllmes in respect of abligation not ;' : 101.38 h 517 |
[Amount paid/ payabie, fowarg Tabilites |n respect of bilgation 200 T aal B
Jtransterred to om| — -
Total 203,471 8.1 547
March 31,2023 T crare.
JPorticulans v iy < |
mount paid/ payable toward Habilities in raspect of obligﬁon not 5 26‘? .68
nsferred to the Company: I
maunt paid/ payable toward liabilities In respect or obllgauon 5.07 N
transferred to the Compan d S
SRRy T 3033 6.68 |

Post acquisition date

The Company has assessed that post tnmsler of buslness, these plans as defined benefit plans and has accordingly recognised Incremental
liability in respect of existing employ date In the Given below are necessary disciosures in respect
of these liabilities, along with other deﬂned benefits plan of the Company.

18.05 Risk with the plan p

are actuarial risk. These risk are interest rate risk, demographic risk and salary escalation risk.

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase In the return on the
plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan fiability is calculated by reference to the best éstimate of the mortality of plan participants both
during and after their employment. An increase in the life of the plan par will increase the plan’s liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan llability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase
In the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liabitity.

18.06 The following tables set out the funded status of gratuity plan and amount in the G ‘s as at 31st March
2024.The valuation bas been carried out using the “ Project Unit Credit Method " as'per Ind AS 19 ™ Employee Benefits® to determine the
present value of defined benefit cbligations and related current service cost.

] s S
ol o Fundedy i
2. |Present Value of abligations ‘as at April 1, 2022, TU79.6L +"340.29
“|as per E
not transferred to the Company) (Refer note
“[18.043
b. |Interest Cost 0.50 0.21¢ 5.27 23.79
€. |Current Service Cost 0.83 0.44 3.40 8.62
d.: |Past Service Cost = 0.01 - =
@, - |Acquisition {Credit}/Cost - - - -
f. ‘|Actuarlal loss 7 {aaln)-Demoaranhic . - = |
Q. | |Actuarlal loss / (aln)-Financial [0.14) (0.08) 10.82)
h, : JActuarial loss / {qain}-Experlence 0.54 0.56 3.24
| Ad{ustments refated to prior period (0, 02) (0.12) ot
" R 0,241 41056
Present value of obligaticn as at March 31,2023 8. 73 3.49 o 354.56
(including obligation not transferred to the|
[Company) (Refer note 18. 04)
[§ ;'lnterest Cost 0.59: 0.23 5.69. 25.35
m. |Current Service Cost 1.48 0.74 3.20; 8.14
n. :|Past Service Cost - - - <
0. |Acauisition (Credit)/Cost . =4 2
p. |Actuarial loss / (aain)-Demoaraphic = 0.08 (1.16) 6.03
4. JActuarial loss / (gain)-Financiat 0.29 0.16- 2,90 18.62
r. : JActuarlat loss / (qain)-Experience 2,75 0.92 276 43.88
| s. i jadiustments related to orior pericd - £ 0.29 - ]
IBeneI‘Ils Paid. ... .. : (3.23)' (1.23) (8.71) (14.52)
“u Prsent value -of ohligatlon at’ Marchv 31, 2024 = © 10,61 4.68: 86.05 442.05
to the
+|Company) (Refver note 18 04)
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seutars. - “Gratuity| Other Dsﬁned ; ty| - _Pension
: e | (usingsd{ - e CPundedMl . (Fuoded)
air value of plan asset as at April 1, 2022 . = 49 596 | - 8.30
§ plan assets not transferred to the
Company) (Refer note 18.04)
b. ' |Acquisition (Credity/Cost » - . N
€. '|Estimated return on plan asset & 0.14 | {0.01Y {0.1%)
d. * |Emoloyer contribution N 0.02 11.33 10.56
e, . m.-ml (11.04)] {10.56)
f. - 0.08 | 0.43 0.59
. - 002 PRI N I
. | ‘value of plan asset as at March 31, 2023 - 1.01: - 76.69 - 8.74
(inciuding plan assets not transferred to bhe’ & i
Company) (Refer note 18.04)
1. |Acaulsttion (Credit)/Cost i B = AT e e
{. ‘|Estimated return on plan asset - 0.09; 0.25 0.01 |
k. :|Emplover contribution N 1.13° 7.98 14.02 |
l. | Benefits Paid - {1.23) (8.71) (14.52) |
m. |Interest Income “ 0.07: 0.46 0.62
106 6.66. 8.67

to bo ré in the sheet

Particulars Gratuity| Other Defined Gratuity
| . ST e e
T, Present Value of | obligations as 3t March 31,2023 : TBL3B
as per Actuarial Valuation (including obligation not| 4 j
transferred to the Company) i :
2. Falr value of Assets at the end of the pe'lod - i.01 6.69 8.74
plan assets not transferred to thel i i
ICompanv) il
3. Net liability (before reducing Mability not 8.73 2.49 74.69 345.81
to C i H
4. Liability not transferred to the Company as per| . (0.47) 33.79 (168.45)
vesting order i ‘
S. Net Liability recognised in balance sheet as at) 8.73 296 40.90 177.36 |
March 31,2023 i — - E
1. Present Value of obligations ‘as at Marcn 31, 2024 G 4.68 86,08 442.05
as per Actuarial Valuation (indluding obligation not| | i
transferred to the Company) : | b
2. Falr value of Assets-at the end of the perlod - 1.06 6.66 8.87 |
(Including plan assets not transferred to the| ! ]
Company) :
3. Net liability (beforé reducing liabillty not| 10.61, 3.63 79.39 433.18
|transferred to Company) 3 :
4, Liability not transferred to the Company as per| = (0.32) 30.23 (156.52) |
vesting order ] ‘ ;
5. Net Liability recognised In balance sheet as at 10.61: 3.95 49.17 276.66
March 31,2024 .- i . 4
inthe of Profit & Loss ) o 5
— T ear ended March 31,2024 |
Particulars ity|. Other i Gratuity| Pension|
: ) (Unfunded)|: Benent| (Funded) ) (Funded)
1. Current Service Cost k e T 3.20 8.14
2. Past Service Cost : -l - i
3. Net Interest Cost | 0.59 523 24.73
4. Others ) : ol : B x|
3 i T < 370 104,38
Expenses recognised in statement uf Profit & Loss 2007 : 12,134 ¢ w0 134,25
) werore
Particulars
1. Ciirrént Service Cost
2, Past Service Cost
3. Interest Cost
- g £ e - _.A744.
‘|Expenses recognised in statement of Profit & Loss | 2.07 i 1.05 e 15‘,26’" | o 119,260

in other ip:m (re

Particulars
"~ Actuarial (qains)flosses arisina from:
E - changes ict demographic assumptions

- chi In finandal 0.29 0.16: 2.90 ' 24.65 |
- gxperience adjustments 2.75! {0.07), 2,767 4388
;Rnwrn on Plan assets (greater)/less than - (0.09) (0.25)} - (9. 01)

[ Total ____ 3 BT S 7 1 : 5851
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[H

Particulars
~ Actuarial {qains)/losses arisina from:
- changes In demoaraphic assumptions ) - -
- in financial (0.14) (0.03) (1.76) {10.82)
- experience adiustments 0.54 0.17 §. 6.62 324
~Return on Plan assets (greater)/less than J {0.14) - 0.14
Discount rate il Sy,
040 (000 4.86 17.44)
Principat assumptions
- ——— — T Rsat
d [, 2024 ; March 31,2023
Particula =
articulara Gratuity “Gratuity " Gratuity (fanded)
. i ded) .
1. Discount rate '7.00% 7.30% g 7.30%
2, Salary escalation B
‘-Management 7% il 6% 7% 3 %
'Non-Management 7% 1 6% 7% 6% .
Indian Assured.|” Indian Assured | Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
3. Mortality rate Lives Mortality 1| Lives Mortality | Mortality (2012-14) Ult| Mortality (2006-08) Uit
| (2006-08) Uit | (2012-14) Ult
Sensitivity analysls -
ignil for the determination of the defined obligation are rate and salary increase. The
sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on y possibie changes of the respectis occurring at the end of
the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
/ (de se) in benefit March 31 2024
liability Othist Defined! [ ’ i
Impact on discount rate for 0.5% decrease’in! R X }
defined benefit obliaation
Impact on discount rate for 0.5% increase in) (30.38):
defined banefit oblioation
Impact on salary escalation rate for 0.5% 13.01
decrease in defined benefit obliaation
.. Impact on salary escalation rate for 0. 5% 13.84 |}
increase in deﬁned beneﬁt obllgatlon 8

Increase/ (decreass) in defined benafit
liability

Impact on discount rate for 0.5% decrease in
defined benefit obllaation

Impact on discount rate for 0.5% increase in| (0.34)
defined bénefit obiiaation

Impact on salary escalation rate for 0.5%) (0.34)
decrease in defined benefit oblioation

Impact on salary escalation rate for 0.5% 0.37

The sensltivity ana!ysas above here baen determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact of defined benéfit ablication as a

result of r in key g at the end of the reporting report. The sensitivity are based on a change in a
significant assumption, keeping all other assumption mnstmt.
The lysis may not be of an actual ¢hange in the defined beneft oblication as It Is unlikely that chianges in
assumptions would occur in Isolation from one another.
Category wise plan assets
“Asat 31.03.2024
Particulars T
B . Pension’ ¥ Gratuity
{|Govt. of India Securities {Central and State) 81% v S0%
‘|High Quality (Corporate Bonds Including PSU Bonds) 16% | 27%
Equity shares of Listed Compantes 0% 0%
Cash Including Spedal Deposits | . 3% 23%
2 . — - o J100% . 4 100%
Pam il As at 31.03.2023
JiArdcuaes peon | o
i th of!ncha Securiues (Cemral and State) 81% 1 T 51%
+High Quality (Corporate Bonds including PSU Bonds) 4 16% 28%
‘{Equity shares of Listed Companies 0% 0%
Cash Indudlnn Special Deposits 3%, Zl%
Thé" i are contrib 10 the defined benefit plan in future years :
Y B prigietaady = £ crore.
Expected Future cashflows " Pension|
Year-1 “'18.94°
Year-2 18.18
Year-3 18.39
Year-4 18.00
Year-5 18.68
L crore
Expected Future cashflows Pension
_ e
Year-1 T 14.04 |
Year-2 14.17
Year-3 12.02
Year-4 11.88
Year-5 11.64
i Y610 {0




TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 R

NOTE 19  Other non-current liabilities

As at
March 31,2024 . March 31,2023

As at

i T CTOS Z.qrore
{a) Consumer contribution for work under progress 44.36 33.87
(b) Government grants 903.94 509.63
(c) Deferred Government grants towards cost of capital asset (Refer note below)* 20.20 19.34
{d) Consumer contribution towards capital cost (Refer note below)* . 243.69 206,51
Total capital grant and consumer contribution towards capital assets 1,212.19 769.34
Opening Balance 19.34 -
Add: Addition during the vear 2.07 21.04
Less: Released to the statement of Profit and Loss (Refer note 25) w1213 - {1.79]
Closing Balance 20.20 - 19.34
M tin C contribution towards capital cost
Opening Balance 206,51 216.39
Add: Addition durina the vear 51.87 - -
Less: Released to the statement of Profit and Loss (Refer note 25) {14.69% {9.88}.
Closing Balance ?43.69, _ ’ :;02.517

* At cost less amortisation

Note: Deferred Government grants towards cost of capital asset/ Consumer contribution towards capital cost is amortised to the statement of
prafit and loss to match with the depreciation charged on assets created out of such grants/ contribution.

Government grants have been received for the purchase and creation of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are no

unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.

As at As at
NOTE 20 Borrowings March 31,2024 March 31,2023
(at amortised cost) o %'crore T crore.
(1) Secured
From Banks
(a) Short term loans
(i) Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited* 138.00 170.00
(ii) Indusind Bank Limited* 129.47 143.91
(b) Working capital demand loan
(i) IDBI Bank Limited* 45.00 40.00
() Bank overdraft .
(i) Union Bank of India** 23.30 3042
(i) State Bank of India ** 62.62 60.62
(il) Unsecured
{a) From Banks
(i) ICICI Bank 150.00 185.00
(b) From Others
(1) GOO Loan# 0.10 0.10
(iii) Current maturities of non-current borrowings 40.76 1786
Total short-term borrowings N -..589.25 . 647.91

20.01 *The above loans has been secured on first pari passu charge on entire current assets of the Company, both present and future exciuding
regulatory deposits and second pari passu charge over entire movablé assets of the Company, both present and future, excluding assets

transferred through Vesting Order issued by OERC.

20.02 The rate of interest from banks ranges from 6.49% to 8.14% (March 31, 2023 - 4.03% to 9.70%).

20.03 **The Company has availed short term borrowings by earmarking term deposits.

20.04 The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts and there

are no discrepancies

20.05 The Company has not used any of the borrowings from banks apart for the purpose for which it was taken .

20.06 # Except for this loan, others are repayable on demand

As at As at
NOTE 21 Trade payables (at amortised cost) March 31,2024  March 31,2023
) T crore ) L crore
(a) Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 21.01) 45,01 33.26
(b) Outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises # 153.41 . 74.60 .
Total trade payables 108.42 107.86




TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024**

- & crore
~_ Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment* ' ’
Particular " NotDue [ Lessthan| 1-2 Years [2-3 Years | More than 3 Years Total
| -1Year |:. - .
(i) Undisputed Trade Payables g : S|
a) Micro enterprises and small enterprises 23.59 14.94 |, 3.58 - ] 2,90 | 45.01
_ b)Others 8.67 142.87 | 1.36 0.51 | - 153.41
L) Disputed Trade Payables. . ... - z e e LI -
Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023%* A T crore
o tstanding for following periods from due date of payment* t
Particular Not Due | Lessthan | 1-2 Years {|2-3 Years| More than 3 Years Total
. T = ... 1Year e . . :
(i) Undisputed Trade Payables
&) Micro enterprises and small enterprises 16.59 14.31 0.93 1.43 - 33.26
b) Others 6.076 44,21 24,32 - - 74.60
(i) I d Trade Payabl -~ - - - - -

* Trade Payable ageing schedule has been prepared from the date of acqunsn:}on of busmess by the Company.
** where due date of payment is not available, date of transaction has been considered.
# Refer note 37 for the refated disclosures

Note 21.01 Post acquisition the company has started process. of identifying micro and small enterprises separately. Micro and smalt enterprises ‘under the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 have been determined based on the information available with the Company and
the required dlsclosures are glven below

Ra— - xg
Particulars . . - March 31.2o:] _March 31,2023

(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid* 125.60 | T 140.74

(b) Interest due 0.37:|, 0.46

(c) The amount of interest paid in terms of saction 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises -

Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier =
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

(d) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which has been 0.37 0.46|.
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under !
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(e) The amount of interest accrued 0.37 | 0.46

(f) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding yéars, until such date when 017 | 0.00
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise

*It includes amount payable in the nature of retention money payable and capital creditors amounting to  80.59 crores (as at March 31,2023:% 107,48
crores) as disclosed under note 17 & 22..

As at As at
—— March 31,2024 March 31.2023
NOTE 22  Other financial labliities - current __X crore % crore
(At amortised cost)
(a) Payable to employees 25,06 24.88
{b) Security deposit from consumer (Refer note below } 366.26 315.19
{c) Deposit - others 2.02 2.40
(d) Interest on securitvy deposits 20.37 19.02
(e) Government grants payable 4.15 35.05
{f) Consumer contribution for work under progress 48.24 50.77
{g) Payable towards purchase of capital goods (Refer note 21.01) 189.42 126.68
(b) Other liabilities (Refer note 41) 145.04 145.04
{i) Interest accrued on Government Grant Fund 25.97 -~
(J) Other payables 24.80 . . 40.19
Total other financial liabilities - current 851.33 = . 759.22

Note: The security deposits from electricity consumers carry interest at 6.75% p.a. (March 31, 2023:6.75% p.a.) and Is adjiisted againist
power bill of the respective consumers as per Tariff Regulations. The amount is refundable on surrender of electricity connection by the

NOTE 24

consumer,
As at As at
... _March 31,2024 = March 31,2023
NOTE 23  Other current iiabilities . ¥ crore. T crore
@ Statutory liabilities "33.10 27.46
(b) Advance from consumers 102.39 82.55
{©) Other liabilities .1.69 ... 1.93 .
Total other current liabilities e 132.18 111 94
Asat = " As at

Current tax liabilities (net)

March 31,2924 Mard\ 31,2023

T crore .

T crore.

Provision for taxes {net of advance tax paid ¥ 12.83 crore (March 31,2023 :¥11.48 crore)}

Total current tax liabilities (net)

e




TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 25 Revenue recognition

25.01

25.02

25.03

(2)

(]

25.04

25.05

Accounting policy

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the transaction price to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Description of performance obligations are as follows:

Sale of power- Distribution
Revenue from the supply of power is recognised net of any cash rebates over time for each unit of electricity delivered at the pre-
determined rate as per the tariff order.

Revenue from power supply is accounted for on the basis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end
of the reporting year. Revenue from power supply is recognised net of the applicable taxes which the Company collects from the
customer on behalf of the government/state authorities.

The Company, as per the prevalent Regulations (referred as "Tariff Regulations") for distribution business, is required to recover its
Annual Revenue Requirement (ARR) comprising of expenditure on account of power purchase costs, operations and maintenance
expenses, financing cost and taxation, as per the said Tariff Regulations and an assured return on equity. As per the said Tariff
Regulations, the Company determines the ARR and any excess/shortfall in recovery of ARR during the year is accounted for in
"Regulatory Deferral Account Balance".

Revenue in respect of invoice raised for dishonest abstraction of power is recognised when the certainty of its collection is probable i.e.
generally as and when recovered.

Contribution for capital works
Consumer’s. contribution towards property, plant and equipment which require an obligation to. provide electricity connectivity to the
consumers, are recognised as a credit to deferred revenue. Such revenue is recognised over the useful life of the property, plant and
equipment.An amount equivalent to the depreciation charge for the year on such assets is appropriated from this account as income to
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue from operations As at As at
March 31,2024 _ March 31,2023
; _ZXcrore . . ¥crore
Revenue from power supply ’ ’
Sale of power as per tariff 1,788.51 1,814.05
Less: Cash discount oo (29,408 . {21.09)
Total revenue from contract with customer - vi,759.02 . 1.792.96
Other operating revenue
Recovery of meter rent 31.60 21.36
Amortisation of Consumer Contribution & Grant for capital work 15.90 11.58
Miscellaneous revenue
Total other operating revenue _69.71 ; 50.16 ]
Total revenue from operations - (a+b) — 182873 185312

Disaggregation of revenue
The Company deals in a single type of product i.e. power which is sold directly to consumers, consideration in respect of which is based
on energy supplied . Thus, further disclosure in respect of disaggregation of revenue is not required.

Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers

Contract liabilities .

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier), Contract liabilities
are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract including advance received from customer i.e. normally
within twelve months from the reporting date.

As at As at
Particulars
X crore: . T crore
Contract liabilities T : :
Advance from consumers 3 10239 8255
Total contract liabilities i el 02,39 82,55
As at
—March 31,2024
—Xcrore
Siagnificant change in the contract liabilities balances during the vear as follows : ’
Opening balance as at April 1, 2023 82.55
Less: Revenue recoanised /adjusted during the year (55.00)
Add: Advance received during the vear . 74.84.

Closing balance as at March 31, 2024 EET—— | 5 | 1
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25.06

NOTE 26

26.01

NOTE 27

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract assets are transferred
to receivables when the rights become unconditional.

As at As at
T crore T crore.
Receivables ) h
Trade receivables 605.53 588.83
Unbilled revenue depending only on passage of time 155.50 130.03
Less : Allowances for doubtful receivables (122,22} {79.33)
Net receivables 638.81 639,53
Significant change in the contract assets balances during the year as follows :
Particulars As at As at
T crore, T crore
Unbilled Revenue o ) ’
Opening balance as at April 1, 2023 130.03 121.11
Add: Revenue recognised during the vear 155.50 130.03
Less: Transfer from contract assets to receivable {130.03} f121.11)
Closing balance as at March 31, 2024 155.50 . 130.03

Transaction Price - Remaining performance obligation

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at the
end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. Applying the
practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for
contracts as the revenue recognised corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date.

Other income

Accounting Policy

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Delaved Payment Charges (DPC)

DPC is charged at the rate prescribed by the Tariff Regulations on the outstanding balance. Revenue in respect of DPC and interest on
DPC leviable as per the Tariff Regulations are recognised on actual realisation or accrued based on an assessment of certainty of
realisation supported by an acknowledgement from customers.

Incentive on past arrears
As per terms of OERC vesting order, the Company is eligible for incentive on past area collections pertaining to period prior to March 31,
2020. Income in respect of incentive is recognised as percentage of actual realization of past arrears.

. As at As at
Shecieoms _March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Z crore T crore.
Interest income
Term deposits carried at ameortised cost 29,10 19.65
Other non-operating income
Delayed payment charges 10.44 13.64
Incentive on past arrears collection 6.58 16.63
Other income - . . 16.00. . 13.71
Total other income 62,32 . 63.63 63
Cost of power purchased and transmission charges March 31 ::;: March 31 ;;‘:3':
L4 ¢4
.. Ecrore . .Zcrore
(a) Power Purchase Cost 912.51 951.17
(b) Transmission Charges 104.45 118.09
Less: Rebate (9.27) . .(11.44)

Total cost of power purchased and transmission charges (a+b)

—_1,007.69

..1,057.82
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

As at As at
NOTE 28 Employee benefits expense (Net) March 31,2024 March 31,2023
T crore . ... T crore
Salaries, wages and bonus 260.90 224.27
Contribution to gratuity fund (Refer Note 18) 14.17 15.84
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 18) 163.33 146.96
Staff welfare expenses | Lo, 2411 . 27.52
Gross emplovee benefit expenses - 462,51 . = 414,59
Less: Employee cost capitalised / transfer to CWIP L (34.40) (28.37)
Net employee benefits expense " j 428.11 386,22

Note:- Net employee benefits expense are excluding expensas related to outsource and contractual employees expenses which are
shown under note no.30 .

Share Based Payments

Accounting policy

The Tata Power Company Limited ("Holding Company") has granted employee stock options to the eligible employees of the company. As
per the scheme, on fulfilling of the vesting condition the Holding Company will issue its equity shares to the eligible employees of the
Company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value of holding company’s share at the date when the grant is made
using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the companies best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in.employee benefits expense.:

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the companies best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest, Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance andfor service conditions have not
been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the unmodified
award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional expense, measured as at the date of modification, is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through profit or loss.

Equity-settled share option plan

The Tata Power Company Limited ~ Employee Stock Option Plan 2023

During the year, the shareholders of the Holding Company approved The Tata Power Company Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan
2023 (ESOP 2023/ Plan). During this year, the Holding Company has granted employee stock options to the eligible employees of the
Holding and its subsidiaries, including employees of the Company at an exercise price of Rs. 249.80 (Rupees Two Hundred Forty Nine and
Eighty Paise) per option exercisable into equivalent equity shares of ¥ 1 each subject to fulfilment of vesting conditions.

The expense recoanised for emplovee services received during the vear is shown in the following table:

As at As at
e S GLOLE i _ZT crore.
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions* 022 -
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions - 0.22 e

Movements during the year

Option exercisable at the begmnmg of the year - -
Granted during the year 1,63,750 -
Forfeited/Expired during the year - -
Exercised during the year - -
Expired during the year - -

Option exercisable at the end of the year 1,63,750 -
Share price for options exercised during the year N.A -
Remainirg contractual life 2.58 Years -

The holding company has estimated fair value of optlons using Black Scholes model. The following assumptions were used for calculation
of fair value of options granted

e As at As at
Assumption factor March 31,2024 _ March 31,2023
Dividend Yield (%) T ' 0.70% .
Risk free interest rate (%) 7.21% -
Expected life of share option (Years) 3 -5 Years -
Expected volatility (%) 39.81% -
Weighted Average Share price 249.80 -
Weighted Average Fair Value at the measurement date 97.75 -

...The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of
future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.
* Refer note 37 for the related disclosures
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024 - .. - . - .~

NOTE 29 Finance cost

As at . Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Tcrore
Interest on loans carried at amortised cost 79.85
Interest on consumer security deposits carried at amortised cost 21.14
Other borrowing costs (includes processing charges etc.) 1.74
Gross finance costs 102.73
Less: Interest capitalised ... (0.66)
Net finance costs _102.07
i . As at
NOTE 30 Other expenses _March 31,2024 March 31,2023
¥ crore L crore .
Rental of fand, buildings, plant and equipmeant, etc 2.86 213
Repair and maintenance-
~Buildings and civil Works 0.12 0.19
-Plant and machinery 176.21 187.36
-Furniture, vehicles, etc 0.53 1.52
Outsource and contractual employees expenses (Refer note 30.01) 89.25 86.24
Travelling 10.95 19.57
Metering, billing and collection 73.14 88.39
Legal and professional charges (Refer note 30.02) 9.69 8.17
Allowance for doubtful receivables 42.89 59.25
Telephone expenses 4.62 2.24
Fooding and Conveyance expenses 2.75 11.93
License fees 2.52 1.92
Insurance 1.32 213
Printing and stationery 2,19 3.01
Provision for contingencies 0.24 5.79
CSR expenditure (Refer note 30.03) 1.55 1.26
Rebate on OTS Collection 0.38 1.97
Miscellaneous expenses 31,93 ..31.97 .
Total other expenses O 45; 13 515.04

30.01

30.02

30.03 .

30.04

Accounting Policy

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Regulation 3.9.14 of OERC (Terms & Conditions for Deterrnlnahon of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply tariff) Regulations, 2022 provided that The
Cormmission shall take into consideration various lawful resources taken by distribution licensees e.g. distribution franchisees, outsourcing and engaing
contractual employees to undertake customer care, billing, collection and network maintenance activities, while finalising the employee cost for ARR.
H expenses relating to this items are shown as a part of Outsource and contractual employees expenses under the head other expenses in note
no. 30. (Refer note 28) in accordance with disclosure requirements of Schedule ITI .

Auditor's remuneration
Auditor’s remunerations include as follows: P . y
o As at As at
Particulars March 31,202¢| _March 31,2023
— - = -
(a) For statutory audit hE s 057 lJ 53
(b) For tax audit 0.02 0.02:
(c) For other matters {certification fees etc.) 0.05|; 0.04 |
d) For reimbursement o 0.08]" - 0,04
k(i di ods and ser 20.69/ - 0.63)
: ) o : “As at|’ ““As at
Parm;ular_s ) ‘._March 31,2024|: March 31,2023
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 1.5 |1 1.26
b) Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 1.54 1.25
¢) Amount spent during the year in cash:
(i) Construction/acauisition of asset -
(ii) On purposes other than (i} above 1. 55 1.26
1,55 1.26
d) Details related to spent / unspent obligations :
i) Employability and Employment (Skilling for Livelihoods) 0.36 0.26
i1} Education {Including Financial and Diqital Literacy) 0.30 0.38
iii) Essential Services {Health and Environment) 0.65 0.51
iv) Entrepreneurship 0.18 -
- v) Voluntering Programs 0.06 0.11
g 1.55 1.26
LVi) Unspent Amounts - -

Short Term Leases

The Company has applied short term lease exemption for rental of land, buildings, plant and equipment, etc. in accordance with Ind AS 116 - ‘Leases'.




TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024. . _

NOTE 31 Tax expenses

31.01

31.02

Accounting policy

Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be récovered from or paid/payable to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each
uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the
treatment.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deférréd tax liabilities aré generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Déferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initlal recognition of assets and Habilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profit will be available to allow alt or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets ara re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

{a) Income tax expenses recognised in the profit and loss :

Current Income tax As at g _As éit
N Terore .. ... Zcrore
Current income tax charge 12.36 ‘ 19.41
In respect of earlier year 1.30 6.09
Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences . Dt 0.20 (11.43)
Total income tax expense reported in the statement of profit & loss 13.86 1307
(o)1 tax expenses r ised in the OCI: s St ARt
_xcrore X crore;
Deferred tax s o o
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences . 19.08 . o 0.53
Total i tax /(i ) recognised in the current year 19.08 0.53

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied bv India’s domestic tax rate for March 31,2024 and March 31.2023.
Profit before Income tax expense -50.43 ; ff_.ﬁz,
I8

Tax at the India's statutory tax rate of 25.17% * R+ W 1

Adjustments under Income Tax Act

(i) Corporate social responsibilities 0.39 0.32
(it} Others 0.78 1.97
Net tax expense R 1386 b7,

*The rate used for calculation of Deferred Tax is 25.17% belng statutory enacted rates as per Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, for the year
ended March 31,2024.

The Company has made provision for income tax at the rate of 25.17% (Tax rate 22% Plus Surcharge 10% Plus cess 4% on tax & surcharge) in
accordance with normal provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ended March 31 2024 and March 31 2023

— ¥ i ¥ crore.

: As at’ Recogmsed in Recognised in As at
Daferred Tax Assat / Liabilitias on account of : ‘March 31,2023 Profit and Loss OCI - ..March 31,2024 .
‘Accelerated depreciation for tax DUTDOSES T (35.87) (27.05) S T T T (62:92)
Provision for doubtful receivables 19.97 10.79 - 30.76
Payment to MSME - 0.34 - 0.34
Provision for Contingencies - 3.7¢9 - 3.7%
Post-emplovment emplovee benefits ; 69.97 . 11.93 = _19.08 100,98

Total 5407 {0207 12.08 Z2.95-
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINAN T Al R TH

o Agat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

32 Othsr comprehensive income/ (expenses) - OCI
Remeasurements gains (losses) on the defined benefit plans (56.74) 1.63
{net of tax amounting to ¥ 19.08 crore (as at March 31, 2023:% (0.53 crore)) A
Net Movement In requlatory deferrat balances — 3624 £8:718

Total other comprehensive incoma
Post-acquisition of business, the Company has:decided to treat pension and gratuity benefits payable to erstwhile SOUTHCO Utility employees as defined benefit
plan under Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits". Ci the cost and liability of providing such benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method
(PUCM). Among other matters, the application of PUCM results in recognition of remeasurement gain/ loss, comprising items such as actuarial gains and losses and
effect of the asset celllng, In the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The amount of remeasurement galn/ loss fluctuates period on period based on changes in
actuarial rate and y rate,

To ensure offsetting Impact In the OCI and the Balance Sheet, the Company r amount as Reg y Deferral Account - Income/ expense in
the OCL The amount of Reguiatory Deferral Account - Income/ expense recoqmsed in the OCI in this manner ﬁuctuates in {ine’ With and in contrary to the
remeasurement gain/ 10ss. Based on the Vesting Order, the Company will be allowed to include and recover this amount as revenue from customers only whén the
amount Is paid to the trust for onward payment to employees.

33 Regulatory Deferral Account

01 Accounting Policy
The Company determines revenue gaps (l.e. surplus/ shortfall in actual returns over returns entitied) in respect of its In with the
provisions of Ind AS 114 - 'Reomatnrv Deferral Accounts’ read with the Guldance Note on Rate Regulated Activities Isswed by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Indla (ICAI) and based on the principles laid down’under the relevant Tariff Regulations/Tariff Ordérs-notified by the Electricity Regulator and the
actual or expected actions of the reg under the k. Appropriate adjustments ln respect of such revenue gaps are made in the
regulatory deferral account of the respective year for the which are T and no ity exists in sum determination.
These ccruals repr revenue gaps are carried forward as Regulatory deferral accounts debit/credit { Assets/
UablutleS) as the case may be In the finandial statements, which would be recovered/refunded through future bilfing based on future tariff dehermlnutlm by tne

with the

The Company presents separate fine items in the balance sheet for:

i, the total of all regulatory deferral accaunt debit batances and related deffered tax balances; and
ii. the total of all regulatory deferral account cradit balances and related deferred tax balances.

A separate line tem is présented Jn the Statement of Profit and Loss for the net movement in regulatory deferral account.

33.02 Rate Regulated Activitiest

(i) As per thé Ind AS-114 y Deferral A +.the i of Y il s a Rate Regulated activity wherein the OERC, the reguiator
determines Tariff to be charged from based an p ] in place.
The Odisha icif (Terms and Cx for of Tariff and Retall Supply Tariff) R:gulaﬂons, 2022, are
applicable to the Company These regulations require the OERC to debermlne tariff in a manner wherein the Company can recaver its fixed and variable costs
including assured rate of return on approved equlty base, from its The Company y Assets and Uabilities as per the
terms and in these. and Vesting Order.

As per the vesting wder, the AT&C loss tmjemry which can be pass:d on to customers Is fixed for the first ten years. Any gain/ toss arising due to lower/ higher
ATBC lossés vis-a-vis fixed trajectory belongs to the Company and is not passed on to the cummer The Company determines the amount of such gain/ toss
based on basis power purchase cost onfy and treats all other and p p cost, finance cost’ and tax
expense as per prevalling regulations and tariff orders while determining 'Regulatory Deférral Account Balance.,

(i) Interms of the applicable regulations, the Company submits A 1 (ARR) before begirining of the year for approval of the OERC. ‘After

close of financial statements for a year, the actual income and expense lncurred by the Company are reviewed and approved by the OERC in the form of True-up
Order.

(ii)  The balance of v Assets of 5 at the ing date Is as fallows:
As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

(v,

Regutatory Defarral Account- Non current

Reqgulatory Assets 622. .
Total Regulatory Deferral Account- Non current Y 5 '

)] of ry Assets of distribution business as per Rate Regulated Activities is as follows:
As at Asat_
: arch. 023
(a) Opening Regulatory Assets (Nét of liabllities) ! 29802 93.58
{b) Reaulatory Income/(Expenses) durina the vear
(i) Power Purchase Cost including Transmission {net of rebate) 989.86 1,051.75
(ily  Other expenses as per the tarms of Tariff Reaulations including Return on Eaulty 1,218.94 1,071.45
G Avaitable revenue net of cash discount includina non-tariff income ete. (1,875.57) (1,914.23)
(iv) Deferred Tax on Reaufatorv Assets (18.88) (10.91)
(v)  True Up Impact of earlier vears 10.03 (3.60)
Taotal 324,38 204.46
v Income/( in of Profit and Loss 267.64 206.09
Income/( FETESRREY [ SINSRRE, « b1 5 115
{c) Closing R.unlmw Assets (Ngt of sahllitlu)
(v) Truing Up Ordar
The Company determines revenue gaps (i.e. surplus/ deficit in actual returns over returns entitied) in respect of its ions In with the
pravisions of Ind AS 114 - chulatory Deferral Accounts' read with the Note on Rate &5 issued by the Instl of Chartered
of India (ICAI) and based on the principles laid down under the relevant Tarlff Regulations/Tariff Orders notified by the OERC and the actual or expectad actions of
g under the g 4 3
The OERC (Terms and C for L i of Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2022, requires the OERC to determine tariff in a
manner that the Company, subject to cestain specific gains and losses aliowed to be retained under the Vesting Order, can recaver its fixed and variable costs
including assured rate of return on approved equity base, from its consumers, The Company det the 5 Assets and Uabllitles as per the
terms and if in these In terms of the Regulations, the Company submits its Annwual B {ARR) before of

the year for approval of the OERC. After close of financial statements for a year, the actual income and expense im:urred by the Company are reviewed and
approved by the OERC in thé form of True-up Order.

During the current year, the Company has filed true up petitions for FY 2022-23 along with ARR petition for FY 2024-25 as per the Regulations. After going through
due process of tariff finalization, the OERC has issued true up order up to FY 23 and ARR for FY 24-25, In the trué up crder, the OERC has found that the licensees
have Incurred achual expenses in variance to approved amount by the OERC pertaining FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23.

The OERC has trued up revenue gap/surplus up to March 31, 2023, resulting In a lower revenue entitlement of ¥ 262,03 crores amount vis-a-vis the amount arrived
at using actual expenses Incurred by the The has n a petition with OERC for review of the above lower revenue entitiement and also
seeking a clarification from them that true up of FY 2022-23 carried out is only provisional and has not been finalised . The management believes that the
Company will be able to justify additional expense to the OERC and claim in the next ARR filings.

Also, during the current year, the Company has (ncurred under the heads as compi to amount approved by the OERC for the
financial year 2023-24.

Op ion and M - ¥60,78 crores X

The Company continues to treat above additional expenditures as pass through to the consumer. The management believes that there will not be any adverse
financial implications. ’

Based on the true up order upto March 31, 2023, Non-tariff income has been aliowed excluding meter rent. Accordingly, the Company has retained meter rent (net
of depreciation, finance cost and other installation costs) excluding the meters instzlled under various Government schemes such as IPDS etc, instead of Non-
tariff Income.The aggregate of such meter rent (net of depreciation, finance cost and other installation costs) recognised during the year is Rs, 12.19 crores
(including Rs. 10.03 crores pertaining to earlier years).
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TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31; 2024 _ - :

As at Asat

Commitments: -___March 31,2024 March 31,2023
i Tgrore: Terore

Estimated amaunt of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 127.42 159.35
12742 159,33,

As per the terms of Vesting Order, minimum cumulative capital expenditure of ¥783 crore has been committed for the first three years of
operation to meet out the commitment in respect of AT&C losses and past arrears collection which has been been stated in the Vesting Order.

Against the above commitment OERC has approved [ative capital exp ure of ¥ 817.80 crore upto FY-2023-24. In addition to above
an amount of 69.05 crore has been approved vide order dtd. 15.11.2023.
Contingent liabilities*

Contingent liability is:
(a) a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient refliability.

The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses the same as per the requirements of Ind AS 37.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by- the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the contro! of the entity. The Company does not recognise the contingent
asset in its financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised. Where an inflow of economic
benefits are probable, the Company disclose a brief description of the nature of contingent assets at; the end af the repo'rtir[g period. However,
when the realisation of income'is virtually certain, then the reldted asset is not a contingent asset and the Company recognise such assets.
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

As at As at
. March 31,2024 March 31,2023
it S
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: : o :
Legal cases filed by consumers, employees and others under litigation 28.82 26.27
Indirect taxation matters relating to Service Tax/GST where demand is under contest before 16.33 15.16

judicial/appellate authorities

*No provision is considered necessary since the Company expects favourable decisions.

Before acquisition, SOUTHCO Utility was not Identifying and tracking dues payable to MSME vendors separately, Consequently, it was not
tracking whether timely payments are being made to such vendors and/ or interest/ penalty, if any, payable for delay In making payment.
Post acquisition, the Company has initiated a process and identified MSME vendors based on confirmations received. In the absence of
adeguate data, the Campany is unable to determine whether any interest of penalty is payable for past default. The management will be able
to Identify and recognize such obligation, if any, based on claims received.

As per terms of Vesting Order, all litigations pertaining to SOUTHCO and SOUTHCO Utility have been transferred to the Company. In case of
any unfavourable outcome related to those litigation, the Company will be able to recover the amount through Aggregate Revenue
Requirement. .

Refer note 33,02(v) for contingent liability on account of truing up order by OERC.

Earnings per eauity share (EPS)

Accounting policy

Basic EPS amounts are caiculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. .

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company [after adjusting for dividend, interest
and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes)] by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during
the year plus the welghted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into
Equity shares.

The Company also presents Basic EPS in accordance with Ind AS 114, "Regulatory Deferral Accounts" which Is computed by dividing the profit
for the year before and after net movement in regulatory deferral account balance attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the proflt for the year before and after net movement in regulatory deferral account
balance attributable to equity holders as [after adjusting for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable
taxes)] relating to the dilutive potential equity shares by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year as
adjusted to the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where results are anti-dilutive.

EPS (excluding regulatory income/expense)

Particulars . units ' Year ended Vear'gndea
Profit for the year ©  ¥crare X7 32.75
Net movement in regulatory deferral account balance ¥ crore 267.64 206.09
Income-tax attributable to regulatory expenses ¥ crore (67.36) (51.87)
Net movement in regulatory deferrai account balance (net of tax) ¥ crore 200.28 154.22
{Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders before .

net movement in reguiatory deferral account balance ¥ierone & (163.71) (121.47)
Weighted average number of equity shares Nos. in crore 36.97 24.86
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of ¥10 each - (e/f) L4 (4.43) (4.89)
Face value of equity shares ¥ 10.00 10.00
EPS (Including regulatory i / ) ——— = a ER
Particulars Unit# Year end:4 "”Year gnded
Prafit for the year after net mavement in regulatory deferral ' Z crore ) - '36.57 ) 32.75
balances attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares Nos. in crore 36.97 24.86
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of ¥10 each -(a/b) 4 0.99 1.32
Face value of equity shares 2 10.00 10.00

There have been no other transactions involving equity shares on potentlal equity shares between the reporting date and the date of
authorisation of these financial statements.
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‘NOTE3T

party

Names of related parties where control exists and other related parties where transactions took place :

A,

c.

D.

[

Holding Company

The Tats Power Company Limited (TPCL)

Promoters holding together with its subsidiary more than 20% in Holding Company
Tata Sons Private Limited {Tata Sons )

Company exercising significant influence

GRIDCO Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries (with whom v has tr: ions)

Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL)

Maithon Power Ltd (MPL)

Tata Power Trading Company Limited (TPTCL)

TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited (TPCODL)

TP Northern Odisha Distibution Limited (TPNODL)

TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited (TPWQDL)

Tata Power Solar Systems Limited (TPSSL)

Tata Capital Ltd

Subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities of pr s of Hold Y r Group (with whom the Company has transactions)

Tata Stee! Limited

Tata Consultancy Services Limited

Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd

Tata ALG General Insurance Company Ltd
Tata Tele Services Limited (TTL)

Tata Advanced Systems Limited (TASL)
Tata ALA Life Insurance Company Limited

. Joint V. of Holding C

Industrial Energy Ltd (1EL)

Post retirement employee benefit trust

SOUTHCO Employees Pension Trust

SOUTHCO Employees Gratuity Fund Trust

SOUTHCO Employees Rehabllitation Assistance Fund Trust
Key management personnel

ChiefExecutive Officer

Mr. Arvind Singh {Date of cessation May 31,2023)

Mr. Amit Kumar Garg (w.e.f June 01,2023)

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Bilay Kumar Mohanty

Company Secretary
Mrs. Suchitra Dash (Date of cessation May 31,2022)
Mr. Jeavaniyoti Nayak (w.e.f July 19,2022)

Non-executive directors

Mr. Suresh Chandra Mahapatra {Date of cassation February 28,2023)
Mr. Narendra Nath Misra (w.e.f Aprit 11,2023)

Mr. Nikunja Bihari Dhal (Date of cessation October 30, 2023)

Dr. Praveer Sinha

Mr. Trilochan Panda

Mr. Sanjav Kumar Banga

Mr. Kesava Menon Chandrasekhar (Date of cessation February 19,2023)
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Jena (w.e.f April 11,2023}

Mr. Arup Ghosh(upto October 6,2023)

Mr, Nipun Aggarwal (Date of cessation April 18, 2022)

Mr. Sanjeev Satyaprkash Gupta (w.e.f April 28, 2022)

Mr. Vishal Kumar Dev (w.e.f November 21,2023)

Mr. Sunil Singh (w.e.f October 20,2023)

Mr. Umakanta Sahoo

Independent directors
Mr. Kallash Nath Shrivastava
Mrs. Aditi Raja

Mr. Arun Kumar Panda

Mr. Ashok Kumar Tripathy
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‘Related party transactions and balances

a. The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year ¥ crore
sl I Year eénded Year ended| '
no.|Name of Related Party Nature of transactions . March31,2024| March 31,2023
1 |Receiving of Goods, Services & Reimbursement of i
Expenses
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPOOL) Deputation of employees 1.05 2.68
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) imb t of exp 0.00 0.0t
TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited (TPCODL) Reimbursement of mediclaim expenses (payable) 0.00 -
GRIDCO Limited Power purchase expenses net of rebate 904.67 940.99 ;
Tata Consultancy Services Limited (TCS) Field Survey services - 3.59
Tata Consultancy Services Limited (TCS) AMC for Software 0.13 G
Tata Sons Private Limited (Tata Sons ) Online Training Fees for Business Excellance 0.02 .
TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited (TPCODL) Purchase of goods - 0.28
TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited (TPCODL} Consultancy services 0.37 =
Tata Tele Services Limited (TTL) Tender Fees 0.00 s
Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd /| Car Lease charges 0.05 0.06
Tata Capltal Ltd Car Lease charges 0.02 -
Tata AIG General Insurance Cormpany Limited Insurance expenses 5.03 1.59
Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited | Insurance expenses 0.73
TP Northern Odlsha Distribution Limited (TPNODL) | Reimbursement of manpower cost 0.06
TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited (TPWODL) Raimbursement of manpower cost 0.01 =
TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited {TPWODL) ' Reimbursement of energy charges 0.51
The Tata Power Company Limited(TPCL) Reimbursement os safety module training - 0.04
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Deputation of Employees = 0.43
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) AMC for Software 0.18 1.18
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Employee Stack Option Plan (Refer note 28) 0.22 e |
2 |Relmb of for Mediclaim and Manpower costs i e
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) | Reimbursement of mediclaim expenses (receivable) 0.00 -
TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited (TPNODL) Reimbi t of manp cost 0.01 -
3 1sale of Energy :- i
‘| Tata Steel Limited Sale of energy 85.80 80.78
4 |Purchase of property, plant and equip and ii gibl
i|Tata Consultancy Services Limited (TCS) Purchase of Intangibles 8.16 1.25
‘| The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Purchase of Property,plant and equipment 0.17 S
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) Purchase of Property,plant and equipment 0.09 0.01
i Tata Power Trading Company Limited (TPTCL) Purchase of Property,plant and equipment - 0.04g
5 |Sale of property, plant and equipments, intangibles and goods i
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) Sale of Property,plant and equipment - 0.06
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Sale of Property,plant and equipment 0.01 0.01
; TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited (TPCODL) Sale of Property,plant and equipment 0.02 0.01
6 vy &f‘ ted Ab. L bl I
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) Reimbursement of gratulty for the employees transferred - 0.19
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) Reimbursement of leave salary for the employees transferred - 0.21
The Tata Power Company Limited(TPCL) Relmbursemant of gratulty for the employees transferred 0.10 0.23
The Tata Power Company Limited(TPCL) Relmbursement of leave salary for the employees transferred 0.07 013
TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited (TFCODL) Reimbursement of gratuity for the employees transferred 1.64 0.00}:
TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited (TPCODL) Reimbursement of leave salary for the employees transferred 0.08 0.01
~|Maithon Power Limited (MPL) -| Reimbursement of gratuity for the employees transferred 0.05 |
‘[Maithon Power Limited (MPL) Reimbursement of jeave salary for the employees transferred D.02 =
TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited (TPNODL) Reimbursement of gratuity for the employees transferred 0.07 0.15 |
| TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited (TPNODL) Reimbursemant of ieave salary for the employees transferred 0.07 0.08
7 |Gratuity & Comp d Ab Receivabl A
| Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) Reimbursement of gratuity for the employees transferred 0.77 0.27
| Tata Power Sclar Systems Limited (TPSSL) Reimbursement of gratuity for the employees transferred - 0.02
Industrial Energy Ltd (IEL} ' Reimbursement of gratuity for the employees transferred - 0.05 1
TP Ajmer Distribution Limited (TPADL) Reimburseément of gratuity for the employees transferred - 0.12
The Tata Power Company Limited(TPCL) Reimbursement of gratuity for the employees transferred 0.48 2.79
ata Power Trading Company Limited (TPTCL) Reimbursement of gratuity for the employees transferred - 0.38
Tata Tele Services Limited (TTL) Reimbursement of gratuity for the employees transferred - 0.02
1| Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) Reimbursement of leave salary for the employees transferred 0.49 0.14
Reimbursement of leave salafy for the emplovees transferred: 2 0.04

TP Ajmer Distribution Limited (TPADLY -




TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

L NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024
Ha ) Year éndedl Year ended|
: Nama of Related Party Nature of transactions | March 31,2024]  March 31,2023
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Relmbursement of leave salary for the employees transferred 0.30 131
Tata Power Trading Company Limited (TPTCL) Reimbursement of leave salary for the employees transferred - 0.18
Industrial Energy Ltd (IEL) Reimbursement of leave salary for the employees transferred - 0.03:
Tata Power Solar Systems Limited (TPSSL) Reimbursement of leave salary for the employees transferred - Q.02
TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited (TPCODL) Reimbursement of leave salary for the employees transferred - 0.05
8 | Transaction with Trust
SOUTHCO Employees Pension Trust Contribution towards pension 103.47 98,571,
SOUTHCO Employees Gratuity Fund Trust Contribution towards gratuity 8.11 11.33
< |SOUTHCO Employees Rehabilitation Assisstance Fund Yrust Contribution towards Rehabilitation Assistance 1.03 0.15 ]
9 |Other Expenses | ]
:|Directors sitting fees Directors sitting fees 0.41 | 040,
10 loyee benefit exp
|Managerial remuneration* Remuneration to KMP's 3.04 2.28
11 |Share Capital
| |The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Issue of right shares 72.42 61.71
|GRIDCO Limited Issue of right shares for consideration other than cash 69.58 | 59.29

Note 0.00 repnesents amount below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
*Provisions for gratuity, compensated absences and other long term se
not specifically identified and hence are not included above.

rvice benefits are made for the Company as a whole and the amounts pertaining to the key management personnel are

jarties : Zcrore
" As at}: Asat]
jpusture’ofitransactions. o March 31,2024 March 31,2023
I [’ ) i
| The Tata Power Company Limlted (TPCL) Share Capital 260.58 188:16 |
| |GRIDCO Limited Share Capital 250.36 180.78 |’
- 2 |Other current liabilities I
- |Tata Steel Limited (Refer note 23) ' Sale of energy-advance received 4.03 3.99
' 3 ITrade Pavable
GRIDCO Limited (Refer note 21) Power purchase cost $8.61 15.26 ;
IThe Tata Power Company Limited(TPCL) {Refer note 21) Gratuity, annual leave and other payables - 0.62
The Tata Power Company Limited{TPCL) (Refer note 21) Employee Stock Option Plan 0.22 -
The Tata Power Companv Limited(TPCL) (Refer note 21) AMC Software Services 0.09 -
ITATA Capital Ltd. (Refer note 21) ) Car Lease Charges 0.00 -
Tata Consultancy Services Limited (Refer note 21) Purchase of Intangible assets 5.36 -
Tata Consultancy Services Limited (Refer nate 21) Field survey services - 2.28
ITP Central Odisha Distribution Limited (TPCODL) (Refer note 21) Property plant and equipment, Annual Leave and reimbursement of expenses:’ - 0.00
| Tata Fower Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) (Refer note 21) Purchase of property, plant and equip P and reimbur 0.07 0.76
4 |Other Receivables
Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited (Refer note 13) Insurance expenses 0.09 0.10;
Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Umited (Refer note 13) Insurance expenses 0.10 -
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) {Refer note 12) Gratuity and annual Leave 0.41 ®
5 |Loans and advances receivable
TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited (TPCODL) Sale of Material - 0.00
6 |Other financlal liabilities - current
Tata Steel Limited (Refer note 22) Security deposits 6.26 6.26

Note 0.00répresents amount below the rounding oﬁ’ norm’ adopted by the Company
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NOTES FORMING P KT OF THE F!NANCIAL STATEMEN'I’S AS AT AND FDR THE \’E&R ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

[(})

"Note 38 Financial lnurumen!s i
Financi g classificati Fair value 3 i Risk and offserting of fi ial assety and lmbnlmes
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial Instruments for the Company and provid iti ion on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.
The details of policies, i ing the criteria for recognition; the basis of measurement and the basis an which Income and expenses are recognised in respect of gach class of financlal asset,

financial liability and equity instrument has beén disciosed In Note 2 to the financial statements.

Accounting classifications

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are Included at the amount at.which the Instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

The f C and were used to estimate the falr valués:

a) The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, short term deposits, trade payables, payables for acquisition of property, plant and equipment, short term loans from banks, financial

institutions and others are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature. Most financial assets and liabilities of the Company as at the balance sheet date are short term having
fair value equal to amortised cost,

b) For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

Giy

(i)

Fair Value measurements
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of fi ial by

tevel 1: Unadijusted quoted prices in active markets for i assets or
ievel 2: Inputs other than quated price Included within Leved 1 that are significant observable for the asset or liabllity, elther directly (i.e. as pricas) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
level 3: Significant unobservable inputs from assets and liability

{i} Fair Value )
The following table summarizes the fair value for jal assets and | llabili that are either measured at fair value an a recurring basis or are not measured at fair value (but fair value
disclosures are required) and the carrying value of financial instruments by categorles:
The carrying value.of financial instruments by categorles as.of March 31, 2024 is a5 follows = " " . 1 .. T.orore
; Classification i - Fair value _ﬁ
| particutars Fair Value through Fair Value Amortised  Total Carrying
Profit and Laoss - - thr: Lo Jor S, oo Cost Value Cpcolewell Level 2 Level 3
[Financiat assets. C R AT . —
.| (1) Trade receivables - R 483.31 483.31 - - =
.| fii) Unbilied revenue - - 155.50 155.50 - . =
: |{11) Other financlal assets (current and non current) - i 44.11 44.11 - ’ 32.04
|{iv} Cash and cash equivalents - - 140.77 140.77 - . %
{|{v) Bank Balances other than (iv) above e - = e 1.025.88 . - . .1,07588 — - S w2
} S . 1,899.57. . . .. - - ... 3204
B S ~.-Classification Fair value o
' Fair Value through Fair Value, Total Carrying
: Financial Liabilities § ._._Profit and Loss through oﬂ Value Level 3 Levei 2 Level3
(i) Borrowings (current and non cursent) o T ~ ) T 54849 ) ' - 532.89 e
| (1) Trade payables - - 198.42 - - -
(iii) Other financial liablfitfes (current and non current} = ] 272,30 .. =
- - - - - =~
- . T erore :
> catien : T F
Fair Value through Fair Value Amortised Total Carrying
g Profit and | hOCI . Cost .. Value ’ levely .. Llevel2 el 3
(i) Trade receivables - - 509.50 509.50 . t
(1) Unbilled revenue - - 130.03 130.03 % v R
(i1} Other financfal assets (current and non current) - - 42,31 42.31 3 - 25.97
{iw) Cash and cash equlvalents - - 174.00 174.00 - - % 1
{v) Bank Balances other than (iv) above - - 849.46 849.46 - LN -
- R = - 170530 .- 705.30 - - 2547
Classification Fair vaiue
| financial Liabilities Fn;r v;h:';hlm ugh Fair Value Amortised Ton‘llﬁ‘r:ying i
I3 emm— - ___throiigh 0CI Cost ot Loveld . oo Level 2. - Level3 |
1| (1) Borrowings (current and non current) ’ - R STUTTR30.05 T 630.05 = 22846 =
{if) Trade payables - - 107.86 107.86 E - -
(iif) Other financial flabllities {current and non current) o e — TSRy . - e B3%42 835.12 i o D e
. . y - e . 2:573.02 C1s7303 oo - 22846 -
Caoital Management
For the P of the C ,, y's capital capita) includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The Company’s objectives for
capital ding the as a golng concern, creating value for stakeholders and supporting the development of the Company. In particular, the Company seeks to maintain an

p
adequate capitalisation that enables It to achieve a satisfactory return for shareholders and ensure access to external sources of financing, in part by maintaining an adeguate rating.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total capitaf plus net deht.

The Company's capital structure consists of net debt and total equity. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing borrowings, less cash and bank balances as detmled below. The position on
repomng date Is summir!sed in the followbng table

T: Asali Az af |
Particulars i March 31,2024 March 31,2023
i : ; ¥ crore||. X crore |
Hon-current borrowings (Note 16) o B 492,13 |1 210,60
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (Note 20) | 40.76 17.86
Short-term borrowings (Note 20) 548.48 630.05
Total debt (2) 1,081.37 858.51
Less: Cash and bank balances (b) {Note 11) 140.77 174.00
Net debt {(c)=(a-b)} i 940.60 684.50
Total equity (d) (Note 14 & 15) : 671.71 493.14
Total euultv and net debt {(e)=(c+d)) $,612.31 ¢/ 1,177.65
ﬂnl‘[mg ngg ;?_',:’g} !,!fk i;!ﬂﬂ} ¥ .
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vi)

(vil})

‘il Equity'1s defined" as Equity share capital and other equity.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, alms to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that
define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately caii loans and borrowings. There have been no in the
cavenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

The C ’s al il prise borrowings, consumers’ security deposit, trade and other payables and other fi | fiabil The main purpose of these financlal lablilties Is to finance

the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets inciude investments, loans, trade and other racelvables, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks , unbilled revenue and other
financial assets that are derived directly from Its operations.

The senior of the Ct these risks and are d in & with the C 3 policies and risk objectives,
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will affect the Company’s income or value of It's holding of fi i The obj of market risk management is to manage and control market
sk exp Wwithin p while the return. As at the reporting date, the Company does not have material financlal assets or financial Habllities exposing It to market risk

tomprising foreign currency risk, Inter&s! rate risk and price risk.

The variable rate of borrowing will not have any impact on profit & 10ss of the company as interest cost is pass-through to consumers through ARR.
Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency sk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Interest rate risk_

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s Long term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages Its interest rate risk by linking interest rate with different benchmarks (e.g. MCLR/ Extémal Benchmarks like Repo, T- Bills etc) to distribute the risk wherever possible. Further, senlor
management of the Company monitors its interest rate risk regularly and may take appropriate action if needed to mitigate risk.

Any fluctuation In the floating interest rate will be allowed as pass through to the Company as part of the Annual Revenue Reguirement (ARR). Hence, the Company Is of the viéw that the Interest rate

sensitivity on account of Interest rate fluctuation will not have any material fmpact of its ial position or p as reflected in the financial statements.
‘Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty ‘will default on its sal obll iting in loss to the Ct . The Company is exposed to credit risk from Its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables and unbifled revenue} and other financial instruments. NP .
; ) As at v ‘Asat
Particulars March 31,2024 || . March 31,2023

" |(d) Cash and cash equivalents

{a) Trade receivables
(b) Unbilled revenue
(c) Other financial assets

(e) Bank Balances other than above

In case of trade recelvablés and unbilled revenue, senior manz of the C rdue amount on rngular basis and take appropriate action, includlng forfeiturs of security deposit and/ or

disconnection of electricity, to get timely dues. Most of the cash and bank of the C are with banks where ¢isk of default is low.

Uquidity risk Is the risk that the Company wiil encounter difficulty in g obli [ with that are settied by delivering cash or another financlal asset. The Company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adeguate reserves, banking facllities and reserve. by i g forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities. The Company has access to a sufficlent variety of Sources of funding.

The following table details the Company's remalning contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repay periods, the cali-and options le with the Company. The

tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal
cashi flows. The amounts included below for variable interest rate Instruments. for non-derivative fiabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting pericd.

Particulars Upto Lyear 1toS years 5+ years Total
”nulﬂal'”“ — - e =
() Long Term Borrowing (including current maturities and interest) 85.90 348.53 371.10 805.52
{b) Trade payables 198.42 - - 198.42
{c) Short term borrowinas 548.48 - : 548,48
{d) Other financial liabilities i | 3 ¥

Particulars
As at March 31,2023
(a) Long Term Borrowing {including current maturities and interest) 36.35 154.07 13939 32981
(b) Trade payables 107.86 - ol 107.86
(c) Short term borrowinas 630.05 - N 630.05
(d) Other financlal labilities R— 37 ] 75.90 =
= 1a=ﬂ 5 X7 A 1:2.39 %
long term borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as Interest rates, speclﬁc muntry risk acmfs, credlt risk and the risk characteristics of the financed project. The borrowings carry
a fixed rate of interest, and the fair value is using the cash flow method. The future cash flows are based on the terms of the borrowings. These cash flows are discounted at a rate that

reflects current market rate and the current credit risk. The management has determined that at the reporting date, fair value of borrowing is not materially different from the carrying amount even after
considering any fluctuation in prevailing market interest rates,

4s at the balance sheet date, the Cofnpany has cash and bank balances of ¥ 140.77 crore (as at March 31,2023 : ¥ 174.00 croré) which can be used to meet Its abligation. In case of requirement, the
management Is confident of raising further finance as required to meet its obligations. The Company has access to financing facllities.The Company expects to meet its obligations from operating cash flows and
proceeds of maturing financial assets.

2 crore
As at March 31,2024 i
Financing facilities (short term ) NOD Fund
------ Fund baged based Total
Secufed / Unsecured credit facilities, revlewed annually and pavable at call
Amount used and outstanding 548.39 192.05 740.44
Amount unused = : :54.
Total
2 crore
~As at March 31, 2023 o
Fhanclng facilities (shm tnrm ) Non Fund
2 - Fund based .- based - . i Total -
Secured /7 Unsecured credlt fadlltles. reviewed annuallv and pavable at call
Amount used and outstanding 629.95 186.71 816.66

Amount unused 27.06
Total 2T 5 3

_707.01 38873
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' 'NOTE 39 “Financial Ratios

Reason far Varlance

{'SFNe. | Ratlos Numerator Danominator CoAsat: =TT As at Yo of "
b March 31,2024} March 31,2023 Vlrhm:l
ICirenr st e T | Currane nagets g [Ty PO N TR T Y R
Debt Equity Ratio (In thmes) i |Total Dedt p Total Equity ) 161 1.74 7.53%]| NA ] " :
Debt Service Coverage Ratio(in ~ |Profit before tax + Interest ‘| Interest expense + scheduled® © 261 3.93 | 33.61%| Decrease is majorly on account of repayment of|’
times) " |expenses + depraciation \Jerincipal repayment of long i “ltong term borrowing during the year and
& amortisation - eurrént term debt dunng lhe ilincrease in earaing for debt service.
o8 |t e ieg - ygar s — = . > =
(d) | [Return on Equity Ratio (RCE) (%) |Net Profit after tax | Ave(aq: Sharehnlderx Fund 6.28% 7.87%| 20.19%| NA
{&)_[Trade Receivables Turnover Ratia |Number of days * Average Trade e from Opeartion 127.92 115.79] ~ 10.48%)| NA
i [¢in number of days) Recelvable g - - irde f J
(fy" |Trade Payablés Turnover Ratio - (m Aumber of days * Avérage ‘I'rade Piimﬁase’duﬂi\g tha year+ . 39.45 3594 9.77%) NA .
] number of days) Payable Other Expense - expenses for 1
B b . . _|non operating activities . | S 8 - 8 R :
) Net c;.‘mx Tumover Ratio {In Number of days * Werking capital {Revenue from operation 33,93 20.24 | 67.67%) Increase is'majorly on account of increase in
. |number of days) i|= Current assets - Current including nat movemant in . |working capitai dug to increase in deposits with
LTS bl = . 0 - \banks and. decrease in curmrent DomowWINgs -
th) .| NetProfit Ratio (%) - |Net Profitafter tax .|Revenue from operation—- 1.74% 1.59% 9.69%)| NA
o including net movement In ;
3 ) - = egulatory deferral balances. - H
i/ |Return on Capital Employed “.|Profit before tax + interest Average Capital employed 9.38% 9.48%  1,11%| NA
(ROCE) (%) :|expense @xcluding interast on (Total.equity + Total Debt +
i . " |consumer security deposit l Dgfenad tax liabliity) i
3} IReturn on investmant (%) Irterest income + Gain on fair [Average (Investment + Fixed “2,77%) 2.69%]. " 2,68%| NA -
1 value of current Irivastment at Fair [deposit+ Loans Given) i
: valueﬂ\rou;m Profit & Loss
1. Invenmrv turmwer ratio is nm'. appll:abh to the Camparw )
2. As explained In nole related to fimncial instruments, the cumvwmacuuwsufﬁmiumtv to continue its: for at least 12 the date of approval of Financial Statemients
Nota:
A. Current Assets as per balance sheet
Current Liabilities as per balance sheg
g, Total Debt: Long term borrowings (includmg current of long tarm bor short term gs and Interest accrued on these debts
Total Equity : Issued share capital and other equity
C. For the purpose of computation, scheduled principal rapayment of long term borrowings does niot include prépayments Interest expanses Is net of interest cansumer security deposits
D. Average Shmhnlder‘s Funds : Averagé Issuéd share capital and Other equity
£. Average Trade Trade and Unbilled Revenue v
F. Net credit purchases comprise of: (a) Cast of power pi and charges as per of Profit and Loss (b) Other.expenses exduding (i} Bad debts {including provision); (if) Net loss on

2}

T

I
1

foraign exchange; (Iil) CSR expenses and {iv) Transfer to contingency réserves:
Working CapRal: i} Currént Assets: as per balance sheet il) Current Liabilities as per balance sheet (excluding current maturities of long term debt)

Average Capital Employed: (a) Issued share capital; (b) Other equity; {c) Total Debt; less (d) Deferred Tax Assets; (e) intangible Assats

Revenue from Operation Including net y Deferral
deferred tax) .
Revanue from Operation Including net n I Defarral
deferred tax)

Interest Income: Interast on bank deposits and Intergst on loans given

(a) Revanue from Operations as per Statement of profit and Loss; {b) Net movemaent in Régulatory Deferral Balances (including

5: (a) Revenue from Operations as per Statement of profit and Loss; (b) Net movement In Regulatory Defeiral Balances (including
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NOTE 40 Refationshin with Struck off Companies

. The Comnanv hls bnlance with the below mentloned :ompanles stm:k off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) or sectlon 560 of the Cnmpanles Act, 1955

NOTE 41
4102

41.02

NOTE 42

NOTE 43

NOTE 44

’Fl.no. T 7 'Namée of struck mcompqny = 'Nature of - T = Transaalnn F Balance

T f

¢ with during the year outstanding as during the year | outstanding as|. with the
|struckoff company ended March 31,2024 atMarch | ‘endad March at March Struck off
1 31,2024 | 31,2023 | 33,2023 company

0 16,001

0.00

TV

cqnﬁmmmﬁmﬁwa : Mms—s
Note: 0.00 represents amount below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

Business Combinations

to liability
The Company has been incorporated oq December 25, 2020 under the Companles Act, 2013 (as dmended). Pursuant to vesting order issued by the OERC dated December 28, 2020 ('Vesting
Order'), the Company acquired the of power in Odisha (' ') from SOUTHCO Utility with effect from January 1, 2021 (Vesting Date). Accordingly, the
Company Is a licensee te casry out the function of dlstrlbunon and retail supply of covering the il circles of hern state of Odisha for a perfod of 25 years effective from
January 1, 2021,

The OERC has issued the Carved Out order dated November 26, 2021 to specify assets and Jlabilities transferred to the Company, The Carved Qut order so Issued by the OERC acknowledges
that g détalls are not avail for certain assets and liabllities. In accordance with the Carved Out Order, these amounts have bien transferred to the Company and will continue to be
Its liabilities, and they cannot be paid without verification. These liabillties need to be varified through an external agency. Once verified, the Company is obliged to discharge the same upon the
OERC approval. These liabilities cannot be written off without the Board and the OERC approval. Pending legal release, the Company to gl these at the stated amount
reflecting acquisition date fair valugs. In accardance with the vesting order, any change in the value of assets and Habilities transferred on account of the reconcillation / resolution of the above
matters and / or any other matter identified In future will be allowed to be recovered by the Company in the manner spacified in the vesting order, viz., by way of future tariff adjustment or
adjustment to the grant liabllity. Hence, the Company beliéves that the reconciliation / resolution of the above mattars wil not have any impact on the financial position and financial
performance of the Company as reflected in the financlal statements.

(a) Carrying amount of security deposits as per the general ledger is lower by 20.61 crare as compared to balance as per consumer ledger .

(b) Vendor/ ty detalls not for the
(i} Sundry Creditors for Expenses -24.02 crors (Mardl 31, 2023: !4 DZ crore) (classified under note 22 as other liabilities in the Balance Sheet);
(i) Ady eposit from for capital works - ¥98.85 crore (March 31,2023:¥98.85 croré) (classified undér note 22 as other

flabilities in lhe Balance Sheet);
(i) Other liabilities - ¥23,58 crore (March 31,2023:% 23.58 crore) (classified under note 22 as other liabllitiés in the Balance Sheet) ; and
(iv) Creditors for Capital Account - ¥18.59 crora (March 31,2023: 18.59 crore) (classified under note 22 as othér liabilities in the Balance Sheet) .

During the previous year the Company has appointed: ‘external agency to verify -aforesaid fiabliities whose details are not available. Basis the outcome ¥ 26.93 crore was transfered from
serviceable to unserviclabie liabilities.

The Company, with the SOUTHCO Utility management and the help of the OERC, is in the process of reconclling/ resolving the above matters and adjustments, if any,will be recognised post
reconciliation and resolution of the matters. As stated above, the Vesting Order providas that any change in the value of assets and liabilities transterred on account of the reconciliation /
resolution of the above matters and/ or any other matter identified In future will be ailowéd to be recovered by the Company In the manner specified In the vesting order. Hence, the Company

that the recx of the above matters will not have any impact on the financlal position and financial pérformance of thé Company as reflected in the Fnancial
statements,

Trade Receivabies

As per Para 16(g) to Vesting Order dated 28.12.2020, an opening Balance Sheet for TPSODL was supposed m}b_e Carved Out from the Balance Sheet of SOUTHCO Utility as on 31.22.2020 to
effect the transfer of the utility to TPSODL. The Carved Out Balance Sheet shall be as per the broad principles lald out in Annexure ~ 1 to the Vesting Order. As per the said Annexure, full
amount of Sundry Debtors / Trade Recelvables was supposed to be retained by Southco Utility and no Sundry Debtors/ Trade Receivables ta be transferred by. Southco Utility to TPSODL In its
Opening Balance Sheet. However, QERC passed Carved Qut Order on 26th November 2021 and as per the Carved Out Order, Sundry Debtors/ Trade Receivablés amounting to Rs 266,63 Cr
transferred to TPSODL In its Opening Balance Sheet as on 1st January 2021(Table 2 to Carved Out Order). Above Operiing Sundry Debtors/ Trade Receivables of Rs. 266.63 Cr includes Rs.34.50
Cr pertaining to TPSODL périod as such revenus/bitling were made agairst input energy purchased by TPSODL in its period(from 1st Jan 21} and hence forming part of revenue/Debtors/ Trade
Recelvables in TPSODL books. Further it Is pertinent to note that similar treatment of Rs. 34.50 Cr was also given in the Southco Utility bocks in December 2020 Le. sald revenue of Rs. 34.50 Cr

has not been accounted by Soutico Utility as r debtors/ Trade in its books for the month of December 2020. However, while passing Carved Out Order, Hon'ble Commission
has considered the same as Debtors/ Trade Receivables of Southco Utility as on 31st December 2020 and transferred to TPSODL in Its Opening Balance Sheet. The Company made a
representation to the OERC to recast the Opening Balance Sheet and resp is awalted. there is a of Rs, 34,50 Cr between General Ladger and Consumer Ledger of the
Comoanv.

Sepment Reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of distribution of power in Southern Odisha. Chief Operating Declswn Maker (CODM) reviews the financlal information of the Company as a whole for
da:lslnn making and of i oly, the Company has a single and information has been provided.

There I8 fo consumer from whom the Company has earned more than 10% of revznuve‘

Soclal Sacurity Code

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code") relating to employee benefits during emp and post Y benefits received assent in 2020. The Code has been
published in the Gazelte of India. However, the date on’ which the Code will come Into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpratation have not yet been issued. The Company will
assess the impact of the Code when it come sinto effect and will record any related impact In the period the Code becomes efféctive, Based on @ pretiminary assessment, the entity- belisves the
impact of the change will not be significant.

Disciosure regarding detaifs of assets created with Government Fund and used by the SOUTHCO Utility/ TPSODL

As per last details provideit by the Odisha Power Transmission Company Umited {OPTCL) vide e-mall dated Apri) 18, 2023, certain assets were created for SOUTHCO through different schemes
formed by the government and executed by OPTCL. Based on details shared by OPTCL, the carrying amount of such assets as of Marct 31, 2024 is ¥1,568.95 crore (March 31, 2023: -¥1,638.53
crore) for completed assets and 109.64 crore (Masch 31, 2023: ¥ 103.64 crore) for work in progress(WIP). These are subject to detalled ion and n by various

As per the Vesting Order, the ownership of these assets has not been transferred to the Company; however, It can continue to use these assets tor supply of power to the consumer. Since the
Company s not able to charge any depreciation for these assets In thé ARR, the fair value of these assets for the Company at the vesting date Is Nil. Details are given below:

*Excluding ! 69. 58 crore as itis a pm nf equity contributltm by GRIDCO durlng the yaar ending Murch 31, 2024

Tcinice.

1| Qdisha System St Project (ODSSP)* 103. oz - ) 73231
i Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana (DDUG3Y) 395.08
Power Development Scheme (IPDS) 241,64

Pradl\an Mantri Sahaj Bijli Har Ghar Yojana (Soubhagya) - 191.44/
Rajiv Gandhi Grameen Vidyutikaran Yojana (RGGVY) - 11.59
Odisha Dedicated Agriculture and Fishery Feeder Project 6.62 6.62]
Biju Gram Jyoti Yojana (BGJY-OPTCL DTR) . - 45,71
eme-IT:} IPDS-[T Phase-1l] = 2 . 17 1)

109.64 L.678.59 |

[

— g 1P SQUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

T -
f Odlsha Dis'h-lbuunn System Skrengthening Proje.ct (ODSSP)“ '698.87
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yajana (DDUGIY) 395.08
Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS) 241.64
Pradhan Mantsi Sahaj Bijli Har Ghar Yojana (Soubhagya) 191.44
Rajiv Gandhi Grameen Vidyutikaran Yojana (RGGVY) 11.59
Odisha Dedicated Agriculture and Fishery Feeder Project 3
. mju Grarm lyoti Yojana (BGJY-OP'I’CL DTR) . 1 45,71
rDevel =TT (] -IT-Phase-II) i i 54.20
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TP SOUTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

NOTE 45 Other Statutory Information

(i) The Company has not given any loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directars, KMPs and/ or related parties (as defined under Companles Act, 2013), either
severalty or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand, or without specifying any teérms or period of repayment.

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been Initiated or pending agatnst the Company for holding any Benami propérty under Prohibitlon of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ili) There are no charges or satisfaction which is yet to be reglstered with ROT beyond the statutory period,.

(iv) The Company Is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companles Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Restriction on number of Layers)
Rules, 2017 (as amended).

(v) The Company has not been declared as wiliful defaulter by any bank or finandial institution or ather lender.

{vi) The Company have not traded or Invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current financial year and previous finandal year.

{vil) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons of entitles, including foreign entities ( ies} with the und ing that thé Intermedlary shall:

{a) directly or Indirectly lend or invest in other persens or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(vili} The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies}, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the und ing (whether ded in writing or otherwise) that the
Company shail:
(2) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like ta or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(ix) Quarteriy returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks in connection with the working capital limit sanctioned are in agreement with the books of accounts,

(x) The Company does nat have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disciosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
(xi) The Group has five Core Investment Companies (CICs) which are reglstered with the Reserve Bank of Indla and two CICs which are not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

NOTE 46 Audit Trail
The Company has used accounting seftwares for maintaining Its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevsnt transactions recorded In the softwares, except that audit trail feature Is not enabled at the database fevel In so far as it relates to the SAP 5/4 HANA and CIS application andfor
the underlying HANA and DB2 database respectively.
However stringent control procedures were implemented to effectively restrict direct changes to data throughout the financial year. These procedures included thoraugh reviews of logs and
reconcillation of datasets and during the financial year no direct changes were made that impacted financial records: Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in
respect 6f the accounting softwares. }

NOTE 47 Significant Avent,s after the reporting period
There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period other than the events disclosed in the relevant notes,

NOTE 48 Standards notifiéd but not yet effective
There are na standards that are notified and not yet éffective as on the date.

NOTE 49 App Fi ial
The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on April 19, 2024.
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